Public Document Pack

50

WEBCAST

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Plymouth City Council
Civic Centre
Plymouth PLI 2AA

Please ask for Nicola Kirby, Democratic
Support

T 01752 304867

E nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

Il April 2013

CITY COUNCIL

Monday 22 April 2013
2.00 pm
Council House (Next to the Civic Centre), Plymouth

Members:
The Lord Mayor, Councillor Wright, Chair

The Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Singh, Vice Chair

Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Browne, Casey, Churchill,
Coker, Damarell, Darcy, Philippa Davey, Sam Davey, Mrs Dolan, Drean, Evans, K Foster,

Mrs Foster, Fox, Fry, Gordon, Haydon, James, Jarvis, Jordan, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves,

Sam Leaves, Lowry, Dr. Mahony, McDonald, Monahan, Murphy, Mrs Nelder, Nicholson,

Mrs Nicholson, Parker, Penberthy, Mrs Pengelly, Rennie, Ricketts, Dr. Salter, John Smith,

Peter Smith, Stark, Stevens, Jon Taylor, Kate Taylor, Tuffin, Tuohy, Vincent, Wheeler, Wigens
and Williams.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be broadcast live to the internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated
viewing. By entering the Council Chamber and during the course of the meeting, councillors are
consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting. Although the
public seating areas are not filmed, by entering the meeting room and using the public seating
area, the public are consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting.

The council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. Data collected during this

webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy.

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive



CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA

PART | - PUBLIC MEETING

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence submitted by councillors.
MINUTES (Pages | - 16)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 25 February
2013.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 17 - 18)

Councillors will be asked to make declarations of interest in respect of items on this
agenda. A flowchart providing guidance on interests is attached to assist councillors.

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, OUTSIDE BODIES (Pages 19 - 22)
ETC

The Director for Corporate Services will submit a schedule of vacancies on committees,
outside bodies etc and of changes notified to us.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

(@) To receive announcements from the Lord Mayor, Chief Executive, Director for
Corporate Services or Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance;

(b) To receive announcements from the Leader, Cabinet Members or Committee
Chairs.

QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC

To receive questions from and provide answers to the public in relation to matters which
are about something the Council is responsible for or something that directly affects
people in the city, in accordance with Part B, paragraph || of the Constitution.

Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic Support
Unit, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, Plymouth, PLI 2AA, or email to
democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any questions must be received at least five
complete working days before the meeting.




TO RESPOND TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CABINET

1.

Urban Enterprise - New Enterprise Units at Millfields Trust (Pages 23 - 32)
Cabinet Member: Councillor Evans.

The City Council will be asked to consider the Cabinet recommendation and the report
of the Director for Place submitted to Cabinet.

Minute 155 (of the Cabinet meeting held on 12 March 2013) refers.

Development Plan - Adoption of Development Guidelines (Pages 33 - 184)
Supplementary Planning Document First Review

Cabinet Member: Councillor Vincent.
The City Council will be asked to consider the Cabinet recommendations and the report
of the Director for Place submitted to Cabinet. Minute 165a (of the Cabinet meeting

held on 9 April 2013) refers.

The draft Development Plan has been updated since Cabinet to reflect some non material
changes.

Adoption of Community Infrastructure Levy Charging (Pages 185 - 202)
Schedule

Cabinet Member: Councillor Vincent.
The City Council will be asked to consider the Cabinet recommendation and the report

of the Director for Place submitted to Cabinet. Minute |66a (of the Cabinet meeting
held on 9 April 2013) refers.

TO RESPOND TO A RECOMMENDATION FROM THE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD

10.

Restructure of Overview and Scrutiny (Pages 203 - 220)
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board: Councillor Mrs Aspinall.

The Lead Scrutiny Officer will submit a report proposing a restructure of the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Board and its panels to improve effectiveness. The proposals
modernise the Overview and Scrutiny Function and bring them in line with the council’s
priorities. This report details the proposed recommendations for consideration at City
Council on 22 April 2013 and includes new terms of reference for each panel.

The terms of reference have been amended following the meeting of the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board of 10 April 2013 (minute 136 of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board is attached).



TO RESPOND TO A RECOMMENDATION FROM THE LORD MAYOR'S
SELECTION COMMITTEE

Lord Mayoralty 2013/14 (Pages 221 - 222)
Chair of the Lord Mayor’s Selection Panel: Councillor Evans.

To receive the recommendation of the Lord Mayor Selection Committee, prior to the
Annual Meeting, in accordance with Article 5.1.1 of the Council’s Constitution.

MOTIONS ON NOTICE

To consider motions from councillors in accordance with Part B, paragraph 14 of the
constitution.

12.

A Reliable Railway Link for Plymouth (Pages 223 - 224)

To consider a motion proposed by Councillor Dr Salter and seconded by Councillor
Drean.

Any Further Motions on Notice

To consider any further motions from councillors in accordance with Part B, paragraph
|4 of the Constitution.

REVISED COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT (Pages 225 - 238)

The Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance will submit a report asking the
council to approve a revised code of conduct for councillors.

ESTABLISHMENT OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING (Pages 239 - 248)
BOARD

The Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance will submit a report on proposals
for the establishment of a statutory Health and Wellbeing Board, in accordance with the
provisions of the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The Board will introduce democratic
legitimacy to health services, support children, young people and adult services’ joint
commissioning through a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and support the integration
of public health services into local authorities.

The report will recommend that the council establishes the board as a formal committee.
REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (Pages 249 - 256)
The Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance will submit a report asking the

council to consider undertaking a review of the constitution delivering members’
aspirations for improved governance.



17 PROGRAMME OF ORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE (Pages 257 - 260)
COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES 2013/2014

The Director for Corporate Services will submit for approval, the draft Programme of
Ordinary Meetings of the Council and Committees for 2013/14, up to the next Annual
General Meeting of the Council.

18. REPORT OF THE LEADER ON URGENT CABINET AND (Pages 261 - 262)
KEY DECISIONS

The Leader will submit a report on urgent decisions taken by Cabinet for noting
(paragraphs 3.5 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules and 18.3 of the Access to Information
Rules in the Constitution refer).

19. QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS

Questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs covering aspects for
their areas of responsibility or concern by councillors in accordance with Part B,
paragraph 12 of the Constitution.

20. EXEMPT BUSINESS

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

PART Il (PRIVATE MEETING)

AGENDA

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE

that under the law, Council is entitled to consider certain items in private. Members of the

public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

NIL.



This page is intentionally left blank



89.

90.

91.

Page 1 Agenda Iltem 2

City Council
Monday 25 February 2013
PRESENT:

The Lord Mayor, Councillor Wright, in the Chair.

The Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Singh, Vice Chair.

Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Churchill, Coker,
Damarell, Darcy, Philippa Davey, Mrs Dolan, Drean, Evans, K Foster, Mrs Foster, Fox, Fry,
Gordon, Haydon, James, Jarvis, Jordan, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Lowry,
Dr. Mahony, McDonald, Monahan, Murphy, Nicholson, Mrs Nicholson, Parker, Penberthy,
Mrs Pengelly, Rennie, Ricketts, Dr. Salter, John Smith, Peter Smith, Stark, Stevens, Jon Taylor,
Kate Taylor, Tuffin, Tuohy, Vincent, Wheeler, Wigens and Williams.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Browne, Casey, Sam Davey and Mrs Nelder

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.50 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the Council will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be
subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have
been amended.

MINUTES

Agreed that the minutes of the meeting of council held on 28 January 2013 are confirmed as
a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declaration of interest was made in accordance with the code of conduct from
Councillor Jordan in relation to an item under consideration at this meeting —

Item Interest Reason
Minute 93 — Updated Report on the Personal Director of
Corporate Plan 2012/15 Update, Routeways and
2013/14 Budget (Revenue and Capital) Plymouth Youth
and Proposed Council Tax Levels and Sailings
Pay Policy
ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader referred to —

(@) Funding from the Coastal Communities Fund for Plymouth
Waterfront: £670,000 had been awarded from the Coastal
Communities Fund to attract people to the waterfront. Projects
would include Commercial Wharf, the Royal William Yard and new

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 2

opportunities for cycling.

(b) City Deal: the city had been awarded City Deal which would
provide new powers putting the city in charge of its own
economical destiny and enable the south west peninsula to realise
its potential. The city was one of |3 awarded City Deal and had
been recognised for its vision, ambition and skills. The Leader
indicated that he was looking forward to continued discussions with
the government.

CORPORATE PLAN 2012/15 UPDATE, 2013/14 BUDGET (REVENUE AND
CAPITAL) AND PROPOSED COUNCIL TAX LEVELS AND PAY POLICY

Length of Debate for Leader and Leader of the Opposition

Before the commencement of the debate, the Leader sought approval in accordance with
Part B, Council Procedure Rule 14.6 of the Constitution, to suspend Rule of Debate 4.2 (in
Appendix One) (which limits speeches to five minutes) for the following item in relation to
speeches by the Leader and Leader of the Opposition.

The proposal was seconded by Councillor Peter Smith and following a vote it was agreed.

Updated Report on the Corporate Plan 2012/15 Update, 2013/14 Budget
(Revenue and Capital) and Proposed Council Tax Levels and Pay Policy

The Chief Executive and the Director for Corporate Services submitted written reports on
the Corporate Plan 2012 -5, the revenue and capital budget 2012/13, the treasury
management strategy statement and annual investment strategy and the proposed council
tax levels.

The City Council considered -

(@) the report of the Director for Corporate Services on the Budget
Update;

(b) the updated report of the Chief Executive and the Director for
Corporate Services on the Corporate Plan 2012/15 Update, 2013/14
Budget (Revenue and Capital) and Proposed Council Tax Levels and
Pay Policy;

(c) Cabinet minute 140 (of 12 February 2013) and the updated draft
Corporate Plan 2012-2015 (following Cabinet on 7 February 2012)
(appendix A);

(e) Cabinet minute 141 (of 12 February 2013) and the Cabinet report
on Building for Jobs — Plymouth Investment Fund (appendix B);

() Cabinet minutes 142 and 142a (of 12 February 2013) and the
Cabinet report on the Capital Investment for Street Lighting, Solar

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 3

PV and Boiler Replacement (appendix C);

(g) Cabinet minutes 143 and 143a (of 12 February 2013) and the
Cabinet report on the 2013/14 Budget (Revenue and Capital)
Allocated to Corporate Priorities (appendix D);

(h) Pay Policy Statement (appendix E);

(i) Cabinet minute 137 (of 12 February 2013) on the Budget and
Corporate Plan Scrutiny Report 2013/14 including the Scrutiny

Report and Cabinet’s response to the recommendations (appendix
F).

Councillor Evans (Leader) moved, and Councillor Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance)
seconded, the recommendations in the written reports of the Chief Executive and the
Director for Corporate Services submitted to the City Council and commended to the City
Council, for approval, the 2013/14 council tax levels and the pay policy statement.

In presenting the proposals, Councillor Evans referred to —

(i)  the cuts of five billion pounds imposed on Councils across England
and the loss of 230k jobs over two years which was unprecedented;

(k)  the actual cuts which were seven point four per cent amounting to
£7.8 m, not the one point nine per cent presented by the
government and reported in the media;

(I)  the cooperative approach which ran through the 100 pledges for
Plymouth of which nearly a third had been delivered. Ten of the
pledges were about the economy and creating jobs with
employment, skills and jobs being a top priority;

(m) the initiatives that included -

e the creation of a job task force;

e the launch of the 1,000 Club with the aim of giving Plymouth’s
young unemployed a start;

e a £20m investment in partnership with the Plymouth Growth
Board;

e the establishment of a Building for Jobs Investment Fund
created as part of the Plan for Jobs;

e the City Deal and the University Technical College which
would build on the city’s strength in marine sciences and

engineering;

e a campaign to clean up empty building sites and encourage

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 4

development which had stalled;

(n) investment in the profile of the city which included the UK City of
Culture in 2017; Mayflower 400 year anniversary in 2020, the
Theatre Royal regeneration plans and the redevelopment of the
Plymouth Pavilions site;

(o) the cooperative approach of the council in relation to —

° greater community involvement in schools;

e the city’s status as a fairtrade city;

e the development of a Community Economic Development
Trust for the north of the city;

e the potential for a Community Greenspace Trust to manage
the city’s parks and spaces;

e the development of an energy co-operative to enable residents
to access cheap energy;

e asignificant energy programme of £13m over four years for
street lamps, solar panels on council buildings and the
replacement of boilers;

e the implementation of a pilot glass recycling scheme;

(p) the introduction of the First Charter for Older People stating the
council’s commitment to support people to enable them to live full
and independent lives with dignity and respect and the council’s
support to the most vulnerable children. He thanked partners for
their work to ensure that people were safe and protected;

(q) the school improvements being undertaken;

(r) the transformation of adult social care services;

(s) the impact of welfare reform changes with particular regard to the
abolition of the council tax support scheme and the council’s

creation of an exceptional hardship fund for residents;

(t) the proposed revenue budget of £212.5m which was being achieved
with £17.8m savings and an increase in council tax of two per cent.

Councillor Coker (Cabinet Member for Transport) moved and Councillor Jon Taylor
seconded the following amendment —

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 5

‘New recommendation |7 —

(17.1) to approve the Capital Programme as detailed in Appendix D
figure 5 set out on page 96 of the City Council agenda with the
addition of increased capital expenditure on highway
maintenance by £2m in 2013/2014 to be financed by -

Item £m
I Surplus Capital Receipts 0.500
2 New Homes Bonus Additional Funding 0.460
3 Bus Lane Enforcement - additional income | 0.150

13/14
4 VAT refund re Trade Waste Reserve from | 0.890
one-off receipt / current balance of £1.6m
Total 2.000

This will increase the 2013/14 investment to £64.016m with
Place Directorate total increasing to £24.840m, and the overall
four year programme 2012-2016 to a minimum of £168.255m;
and

(17.2) the additional investment outlined in 17(a) to form the
commencement of a ten year programme of £20m in road
maintenance.’

Councillor Coker indicated that —

(u) the state of the nation’s roads and footpaths were a recognised
problem throughout the country. Plymouth was not alone in the
decades of underfunding, and severe winters and widespread
flooding had compounded the problems with the city’s roads;

(v)  the Local Government Association had said that re-directing funding
into road maintenance would boost growth, improve road safety
and save billions of pounds from the current false economy of
reactive repairs.

(w)  whilst additional monies had been put into highway maintenance in
2011/12 to respond to the damage caused by two cold winters, it
was a one off increase following a number of years of very low spend
on the network and no additional monies had been identified for
future years;

(x)  the 2012/13 budget was not suffcient and a further £1.5m of capital

and revenue monies had been injected into highway maintenance this
year, bringing the actual spend to £4.1M;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 6

(y) the baseline budget for 2013/14 had been increased to £3.1M;

(z)  he had requested officers to continue to review options to maximise
spend on highway maintenance, whilst balancing this against the
responsibilities and duties that existed in running the diverse
transport network;

(aa) budget scrutiny, both this year and last, had identified that significant
investment was needed in the highway network to deal with the
condition of the roads and pavements;

(bb) new capital receipts, surplus to the requirement to fund the Capital
Programme had been identified in the sum of £0.500;

(cc) following confirmation by government of the final settlement funding
which was confirmed after the publication of the final budget, a
further New Homes Bonus “additional funding” allocation of £460k
had been made which had not been allocated in the 2013/14 budget;

(dd) the additional income from bus lane enforcement was in addition to
the income assumptions in the 2013/14 revenue budget;

(ee) a one-off VAT refund had been received in relation to the council’s
charges for trade waste of £890k;

(ff)  all of the monies allocated for this purpose were one-off in nature
for 2013/14 and did not form the basis of a longer term solution.

During the debate on the amendment the following issues were raised —
(gg) the inefficiency and ineffectiveness of temporary repairs;

(hh) the need for clarity on the source of the remaining £18m of the
£20m programme and on the delivery mechanism with Amey;

(i)  that the methods of the work were part of solution and the need for
value for money;

(i)  whether the funding would enable the priority list to be completed;

(kk) that the funding should not be spent on extending pavements into
the roadway.

Councillor Coker summed up and indicated that no changes had been made to the

guidelines for repairs and that the criteria would be followed to determine where works
would be undertaken. He welcomed the support from all councillors.

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 7

In response to an issue raised previously by Councillor Ricketts, councillors were advised
that following consultation with ward councillors, the Ford Park Road roundabout would be
resurfaced in next couple of weeks.

In future, councillors from neighbouring wards would be given the opportunity to comment
on transport proposals.

Following a vote, the amendment was agreed.

Councillor Mrs Pengelly responded to the main motion, as amended, and indicated that -

(I every cut and price increase would affect residents but that tough
decisions were needed;

(mm) every effort should be made to ensure that the increase did not
impact significantly on vulnerable people;

(nn)  a council tax freeze could have been proposed;

(0o) every item of spend should have been considered carefully and the
value of spending questioned;

(pp)  in her opinion, the council had not explored partnership working
enough;

(rr)  she had been surprised that Plymouth University had not been
invited to attend budget scrutiny;

(ss)  she was concerned that the quality of care would not be
maintained if adult social care was outsourced.

The debate continued on the main motion, as amended, and the following issues were raised

(tt) the budget did not address the need to deliver services in a
different way;

(uu)  many of the initiatives announced had already been put in place by
the previous administration;

(v)  government spending was higher than previous years and spending
on welfare reform was increasing in real terms;

(ww) people should have been given the opportunity to decide on the
proposed council tax increase but that it had been set underneath

the amount that would trigger a referendum;

(xx)  the budget overspend of £1.4m had not been addressed and that
the budget was considered unsafe;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



(y)
(z2)

(aaa)

(bbb)

(ccc)

(ddd)

(eee)

(fff)

(eee)

Page 8

a council tax freeze would have resulted in further cuts to services;

Councillor Mrs Aspinall (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board) acknowledged that the lack of a
representative from Plymouth University at budget scrutiny had
been an oversight but that no one had mentioned it at the time;

a council tax freeze had not been suggested at budget scrutiny and
a minority report had not been submitted to Cabinet;

the current action being taken to address the number of people
out of work in Plymouth was not being effective as numbers had
increased;

funding had been moved from the Early Intervention Budget,
where it was targeted at young people, into the budget for the
People Directorate;

the report lacked detail and the proposals were not transparent;

the budget for adult social care had not been increased and was
not considered sufficient to meet demographic growth, even with
the transformation measures. The delivery plans would need be
monitored carefully;

the transformation of adult social care provided opportunities for
the development of social enterprises and cooperatives;

the proposals relating to Cabinet Members’ individual areas of
responsibility —

e the reduction of demand for children’s services through the
provision of the right support as early as possible and
working with partners;

e  bringing residential placements within the city;

e  contracting for services on a peninsula wide basis;

e looking at opportunities to trade the council’s services;

e the reducing number of jobs and the narrowing of the gap
between the highest and the lowest earners in the council.
Thanks were extended to employees for their hard work and
an apology was given for the uncertainties of wage and job

cuts;

e the council was striving to become a brilliant cooperative
council;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 9

the council would become a living wage employer this year;

the council were committed to developing libraries to include
free access to the internet, wifi and basic ICT training;

the further development of webcasting;
a campaign to increase electoral registration;

the introduction of youth nights and the growth of swimming
and diving at the Life Centre;

protection of the Mount Edgcumbe budget;

the review of the Core Strategy of the Local Development
Framework;

the increasing recycling rates and decreasing landfill;

investment in minibuses and plant and equipment and the
implementation of a rolling programme for replacement;

an increase in the number of allotments;

an expansion of the work with the third sector particularly
with regard to furniture recycling;

the need for statistical work on adult social care in
accordance with the budget scrutiny recommendation;

support for people and carers;

decreasing admissions to residential homes resulting in
increasing domiciliary care. Information and advice was
provided in libraries to enable individuals to make choices;
the development of extra care facilities;

the amalgamation of public health with the council;

increased funding to and investment in the voluntary sector,
including funding for Routeways next year;

agreement of a Community Asset Transfer Policy;
building the council’s partnerships;

working with community covenants for armed forces;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 10

(fff)  most local authorities in the region were increasing council tax and
the proposals, which included the fire service and police precepts,
would be the lowest average council tax across the country;

(o) thanks were extended by Councillor Lowry to everyone who had
contributed to the budget proposals.

The Leader in summing up the proposal, thanked all the officers for their hard work on the
budget and everyone who had contributed during the afternoon.

Following a request from ten councillors for a recorded vote on the proposals, as amended,
there voted —

For the motion (27)

Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Bowie, Coker, Damarell, P. Davey, Evans, Fox, Gordon, Haydon, |arvis,
Lowry, McDonald, Murphy, Parker, Penberthy, Rennie, Singh (Deputy Lord Mayor), . Smith, P.
Smith, Stevens, J. Taylor, K. Taylor, Tuffin, Tuohy, Vincent, Wheeler and Williams.

Against the motion (0)

Abstentions (26)

Councillors Ball, Mrs Beer, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Churchill, Darcy, Mrs Dolan, Drean, K. Foster, Mrs
Foster, Fry, James, Jordan, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Dr Mahony, Monahan, Mrs
Nicholson, Nicholson, Mrs Pengelly, Ricketts, Dr Salter, Stark and Wigens.

The Lord Mayor

The following members were absent (7)

Councillor Browne, Casey, S Davey and Mrs Nelder.

Following a vote, it was agreed in principle —

Corporate Plan 2012-15 Update (Appendix A)

(N To note the “Corporate Plan 2012-15 Update” and its implications
on the revenue and capital budget.

Building for Jobs — Plymouth Investment Fund (Appendix B)

(2) To include in the 2013/14 — 2015/16 Capital Programme an
Investment Fund for Plymouth (Building for Jobs) of £20 million,
based upon the key objectives of creating jobs and supporting the
economy, and the four criteria of impact, value for money, long term
sustainability, and deliverability.

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



©)

(4)

®)

(6)
7)

(8)

©)

(10)

(1)

(12)

Page 11

Capital Investment for Street Lighting, Solar PV and Boiler
Replacement (Appendix C)

to approve a £13.25 million capital investment to —

(@)  replace the authority’s high pressure sodium street lamps with
light emitting diode (LED) street lamps;

(b) install solar photovoltaic (PV) panels on 14 council owned
buildings (see Annex | of Appendix C for buildings);

()  replace boilers that are past their usable life in 16 council
properties (see Annex 2 of Appendix C for properties).

2013/14 Budget (Revenue and Capital) allocated to
Corporate Priorities (Appendix D)

that additional income from the core Council tax base of £0.200m is
allocated to offset the shortfall from the indicative budget;

that £0.268m from additional New Homes Bonus is allocated to a
revenue contingency held within corporate Items;

an increase of two per cent (2%) in council tax for 2013/14;

that specific grants subsumed into formula grant for 2013/14 are
pass-ported to the relevant directorate to which the spending
commitments relate;

that the combined additional funding and spend reduction in Early
Intervention Grant of £1.9m is pass-ported into the People
Directorate as a contingency for the 2013/14 financial year only;

that the £0.200m Medium Term Financial Forecast allocation for the
impact of school transfer and the £0.300m allocation for forecasted
shortfall on council income is moved into a revenue contingency;

that a new allocation of £0.250m is made to the People Directorate
to reflect loss of income from the Plymouth Life Centre naming
rights;

that the three additional delivery plans of terms and conditions
£0.100m; Treasury Management Property Investment Fund £0.250m;
and treasury management day-to-day investment return £0.250m are
approved;

to utilise £7m of the housing stock transfer (VAT shelter) receipts

(£4m received to date plus £3m anticipated) to fund the overall
capital programme;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



(13)

(14)

(1)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

Page 12

to utilise £0.5m of the Revenue Reserve for capital financing to
support the Plan for Jobs revenue initiatives, and a further £0.475m
to fund the overall Capital Programme 2012/13 —2015/16;

to draw-down £0.800m against the Waste Management Reserve in
2013/14 to address the anticipated funding shortfall on waste disposal
(increased landfill tax liability);

that £1.000m from the National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)
calculation is held as a Technical Reform Contingency within
corporate items;

that £0.900m of the council tax income calculation is held as a
Technical Reform Contingency within corporate items;

(@) to approve the Capital Programme as detailed in Appendix D
figure 5 set out on page 96 of the City Council agenda with
the addition of increased capital expenditure on highway
maintenance by £2m in 2013/2014 to be financed by -

ltem £m
I Surplus Capital Receipts 0.500
2 New Homes Bonus Additional Funding 0.460
3 Bus Lane Enforcement - additional income | 0.150

13/14

4 VAT refund re Trade Waste Reserve from | 0.890
one-off receipt / current balance of £1.6m

Total 2.000

This will increase the 2013/14 investment to £64.016m with
Place Directorate total increasing to £24.840m, and the

overall four year programme 2012-2016 to a minimum of
£168.255m; and

(b)  to task officers to report back to Cabinet in April 2013
regarding the long term investment needed to deliver a long
term solution for funding of the road network in Plymouth;

to approve the proposed net revenue budget requirement for
2013/14 of £212.560m and that the Director for Corporate Services
is requested to reduce the Corporate Items budget by £0.003m to
£9.029m;

to note that using the council tax base for 2013/14 as 66,958.0 [ltem
T in the formula in Section 3|B of the Local Government Finance Act
1992, as amended (the “Act”)]; calculate that the council tax

requirement for the council’s own purposes for 2013/14 is
£85,006,529;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



(20)

(21)

(22)

Page 13

to note that the following amounts are calculated for the year
2013/14 in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:

(@@  £554,190,381 being the aggregate of the amounts which the
council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of
the Act (Gross Expenditure and Transfers to Reserves);

(b)  £469,183,852 being the aggregate of the amounts which the
council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of
the Act (Gross Income and Transfers from Reserves);

(c)  £85,006,529 being the amount by which the aggregate at 20(a)
above exceeds the aggregate at 20(b) above, calculated by the
council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its
council tax requirement for the year. (Item R in the formula in
section 3B of the Act);

(d)  £1,269.55 being the amount at 20(c) above (Item R), all
divided by Item T (19 above), calculated by the council, in
accordance with Section 3B of the Act, as the basic amount
of its council tax for the year;

that in accordance with the principles approved under 52ZB of the
Local Government Act 1992, the council’s relevant basic amount of
council tax for 2013/14 is not more than two per cent (2%) higher
than the relevant basic amount of council tax for 2012/13 and that it
is therefore determined that the council’s relevant basic amount of
council tax for 2013/14 (Alternative Notional Amount ANA) is not
excessive and for this reason a referendum will not be required;

to note that both the Police and Crime Commissioner for Devon
and Cornwall and the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue
Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with
Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each
category of dwellings in the council’s area.

These confirmed values have been included in the tables below;

Plymouth City Council after two per cent (2%) increase

A B C D
£846.37 £987.43 £1,128.49 £1,269.55
E F G H
£1,551.67 £1,833.79 £2,115.92 £2,539.10

City Council Monday 25 February 2013




(23)

(24)

(25)

(26)

(27)

(28)

Page 14

Police and Crime Commissioner for Devon and Cornwall -
Precept 2013-14 after two per cent (2%) increase

A B C D
£108.61 £126.72 £144.82 £162.92
E F G H
£199.12 £235.33 £271.53 £325.84

Devon and Somerset Fire Authority Precept 2013-14 after
one point nine nine per cent (1.99%) increase

A B C D
£50.26 £58.64 £67.01 £75.39
E F G H
£92.14 £108.90 £125.65 £150.78

Aggregate of Council Tax requirements for 2013-14

A B C D
£1,005.24 £1,172.79 £1,340.32 £1,507.86
E F G H
£1,842.93 £2,178.02 £2,513.10 £3,015.72

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy 2013/14 (Appendix D)

to approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for
2013/14;

to approve the Investment Strategy for 2013/14 set out in sections 8
and 9 of the report including the use of specified and non-specified
investments;

to approve the lending organisations and counterparty limits set out
in Treasury Management Appendix D;

to approve the prudential indicators set out in the report covering
the revised indicators/limits for 2012/13 and the forecasts/limits for
2013/14 to 2015/16;

to approve the Authorised Borrowing limits of £310m, £301m and
£285m for the period 2013/14 to 2015/16;

to approve the operational boundary of £289m, £280m and £270m
for 2013/14 to 2015/16;

City Council Monday 25 February 2013




Page 15

(29) to approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy for
2013/14;

Pay Policy Statement (Appendix E)

(30) to approve the Pay Policy Statement in accordance with Section 39

of the Localism Act 201 I.

(Councillor Jordan declared a personal interest in the above item insofar as it related to
Routeways and Plymouth Youth Sailing).

Subject to no objection being received from the Leader, this in principle decision will come
into force within five days.

City Council Monday 25 February 2013



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWdRABE_IdUEsTIONs ToAGendaram 3

What matters are being discussed?

!

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):
e any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;
e any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor’s election expenses from a Trade Union;

D e any land licence or tenancy they have in Plymouth;
P e any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
| e any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in
Plymouth in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and
securities;
e any organisation which has land or a place of business in Plymouth and in which they have a
relevant interest in its shares or its securities.
No 1 Yes l— Declare interest and leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
e the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
r e  Your well-being or financial position; or
S e  The well-being or financial position of:
o o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
n - Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
| - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
| o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
n which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
t o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
e principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade
:; union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management?
s
t
1 Yes
P
r You must disclose the existence and nature of your
e personal interests
J l No
u
d
i Would a member of the public, with knowledge of the | Tou can P e the mee e a"df"ﬁte (or
¢ relevant facts, reasonably regard your personal interest ° remain in the room i not a memoer of the
I to be so significant that it is likely to prejudice your — meeting)
Ia judgement of the public interest?
| Yes
n - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body through
z whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects you or
r any person or body with which you have a personal interest?
Se - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
t 1 Yes

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19 Agenda Iltem 4

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, OUTSIDE BODIES ETC.

Report of the Director for Corporate Services.

l. The City Council is asked to consider the following appointments —

(Please see details of the organisations and requests at the end of the report).

Committee, Outside Body Membership Appointment
etc
(@) | Plymouth Fairness Commission two councillors: Cabinet Member for Co-
NEW BODY Cabinet Mgmber for operative§ and
Co-operatives and Community
Community Development

Development and
one councillor from
the opposition party

(b) | Municipal Charities of Plymouth Four
representatives:
Clirs Fox and
Penberthy and Betty
Gray

One vacancy arising
from resignation of
Fred Brimacombe

2. The City Council is asked to note that the following bodies have ceased -

(Please see details at the end of the report).

Committee, Outside Body etc Membership
(c) | Children and Young People’s Trust Councillors Williams, Philippa
Davey and Mrs Bowyer
(d) | Devon Playing Fields Association Councillor Vincent
(e) | Devonport Community Lands Trust Councillor Stevens
(f) | Learning Disability Partnership Board Councillor Gordon

Final 11.04.13 Not protectively marked



Page 20

(a) Plymouth Fairness Commission

Since 2010, a number of Local Authorities, many of whom are Cooperative Councils, including
Liverpool, Islington, York, Sheffield and Newcastle have established Fairness Commissions.
Although each have had differing characteristics, their overall aim has been to make a non-partisan
strategic assessment of the nature, extent, causes and impact of inequalities in their area, and to
make recommendations for tackling them.

The creation of a Plymouth Fairness Commission has been initiated by Plymouth City Council. It
will be independent and chaired by Dame Suzi Leather, who has previously chaired a number of
organisations at local and national level including the Charity Commission and is a current member
of the General Medical Council.

The Commission will examine the issues of inequality in the city, collate relevant evidence and
make recommendations about how the Council and other organisations, public, private as well as
the community and voluntary sector can reduce inequalities and increase the perception and
experience of fairness within the local economy and local communities.

This work will take place over the next year. The group will be able to call upon expert witnesses
and ask for specific areas to be examined. They will pull together all their findings in a final report
at the beginning of 2013 which will make recommendations for action.

(b) Municipal Charities of Plymouth
The trustees are appointed by the City Council and serve for periods of three years.

The Trustees meet every other month and are responsible for the running and management of the
John Gayer and Rawlin Homes Almshouses at Green Street, Charles Cross which provide fifteen
Almshouses available for ladies of retirement age who have Naval connections and who have lived
in Plymouth for many years and are of limited means.

The Trustees also manage two smaller grant making trusts, namely the Orphans' Aid Educational
Foundation which provides small educational and clothing grants for school children (preferably of
secondary school age) and the Joan Bennett Exhibition Endowment which provides occasional
grants to help young people from Plymouth to set up in work or for special educational purposes.

(c) Children’s and Young People’s Trust

A single Children’s Partnership will be formed to replace the previous Children’s Trust Board and
the Executive Group. The new body will be smaller and more strategic and have a clear
relationship with the other new governance organisations such as The Health and Well-being
Board, the Growth Board and the Joint Commissioning Partnership.

(d) Devon Playing Fields Association

The Devon Playing Fields Association will be merging with the Community Council of Devon.
From Ist April there will no longer be allocated places on the Board of Trustees for local
authority members, though local authority representatives are able to seek election as provided
for in the Community Council’s constitution.

The Community Council will promote its support for sport and play under the banner of ‘Devon
Playing Fields’.



Page 21

(e) Devonport Community Lands Trust

A companies’ check has revealed that the trust was dissolved in September 2012.

(f) Learning Disability Partnership

The partnership has been dissolved. A new group has been established made up of service users
and organisations which are involved in supporting people with a learning disability. They reflect
the service user voice and support the Joint Commissioning and Adult Social Care Service to

shape services.

No formal councillor appointments are required.



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23 Agenda ltem 7

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

CABINET MINUTE 155 OF 12 MARCH 2013

URBAN ENTERPRISE - NEW ENTERPRISE UNITS AT MILLFIELDS
TRUST

The Director for Place submitted a written report seeking approval to the Council acting as
guarantor for Millfields Trust for repayment of the balance of the Trust’s loan from the Local
Enterprise Partnership outstanding to a maximum of £2.Im.

The Assistant Director for Economic Development and the Urban Project Manager presented the
report.

Alternative options considered and reasons for the decision —

As set out in the report.

Agreed -

(N subject to a favourable outcome to both the ERDF and GPF applications, that
the Council acts as guarantor for Millfields Trust for repayment of the balance of
the Trust’s loan from the LEP outstanding to a maximum of £2.1m in
accordance with an agreed Heads of Terms between Plymouth City Council and
the Millfields Trust which mitigates the potential financial impact upon the
Council;

(2) to delegate approval of the Heads of Terms to the Director for Place.

(Councillors McDonald and Penberthy declared personal interests in respect of the above item).

(Councillor Coker was absent for consideration of the above item).

Note:
The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867

Final 11 April 2013 Not protectively marked



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Urban Enterprise: new enterprise units at Millfields Trust.
Committee: Cabinet
Date: 12 March 2013
Cabinet Member: Councillor Evans
CMT Member: Anthony Payne (Director for Place)
Author: Patrick Bowes, Urban Enterprise Project Manager
Contact: Tel: 01752 304882
e-mail : Patrick.bowes@plymouth.gov.uk
Ref: Your ref. PB /UE
Key Decision: Yes
Part: I

Purpose of the report:

Millfields Trust Block C development is a £5.12 million building project which unlocks £4.66 million
public funding to create 50 new enterprise units in a deprived area that will provide up to 200 new
jobs and forms one of the ‘Plans for Jobs’ projects. This report explains how the delivery of the
project is facilitated by the Council acting as guarantor and how the potential financial impact of this
enabling role will be mitigated.

The project expands one of the two existing Community Economic Development Trusts (CEDTs).
CEDTs develop sustainable businesses that create local jobs in a defined area, involving support for
community development and business development advice. They help wealth to be created and kept
local, encouraging all income — whether CEDT business surpluses or community income - to be
reinvested for community benefit, leading to a more sustainable, cost-effective and value for money
approach to development.

The primary funder is the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) which seeks to address
economic disparity issues in some of the most deprived parts of the South West Competitiveness
area through supporting regeneration and creating and safeguarding jobs. This project forms part of
the wider, extended Urban Enterprise Programme in Plymouth which is a job creation programme
made up of revenue and capital elements which targets mainly unemployed people and equips them
with the advice, skills and knowledge to set up their own business.

In addition to the £2.56million sought from ERDF, the Millfields Trust will be taking a loan of £2.1
million from the Growing Places Fund administered by the Local Enterprise Partnership to enable
delivery of the project and the Council proposes to act as guarantor for any balance of the loan
outstanding at the end of the |10 year repayment period. The remainder of the costs (£0.46 million)
will be met from the applicant.

The Local Enterprise Partnership have indicated that the Council acting as guarantor will be a
condition of their funding offer. Therefore without this support the project, with a total value of
£5.12m is unlikely to proceed. The report sets out the mitigations measures proposed to limit the
financial liability on the Council.

Revised Dec 2012



Page 26

The rationale for this capital project is to respond to the lack of managed workspace provision in the
deprived wards and provide an enterprise culture centred around enterprise hubs which create new
work opportunities for local people and for them to grow their new start businesses and is embraced
by the recently approved ‘Plan for Jobs’ as one of the nineteen projects.

Corporate Plan 2012-2015:

The commitments included within this project fully supports the Co-operative Council’s
approach to ensuring that customers are engaged and that local needs are met. The project is
integrated with the Plan for Jobs which recognises that addressing the significant issues of
unemployment and worklessness cannot be tackled by the Council alone, and requires a multi-
partnership approach to have the greatest impact on the lives of Plymouth residents.

The Urban Enterprise programme helps deliver the Corporate Plan’s four key priorities:-

e Deliver growth — through increasing the number of new jobs

e Raise aspirations — through creating new business and an enterprise culture

e Reduce inequality — through focusing on deprived communities and disadvantaged groups

e Provide value for communities — through introducing new enterprise hubs in the heart of
deprived communities

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

It should be noted that project delivery and funding arrangements are directly between Millfields
Trust and the funders. The Council is not acting as an accountable body nor is it associated with the
procurement or project delivery.

The decision would require the Council to act as Guarantor to a Growing Places Fund loan up to a
maximum of £2,100,000. However, the development appraisal submitted with business case states
that the Trust would have paid back £0.7 million of the GPF loan in years | — 10. In order to mitigate
the financial liability upon the Council, the report explains that further refinement of the Heads of
Terms seeks to achieve the aim that the Council will be funder of last resort.

This guarantee will only come into effect at the end of the 10 year loan period should Millfields Trust
not be able repay the loan at that time. The Council will have no liability should the project fold
within the initial 10 year period.

In accordance with the Business Plan presented by the Millfields Trust, it is anticipated the growing
places loan will be repaid directly by them through a combination of retained surpluses and a
commercial loan arrangement at the end of the |0 year period.

Should the Council be required to step in as guarantor at the end of the period, the Trust have been
agreed to provide security in the form of a legal charge against the freehold asset of the Block C

building.

In order to mitigate the financial liability upon the Council, Heads of Terms have been drafted up and
are referred to in the report.

Revised Dec 2012



Page 27

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

In order that the proposal progresses satisfactorily through the ERDF application process, a number
of key requirements need to be met which demonstrate that the economic disparities of Plymouth
are being addressed and the core outputs of job creation and managed workspace area are being
met. This needs to be set in the context of providing new opportunities for the local community, in
particular those isolated from the labour market and demonstrate sustainability and long term value
for money.

Risk management is central to the whole package, notably the desirability to base the proposal on a
sound funding package.

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No

As part of the ERDF requirements the proposal submitted by the Millfields Trust needs to
demonstrate a positive contribution towards equality or opportunity. The Trust has its own Equality
Policy and has proposed Equality Indicators as part of their application for ERDF funding.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:
It is recommended that

I. Subject to a favourable outcome to both the ERDF and GPF applications, the Council agrees
to act as guarantor for Millfields Trust for repayment of the balance of the Trust’s loan from
the LEP outstanding to a maximum of £2.1 million in accordance with an agreed Heads of
Terms between Plymouth City Council and the Millfields Trust which mitigates the potential
financial impact upon the Council. Authority to agree the Heads of terms be delegated to the
Director of Place

Reason — The Heads of Terms will be further refined to mitigate the financial liability upon the
Council and take account of comments made at the Capital Delivery Board.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

The Regional Growth Fund (RGF) has been comprehensively researched as potential match but an
application made under RGF 2 in June 201 | was unsuccessful.

The Council has also explored the opportunities to use the rates rebate and the new business rates
retention scheme to reduce the applicant’s repayments on the GPF but any decisions thereon are
premature. If agreed, this will allow increased repayments to the GPF.

Published work / information:

Cabinet — 12 February 2013 — Building for Jobs — Plymouth Investment Fund
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mglnternet/documents/s4438 | /Building%20for%20jobs%20-
%20Plymouth%20Investment%20Fund.pdf

Revised Dec 2012



Background papers:

Page 28

Title Part | | Partll Exemption Paragraph Number
I 2 3 4 5 6
Sign off:
Fin | AF/Pla |Leg | 1699 |[Mon | TH | HR Assets IT Strat
ce 2/IA | Off 00 Proc
FEDC T 95
12130
03.25.
02.13
Originating SMT Member: David Draffan
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? Yes

Revised Dec 2012




2.0

2.1

22

23

24

Page 29

Background

The primary goal is to develop Millfields Trust Union Street based HQ site in order
strengthen their business , to create a flexible range of new workspace units catering for new
businesses at various stages of growth for the community of Stonehouse, and to aid the
economic regeneration of this neighbourhood.

This Urban Enterprise hub scheme has been conceived to create jobs for local people from a
deprived ward. It is a component of a master plan prepared for the immediate urban block,
commissioned jointly by Plymouth City Council, The SW Regional Development Agency and
the Homes & Communities Agency and sits within the wider regeneration ambitions of the
wider Millbay area.

The total cost of the project is £5.12 million with £2.56 million being applied for from ERDF,
£2.1 million being applied for from Growing Places Fund and the remainder £0.46 million
coming from the applicant and land value.

The Urban Enterprise extension — Strategic Investment framework (SIF) Phase 2 discussion
paper to Cabinet Planning on 26™ November explained the difficulties that a project such as
Millfields Trust Block C would have in paying back the entirety of its Growing Places Fund
(GPF) loan within the 10 year stipulated term for repayment owing to its status as a social
enterprise. The outcome was a letter sent expressing the Council’s potential intent to act as a
guarantor of the capital loan repayment beyond the 10 year Growing Places Fund loan, subject
to Cabinet decision on this report and the Council being satisfied with contractual
arrangements emanating from the GPF.

The Building for Jobs — Plymouth Investment Fund Report to 12" February Cabinet makes
clear the types of project that might benefit from the fund citing Millfields as an example of a

quality business premises that would fill a current gap in the market at the same time as
leverage funding from ERDF and GPF.

The Millfields Trust project also features in ‘Plans for Jobs’ ‘Project 5’ which aims to create a
series of managed business hubs to support the growth of start-ups, capitalising upon the
success of the Urban Enterprise programme, through the development of a series of projects
specifically targeting disadvantaged groups in the City.

Capital Programme Business Case

The project status details and programme milestones are consistent with the ERDF and GPF
timescales. With regard to costs / budget and risks, a detailed assessment of cost and an
agreed schedule of consultant costs and due diligence surveys has been produced and
submitted as part of the various ERDF and GPF funding applications.

A full application was submitted to ERDF on 7 February and is programmed to be presented
for approval at the 20" March ERDF Competitiveness Operational Group meeting.

Once due diligence is undertaken by the Local Enterprise Partnership who administer the GPF
is completed, recommendation of a formal loan offer is expected to be made at the 7" March
LEP Board meeting.

A full Capital Programme Business Case was submitted to the Capital Delivery Board on 15
February following meetings held between the Council and the Millfields Trust. This provided

Revised Dec 2012



2.5

2.6

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

42

43

44

4.5

4.6

Page 30

information about the project details, finance, procurement and risk. Much of the justification
for the business case is provided in the ERDF and GPF applications, so the Capital Programme
Business Case primarily concentrated on the required contractual arrangements with the
Council as guarantor and how the risks to the Council are mitigated through the Heads of
Terms described below.

The business case indicates an annual operational surplus will be achieved. It should be noted
that the current plan is based on 90% occupancy and includes provision for a business rate
rebate from the Council, equivalent to approx. £30,000 per annum. This rebate will be subject
to a separate approval, pending the implementation of new local business rate legislation and
policy. In the event rate relief were refused, the Business Case indicates the project will
remain viable, albeit with reduced margins to meeting loan payments and other business risks
such as reduced levels of occupation. Performance against the business plan will be regularly
monitored, and it has been agreed the Trust would formally assess whether the outstanding
loan could be repaid from commercial borrowing from year 7 of the growing places loan term

Legal Services, Finance and Capital Strategy teams have been involved through offering advice
on the proposal in the meetings referred to above.

Mitigation of PCC role acting as guarantor

The Council has already shared draft Heads of Terms with the Millfields Trust who believe
they are reasonable and realistic. The Heads of Terms will be further refined in response to
comments made by the Capital Delivery Board which include details of the charge, and the
means required to ensure the Council ends up as funder of last resort.

Heads of Terms

The overarching requirement from the Council’s perspective is that the Millfields Trust must
explore every opportunity to minimise the Council’s liability in its proposed role to act as
guarantor.

At the expiration of 7 years after the date of the LEP loan agreement, the Trust will instigate
an assessment of whether the GPF loan then outstanding could be repaid from commerecial
borrowing over a term of up to a further 20 years.

If commercial borrowing can then be arranged, the Trust will enter into the relevant funding
obligations, and once in receipt of the commercial loan monies, will repay all GPF funding then
outstanding.

If the assessment of commercial borrowing does not identify any suitable lender, the Trust
will repeat the process outlined in 4.2 at the end of years 8 and 9.

If these further assessments prove ineffective, the Council will undertake to provide funding
(not exceeding £2.] million) to enable the GPF funding outstanding to be repaid at the
expiration of 10 years from the original loan agreement.

The outcome of 4.5 would be the Trust repay such outstanding borrowing to the LEP and will
enter into a new loan agreement with the Council on the same financial terms as per the
original LEP loan, and on the same basis as in the Heads of terms, except that the loan period
shall be 15 years.

Revised Dec 2012



4.7

5.0

5.1

5.2

53

Page 31

The Trust will also enter into a Legal charge for the benefit of the Council over the site and
premises from commencement of construction works. This charge will rank behind any
charge imposed by any other external funder of the development works, such as the LEP.

Next steps
Decisions expected on the formal offer of the GPF grant expected to be made at the 7*
March 2013 LEP Board meeting.

Decisions expected on the ERDF full application to be made at the 20 March ERDF
Competitiveness Operational Group meeting.

Contractual arrangements between the Council and Millfields Trust to be finalised after
successful outcomes to the ERDF and GPF applications.

Revised Dec 2012



Page 32

Revised Dec 2012



Page 33 Agenda Item 8

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

CABINET MINUTE 165a of 9 APRIL 2013

DEVELOPMENT PLAN: ADOPTION OF DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT: FIRST REVIEW

The City Council is Recommended to —

(1)  formally adopt the Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning
Document: First Review (Appendix |to the written report);

(2) delegate authority to the Assistant Director for Planning Services to
approve the final publication version of the Supplementary Planning
Document.

Minute 165 — Cabinet decision (for information)

In accordance with minute 33 (10/11) which gave approval to a non-immediate Article 4 Direction
to control changes of use to Class C4 (Houses in Multiple Occupation), the Director for Place
submitted a written report on a proposal for the City Council to adopt the Development
Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document: First Review.

The First Review —

(@) would be part of the Local Development Framework documents
within the Development Plan and would provide guidance to
support policies set out in the Core Strategy;

(b) primarily introduced additional guidance covering applications
received for houses in multiple occupation and included the guide of
a ‘threshold’ approach to assessing whether a change of use would
be harmful to an area’s character having regard to the existing
number of converted and non-family dwellings in the vicinity;

(c) was approved for consultation by the Cabinet Member for
Environment and a consultation had been carried out for six weeks,
and nine responses had been received. Some minor amendments
and clarification had been made to the document as a result.

Councillor Evans presented the report.

Cabinet Members were advised that —

(d) the proposals had received a broad level of support;

Final 11 April 2013 Not protectively marked



Page 34

(e) all Local Development Framework documents would be fed into the
Plymouth Plan, when there would be an opportunity to rationalise
and streamline the policies, but that there would still be a role for
more detailed guidance relating to smaller scale developments;

() the following issues they had raised, would need to be revisited as
part of the development of the Plymouth Plan —
e the ongoing maintenance costs of play areas;
e  surface water drainages;
e  secure cycle stores and minimum cycle parking standards;
e  parking standards for new developments.

The Assistant Director for Planning Services undertook to ensure that the emergency services
were consulted on the Plymouth Plan and that as much learning as possible would be captured

from experiences of current policies to inform the plan.

Alternative options considered and reasons for the decision —

As set out in the report.

A further recommendation was moved, seconded and agreed as set out below to ensure a more
coordinated approach to the delivery of public realm improvements and maintenance across all
relevant departments and stakeholders and to incorporate this new approach in the relevant
planning policy guidance linked to the Plymouth Plan.

Agreed that the Assistant Director for Planning Service coordinates a cross departmental working
group, linked to the Plymouth Plan, to prepare guidance on public realm.

Note:
The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website

www.blymouth.gov.uk/democracy

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867



Page 35

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Development Plan: Adoption of Development
Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document —

First Review

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 2 April 2013

Cabinet Member: Councillor Vincent

CMT Member: Anthony Payne (Director for Place)
Author: Thomas Westrope (Planning Officer)
Contact details: Tel: 01752 307803

e-mail: Thomas.westrope@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: TW/DGFR
Key Decision: No
Part: I

Purpose of the report:

This report relates to the adoption of the Development Guidelines Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) — First Review, which will be part of the package of Local
Development Documents within the Development Plan (formally the Local
Development Framework). As this document is part of the Council’s Policy and
Performance Framework, the Cabinet’s decision will need to be formally ratified by
Full Council.

The aim of this SPD is to provide guidance to support policies set out in the Core
Strategy. It will assist the City Council in delivering the local, sub-regional, regional
and national objectives in respect of sustainable development and includes
information on residential, food and drink uses, shop fronts, signs and
advertisements, refuse storage, telecommunications, parking standards & travel plans,
and coastal development considerations.

The original Development Guidelines SPD was adopted by the City Council on 26
April 2010. Primarily the changes in this First Review concern amendments to
Chapter 2 in relation to conversions to Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and
flats and includes the guide of a ‘threshold’ approach to assessing whether a change
of use would be harmful to an area’s character having regard to the existing number
of converted and non-family dwellings in the vicinity. The draft First Review was
approved for consultation by the Cabinet Member for Environment and the decision
was published on the 7 September 2012. Consultation was carried out between the
20 September 2012 and thel November 2012. Some minor amendments and
clarification have been made to the document as a result.



Page 36

Corporate Plan 2012-2015:

The Development Guidelines First Review SPD directly supports the objectives set
in the Corporate Plan. Specifically, the SPD will provide additional guidance for the
development of the City in line with the adopted Core Strategy and will contribute
towards the ‘Delivery of Growth’. The SPD will support and increase the range and
quality of housing in safe, inclusive and sustainable communities (Level | indicator).

The SPD also supports the corporate priorities to Raise Aspirations, by contributing
to the overall / general satisfaction with the local area (Level | indicator); to Provide
Value for Communities, by providing guidance that supports the development
standards expected of our policies, and; to Reduce Inequalities, by contributing
towards improved standards of housing.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

The costs associated with the recommendations of this report including publication
of statutory notices and costs for the adoption of the SPD will be met from the
Planning Services revenue budget.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and
Safety and Risk Management:

The guidance contained in the Development Guidelines SPD can contribute
positively towards the issues mentioned above. Specifically, the changes made in this
First Review in relation to Houses in Multiple Occupation will support the creation
of sustainable communities and improve community cohesion.

Equality and Diversity
Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? Yes

An Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment was completed in relation to Cabinet’s
Decision to introduce an Article 4 Direction in Relation to Houses in Multiple
Occupation. The resulting actions identified were also applicable in relation to the
implementation of planning policy guidance. They were:

- Ensure consultation with diverse community groups regarding the
A4D and any associated planning policy guidance.

- Ensure that communications are accessible to people with disabilities.

= To consider the adequate provision and acceptable distribution of
HMOs through the drafting, consideration and implementation of
planning policy guidance.



Page 37

These resulting actions have been complied with fully.

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:

It is recommended that Cabinet:

I. Recommend to Full Council that the Development Guidelines Supplementary
Planning Document SPD First Review (Appendix |) be formally adopted.

Reason: To provide detailed planning guidance to support the
delivery of the Council’s policies including the creation of sustainable
communities.

2. Recommend to Full Council to delegate authority to the Assistant Director
for Planning to approve the final publication version of the Supplementary
Planning Document.

Reason: To ensure that the SPD is produced in a user-friendly format
with appropriate illustrations and formatting.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Do Not Adopt the SPD First Review: This would mean that the Council would
continue to make decisions on planning applications for Houses in Multiple
Occupation using the existing guidance. This option would not contravene any
regulations but could result in different outcomes for planning issues considered by
the Local Planning Authority.

Make Further Changes to the SPD: No further changes are considered to be
necessary, however, should significant amendments be made a further consultation
stage would be required.

Published work / information:

= Article 4 Direction: http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/article 4 direction.pdf

* Delegated Decision: Approval to Consult on the ‘Development Guidelines SPD:
First Review’, 6 September:
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.plymouth
.gov.uk%2Fmglnternet%2FieDecisionDetails.aspx%3FID%3D2233

* ‘Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document First review —
consultation draft’, 6 September: Available from the Delegated Decision above.

* Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document (Original), April 2010:
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/developmentguidelinesoriginal.htm

= Equality Impact Assessment, August 201 |:
http://www.plymouth.gsov.uk/equalitiesimpactassessments.htm

* Delegated Decision: Confirmation of Non-immediate Article 4 Direction in
Respect of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO), 27 January 2012:
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.plymouth
.gov.uk%2Fmglnternet%2FieDecisionDetails.aspx%3FID%3D2 133




Page 38

* Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Paper, Appendices and
Minutes: Article 4 Direction in Respect of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO),
9 January 2012:
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.plymouth
.gov.uk%2Fmglnternet%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D914%26amp%3BMId%
3D4669%26amp%3BVer%3D4

Cabinet Paper, Appendices and Minutes: Proposed Non-immediate Article 4
Direction for Houses in Multiple Occupation, 23 August 201 I:
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.plymouth
.gov.uk%2Fmglnternet%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCld%3D254%26amp%3BMId%
3D4699%26amp%3BVer%3D4

= Student Housing in Local Communities January 201 | (ARUP):
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/studenthousing.htm

Background papers:

Title

Part |

Part Il

Exemption Paragraph Number

2 3 4 5 6 7

Appendix | - Development
Guidelines SPD First Review
(Attached)

Consultation Summary

Consultation Statement
(Regulation 12)

Summary of Main Changes

Strategic Environmental
Assessment & Habitat
Regulations Assessment
Screening Report

Sign off:

Fin | PC.PlaceF | Leg | JAR/1712 | Mon

019.190313

PC1213 1200313

Off

THOO
98

HR

NA | Assets | NA | IT | NA | Strat
Proc

NA

Originating SMT Member Paul Barnard, Assistant Director for Planning, Directorate of Place

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? Yes




22

2.3

24

Page 39

INTRODUCTION

This report relates to the formal adoption of the ‘Development Guidelines
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): First Review’, following the making
of amendments to the draft SPD in response to public consultation. A schedule
of amendments is available as a background paper to this report. The First
Review of the SPD primarily concerns changes to the original document’s
guidelines on changes of use to Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs). The
Review was triggered by the Council’s removal of permitted development
rights for HMOs in parts of the city through an Article 4 Direction.

BACKGROUND

On the 23 August 201 |, Cabinet resolved to make a non-immediate Article 4
Direction in line with recommendations contained in the evidence base report,
Student Housing in Local Communities (January 201 ). The decision also included
a resolution to prepare supporting planning guidance to amplify existing policy
in relation to changes of use to HMOs.

The Article 4 Direction was subsequently confirmed on the 14 February 2012
and came into effect from the |4 September 2012. The effect of the Article 4
Direction is to require the submission of a planning application for properties
within the designated area for changes of use to C4 HMOs (properties that are
occupied with between 3-6 unrelated individuals subject to certain caveats).
Changes of use to ‘sui-generis’ HMOs (those that are occupied with more than
6 unrelated individuals) already require planning permission. Details of use
classes can be found in ‘Circular 08/10: Changes to Planning Regulations for
Dwellinghouses and Houses in Multiple Occupation’.

The area of the Article 4 Direction covers (approximately) the existing high
concentration areas of Mutley & Greenbank, and the City Centre. It also
provides controls in the most at risk parts of the surrounding neighbourhoods
of Stonehouse, Stoke, Peverell, Beacon & Pennycross, Hartley & Mannamead,
Higher Compton, Efford, Lipson & Laira, Mount Gould and East End, where
future pressures could harm the balance and sustainability of these
communities. This, in effect, creates a ‘buffer’ to ensure that latent demand for
HMO housing is not merely located immediately adjacent to existing high
concentration areas.

On the 6 September 2012, a delegated decision was made by the Cabinet
Member for Environment, to publicly consult on the ‘Development Guidelines
Supplementary Planning Document First Review Consultation Draft’ in
accordance with The Town and Country Planning (Local Development)
(England) Regulations 2012. The results of this consultation are summarised in
Section 5 below.

PURPOSE OF THE DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES SPD

The Development Guidelines SPD provides further guidance and explanation
to the adopted Core Strategy and will be used to inform planning decisions. In
particular it serves to amplify Policy CS34 (planning application considerations).
It aims to help improve the quality of development in Plymouth by providing



3.2

4.2

4.3

44

Page 40

user-friendly planning guidance and enabling applicants to better understand
the planning criteria by which their application has been determined.

Specific guidance in the SPD is included on:
* House alterations and extensions
= Conversions to Houses in Multiple Occupation
= Conversions to flats
* Purpose-built student housing

* New residential development including Lifetime Homes and children’s
play areas

* Food and drink uses

= Shop fronts

* Adverts and signs

= Refuse storage

* Telecommunications

» Parking standards and travel plans

* Coastal development considerations

THE CONSULTATION DOCUMENT

The changes proposed in the First Review of the SPD are primarily to provide
additional guidance about how planning applications for HMOs received by the
Council will be considered. A high concentration of shared homes can
sometimes cause problems, especially if too many properties in one area are
let to short term tenants with little stake in the local community. Existing
policies in the Core Strategy seek to create Sustainable Linked Communities
(eg Policy CSOI & CSI5) and guidance in the proposed SPD First Review
provides advice on how this can be achieved.

The SPD proposed a ‘threshold’ approach to assessing the concentrations of
HMO:s. This is to allow for considered decisions to be made on a case by case
basis using an understanding of the area to assess the impact that the proposal
may have using the evidence available.

It is proposed that applications are assessed at three scales — the street, the
Census output area and the local area — to provide a complete picture.
Evidence held by the Council regarding Council tax exempt properties,
licensed properties and those known to have planning permission, along with
any reasonably verifiable information provided by the community or applicant,
subject to certain criteria, can be used when reaching a decision.

The proposals continue to provide a presumption in favour of purpose built
student accommodation rather than smaller HMOs in order to meet the needs
of the city and reduce pressure on the city’s housing stock.



52

5.3

54

55

Page 41

CONSULTATION PROCESS AND RESULTS

Formal consultation was carried out on the document for six weeks between
the 2012 September to | November 2012. The consultation process included a
press advertisement, publication on the Council’s website, notification through
the consultation portal and availability at libraries and First Stop. The
consultation process was carried out in accordance with our Statement of
Community Involvement and the statutory requirements for the adoption of
Supplementary Planning Document contained in The Town and Country
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012.

Through the consultation nine responses were received. Five were from
members of the public. Four were on behalf of British Sign and Graphics
Association, the Environment Agency, English Heritage and Natural England. In
addition, three responses were also received in relation to the associated
‘Strategic Environmental Assessment & Habitat Regulations Assessment
Screening Report’ from the Environment Agency, English Heritage and Natural
England.

All of the comments received during the consultation process have been
summarised into a ‘consultation statement’ which includes responses and how
those comments have been addressed in the SPD. The consultation statement
is available as a background paper to this report. It should be noted that
although the main focus of the review was the guidance on planning
applications relating to HMOs, representations were able to be submitted on
any part of the original SPD and this is reflected in the representations
received.

As a result of the comments received some minor amendments have been
made, a summary of which is below:

* Contact details updated for Devon Sea Fisheries
* Updated reference to advertisement regulations

» Revised wording and clarification in relation to advertisement guidance.
Paragraphs 5.3.3, 5.3.5, 5.3.7 and 5.3.8.

=  Reference to the Water Framework Directive included.

As a result of the comments received some amendments have also been made
to the Strategic Environmental Assessment & Habitat Regulations Assessment
Screening Report, a summary of which are is set out below:

= Specific reference in section 2 on the Core Strategy Policies that the
document amplifies.

* Addition of an appendix summarising the conclusions of the Core
Strategy HRA (Habitat Regulations Assessment).

» Additional detail on how the marine developments section of the SPD
address the need identified in the Core Strategy HRA.

NEXT STEPS

Subject to Cabinet approval the document will go before Full Council for a
resolution to formally adopt the document. Subject to Full Council’s approval,
the document will then be adopted and published. An Adoption Statement will



Page 42

be produced and this will be published alongside the SPD as soon as reasonably
practicable.

6.2 The Development Guidelines SPD First Review will continue the important
role in helping to raise the quality of development within the city. It will be
used as a material consideration in the determination of planning applications.



Page 43

Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning
Document First Review

Full Council version - amended on 10 April 2013 to reflect non-material changes.

MBIASY 1SJI4 JUBWINO0(]

)
@
<
®
o)
)
3
@
>
=
@
=
o
o
=
@
(7]
n
[
g
j=i
@
3
@
>
=
)
<
)
)
>
=
=




Page 44

Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning

Document First Review




1

INEPOAUCTION .. 7
T INEFOAUCTION ..o 7
1.2  Status of this Supplementary Planning Document ..., 8
1.3  How to use this Supplementary Planning Document ... 9
1.4 Contacts for further @adviCe ... 9
House extensions and alterations, residential conversions and
development of NeW hOMeS ... 11
2.1 INEOAUCTION ..o 11
2.2 Householder extensions and alterations ..., 12
2.3  Further information and additional considerations relating to house
extensions and alterations ... 31
2.4  Checklist for planning applications: house extensions and alterations
........................................................................................................................................................................... 33
2.5 Conversions to HMOs and flats ... 33
2.6 Further information and additional considerations for conversions
t0 HMOS @nd flats ... 40
2.7  Checklist for planning applications: conversions to HMOs and flats
........................................................................................................................................................................... 41
2.8 Detailed considerations for residential developments ... 42
2.9 Further information and additional considerations for residential
AEVEIOPMENT ..o 54
2.10 Checklist for planning applications: residential development
CONSIAEIALIONS ..o 54
FOoOod and drinK USES ... 55
3.1 INTOAUCHION ..o 95
3.2 Planning CoNSIAEratioNns ... 56
3.3  Further information and additional considerations for food and drink
USES ...oeerereresesses e e e e 61
3.4  Checklist for food and drink planning applications ... 63
SROP FTONES ...t 65
4.1 INEFOAUCTION ..o 65
4.2  Planning conSiderations ... 65

SjUsU0D




@)
(®)
S
—
@
S
~
»

Page 46

4.3  Historic shop fronts guUIdanCe ... 73
4.4  City Centre shop fronts planning guidance ... 74
4.5 Further information and additional considerations for shop fronts ... 75
4.6 Checklist for shop front planning applications ... 76
Outdoor signs and advertisements ..., 77
.1 INEFOAUCHION ..o 77
5.2  Planning conSIAerations ... 78
5.3  Historic buildings: shop front SIGNS ... 80
5.4  City Centre: shop front SIgNS ... 81
5.5  Further information on signs and advertisements ..............o..... 82
5.6  Checklist for applications for signs and advertisements ... 82
Refuse storage facilities ... 83
6.1 INrOAUCTION ....oo s s 83
6.2 Refuse storage gUIdElNES ... 83
6.3 Residential development — refuse storage ..., 86
6.4  Shopping development (including food and drink uses) ... 89
6.5 Industrial/commercial development ... 90
6.6  Access for refuse collection vehicles ... 90
6.7 Dimensions of standard refuse and recycling containers ... 92
6.8 Furtherinformation and additional considerations for refuse storage
........................................................................................................................................................................... 93
6.9 Checklist for planning applications: refuse storage provision ... 93
TeleCOMMUNICALIONS ... 95
T INITOAUGCHION ..o 95
7.2 Planning conSIiderations ... 96
7.3  Further information on telecommunications ... 100
7.4  Checklist for planning applications: telecommunications ... 100
Parking standards and travel plans ... 101
8.1 INrOAUGCHION ..o 101
8.2 Parking standards for new residential development ... 101




Page 47

8.3  Non-residential parking standards ... 103
8.4  Travel plans and car park management plans ..., 110
8.5 Controlled parking ZONES ... seeeeesseee e 111
8.6  Methodology for calculating accessibility ..., 112
8.7  Further information on parking standards and travel plans ... 115
8.8  Checklist for applications: parking standards and travel plans .......... 115
9 Coastal development considerations ... 117
9.1 INFOAUCTION ..o 117
9.2 Relevant planning POLICIES ... 118
9.3 Environmental designations in the coastal zone ... 119
9.4 Considerations for coastal development ..., 123
9.5 Minimising the ecological impacts of development ... 126
9.6 Consents for development within the coastal zone ... 131
9.7  Further information ... 133

10 GIOSSANY OF LIS ....oooooeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 139

SjUsU0D




Page 48

i



Page 49

1 Introduction

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1  The aim of this Supplementary Planning Document is to provide guidance
to support policies set out in the Local Development Framework Core Strategy. This
document will form part of the package of Local Development Documents within
the Development Plan as required under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004. It will assist the City Council in delivering the local, sub-regional, regional
and national objectives in respect of sustainable development. It has been prepared
in accordance with the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework and the
associated Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations
2012.

1.1.1a The Development Guidelines SPD was first adopted on the 26 April 2010.
This First Review incorporates amendments to Chapter 2 in relation to conversions
to HMOs and flats. Primarily the additional guidelines are relevant to planning
applications for changes of use to Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs). The
amendments have been necessary because of the creation of an Article 4 Direction
by the Council which requires planning permission for changes of use to HMOs that
would otherwise not require consent.

1.1.2 This document is designed to be thought provoking by identifying planning
considerations and guidance in relation to different types of development. It is also
designed to be informative — providing clear explanations and links to further sources
of information and guidance.

1.1.3 The aimis to:

e Improve the quality of planning applications by providing user-friendly guidelines

e Improve the speed and quality of planning decisions

e Improve the transparency of decision-making so that applicants can better
understand the criteria by which their application has been decided

e Signpost developers, applicants and officers to further sources of information
and additional considerations

e Improve the quality of development in Plymouth.

1.1.4 The guidance in this Supplementary Planning Document relates to the
following types of development:

Residential (including house extensions and alterations)
Food and drink uses

Shop fronts

Signs and advertisements

Refuse storage

Telecommunications

3

=
—
=
o
Q.
[
Q
==
o
5




3

=1
=
=
o
o
c
o
=3
o
=

Page 50

Parking standards and travel plans
Coastal development considerations.

1.1.5 This Supplementary Planning Document should be read alongside the
Design Supplementary Planning Document which provides detailed guidance about
the distinctive elements and unique characteristics of the city and how these should
be recognised and used to inform new development in order to support the
development of sustainable neighbourhoods. The Development Guidelines
Supplementary Planning Document complements the Design Supplementary
Planning Document by providing guidance on detailed planning considerations
relating to a range of development, including householder development.

1.1.6 The inclusion of guidance on coastal development issues within this
Supplementary Planning Document removes the requirement for a separate coastal
Supplementary Planning Document.

1.2 Status of this Supplementary Planning Document

1.21  This Supplementary Planning Document will be one of a number of
documents constituting important material considerations in the determination of
planning applications. Proposals for development will need to take into consideration
the guidance set out in this Supplementary Planning Document, wherever relevant,
within the context of the policies that are identified in the Core Strategy, other relevant
Development Plan Documents and national policy.

1.2.2 The guidance set out in this SPD will be implemented primarily through the
development management process.

This Supplementary Planning Document represents the Council’s most up-to-date
guidance, superseding the following Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes:

1 — House Extensions (1995)

2 — House and Roof Alterations (1995)

3 — Shopfront Design (1995)

4 — Shop Signs and Advertisements (1995)

5 — Food and Drink (1995)

6 — Houses in Multiple Occupation (1999)

7 — Protecting and Providing for Wildlife in Development (1999)
8 — Childcare Facilities (1999)

9 — Refuse Storage Provision in Residential Areas (1999)

10 — Amusement Centres (1999)




Page 51

11 — The Provision of Children’s Play Space in New Residential Development (1999).
1.3 How to use this Supplementary Planning Document

1.3.1  The Supplementary Planning Document is divided into nine chapters — each
dealing with a different aspect of development. Each chapter is structured as follows:

e Anintroduction to the topic with links to relevant Core Strategy policies and
national guidance

e Planning considerations in relation to the development

e Links to further sources of information and guidance

e A checklist for planning applications.

1.4 Contacts for further advice
For advice on submitting a planning application please contact:

Development Management Unit

Department of Development and Regeneration
Plymouth City Council

Civic Centre

Plymouth

PL1 2AA

Email: planningconsents@plymouth.gov.uk

Tel: 01752 304366
For general planning policy advice please contact:

Planning Policy

Department of Development
Plymouth City Council

Civic Centre

Plymouth

PL1 2AA

Email: planningpolicy@plymouth.gov.uk

Tel: 01752 304145

3

=
—
=
o
Q.
[
Q
==
o
5




Page 52

1 Introduction




Page 53

2 House extensions and alterations, residential
conversions and development of new homes

2.1 Introduction

2.1.1 The purpose of this chapter is to provide guidance in relation to certain types
of residential development. The aim of this guidance is to achieve high quality
development that reflects the needs and aspirations of existing and future residents.

2.1.2 The guidance in this chapter primarily supports Core Strategy Policy CS15
(Overall Housing Provision) and Policy CS34 (Planning Application Considerations)
but also relates to Policy CS01 (Development of Sustainable Linked Communities),
Policy CS02 (Design), Policy CS20 (Sustainable Resource Use) and Policy CS22
(Pollution). It also reflects national guidance in Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3)
which seeks to ensure that everyone has the opportunity of living in a decent home.
PPS3 requires residential development to:

e Integrate with, and complement, the neighbouring buildings and the local area

in terms of scale, density, layout and access

Facilitate the efficient use of resources, during construction and in use

Adapt to and reduce the impact of, and on, climate change

Take a design-led approach to the provision of car-parking space

Create, or enhance, a distinctive character that relates well to the surroundings

and supports a sense of local pride and civic identity

e Provide for the retention or re-establishment of the biodiversity within residential
environments.

2.1.3 The chapter covers planning considerations in relation to:

° House extensions and alterations
e Residential conversions to:

Houses in Multiple Occupation
Flat conversions

e Detailed considerations for residential development
e  Purpose-built student housing
e Lifetime Homes.

2.1.4 Guidance is also included on the design of children’s play space as part of
new residential developments.

2.1.5 The planning considerations and guidance related to these types of
residential development are presented in the following sections:

Sections 2.2 - 2.4 — Householder extensions and alterations

Sections 2.5 - 2.7 — Conversions to HMOs and flats

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 54

Sections 2.8 - 2.10 — Detailed considerations for residential development

2.1.6 The guidance set out in this chapter does not aim to be overly prescriptive.
The Council recognises that the characteristics of each site will be different and that
what is inappropriate at one location could be appropriate in another. Additionally,
the Council does not wish to discourage imaginative design solutions appropriate
to their context. This guidance does, however, set out a benchmark for protecting
the character and amenities of local neighbourhoods and for driving up the quality
of the urban environment.

2.2 Householder extensions and alterations

2.2.1 House extensions or alterations can provide valuable additional space for
households and improve the quality of accommodation. However, if not thoughtfully
carried out, they can lead to problems for adjoining householders and can contribute
to a decline in residential amenity. As most dwellings were not originally designed
to be extended, careful thought must be given to the impact any additions could
have on adjoining properties, and the visual appearance of an area.

2.2.2 The aim of this section is to set out guidance and considerations to ensure
that house extensions and alterations:

e Arein keeping with the appearance of the existing house and character of the
area

e Provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation to occupants of homes that
are to be extended and to neighbouring properties.

2.2.3 This section covers the following considerations:
2.2.4 Considerations applicable to all householder development, including:

e Visual impact
e Physical impact on neighbours.

2.2.5 Considerations relating to specific types of house extension and alteration,
including:

Front extensions

Side extensions

Corner plot extensions

Rear extensions

Roof extensions

Garages, car ports and hard-standings
Boundary walls and fences

Extensions for dependent relatives.




Page 55

2.2.6 Some proposed house extensions will be permitted development and in
these cases you will not need to make a planning application. If you intend to extend
your home it is always advisable to check with planning officers whether a planning
application is required.

2.2.7 The construction of an extension which requires but does not have planning
permission can have frustrating and costly implications for the owners. The Council
can take legal action against any unauthorised extensions.

2.2.8 Inthe case of high density development, where a site has been developed
to capacity, the option of removing permitted development rights for house extensions
will be considered.

2.2.9 In respect to extensions to houses which are listed or located within a
Conservation Area, particular care will be needed to protect the property’s and
area’s historic character. Special considerations may thus apply to proposals. Special
advice concerning these matters and the consents that you will need can be obtained
from the Council’s planning officers.

Further information is also available on the Council’'s website:
www.plymouth.qgov.uk/historicenvironment

2.210 If your extension is for someone with a disability it is best to consult with
planning officers at an early stage. Wherever possible, we will support proposals
that are for the sole benefit of someone with a disability. However, it is still important
to apply the design principles in this guide, in particular to ensure that neighbours
are not adversely affected by your proposals.

Visual impact

2.2.11 Extensions and alterations should relate well to the main dwelling and
character of the area. They should generally follow the same architectural style and
use the same materials as the original dwelling. Proposals should also respect the
character of the area, including building form and layout, architectural style and
materials. Diagrams 2.1 and 2.2 illustrate some common design terms associated
with house alterations and extensions.

2.212 Occasionally, extensions which differ or even contrast with the original
property can be acceptable. It is not the aim of the Council to stifle imaginative
schemes. However, even where materials or designs contrast there should still be
a harmonious relationship with the main body of the property being extended.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




Page 56

RIDGE
the highest point of the roof geometry

ROOF WINDOW
a sloped window used for daylighting,
built into a roof structure

DOUBLE-PITCHED ROOF

LS a roof with two gradient exposure planes
GABLE > " " € -1 PARAPET
triangle formed by a wall-like barrier at the edge of a roof,
the edges of a pitched roof ¢ terrace, balcony or other structure
s ¥ .
- $= ' . Tt !
ORIEL WINDOW > 1 | | EAVES
a type of bay window, jutting out from -~ ¢ bottom edge of reof, usually projecting beyond
the main wall of the building 1 ' external walls to provide weather protection
but not reaching to the ground . :
FAGADE > ) — T SorAr

the exposed undersurface of any exterior

the external face of the building walls 2 =
9 overhanging section of a roof eave

BAY WINDOW t t =
a multi-panel window, with at least ' | |
three panels set at different angles ||

to create a protrusion from the wall line

oON
S
I
82
b @
gco
» 2
m!—'-
> 3
o »
Q o
oS
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=N
o =
5 O
2 3
s
3_1
2 &
CBDE_'
w3
=
QO

Diagram 2.1 - Technical terms for house design

HIPPED ROOF HIPPED ROOF HALF-HIP ROOF gggELE‘PTTCHED :gg?'PUCH
with ridge point (with ridge) the upper paint of the gable is !
.-(gll sqdesglog: da)wnwards replaced by a small hip, (gabled roof) (sloping roof)
to the building walls squaring off 'd1_e top of the gable | ,
f N
N 4
< ket = T 1] L
| L — |
— J

Diagram 2.2 - Technical terms for roof designs

Materials

2.2.13 Materials used in house alterations or extensions should generally match
those of the existing house and relate to the surrounding area. It is important to
consider the impact of weathering on the colour and texture of materials and ensure
that small but important details, such as mortar colour and bonding style, are correct.

2.2.14 Using good quality materials will improve the appearance of the property
and lead to lower maintenance costs over time.




Page 57

2.2.15 A condition may be applied to require particular materials to be used; for
example, to match the appearance of the existing house.

Roofs

2.216 The shape and pitch of roofs on house extensions should mirror those of
the original home. Flat roofs will be discouraged where they are not a feature of the
original house, although they can sometimes be acceptable at the rear of properties,
particularly where they are not prominent and help to reduce the height of an
extension.

2.217 The colour and shape of roofing materials should reflect those of the original
home, especially where the roof is visible from the street.

Windows

2.2.18 The positioning and design of windows is crucial to achieving a unified
exterior. The windows in an extension should reflect the proportions of the existing
windows. The size, shape and materials of windows should correspond with the
existing windows and it is vital that the horizontal and/or vertical divisions of individual
windows match.

2.219 Habitable room windows should be positioned to maximise available
daylight and sunlight.

Physical impact on neighbours

2.2.20 Applicants should be aware of the Council’s responsibility to protect the
existing amenities of all people. This section sets out guidance in order to ensure
that any alteration or extension does not have an unsatisfactory effect on the
standard of living offered to occupants of homes that are to be extended and their
neighbouring properties.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
mI—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S

I
82
b @
gco
» 2
m!—'-
> 3
o »
Q o
oS
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=N
o =
5 O
2 3
s
3_1
2 &
CBDE_'
w3
=
QO

Page 58

Privacy
I i
|
—1 !
Jr.J!'_'\I X _". -_"II ‘."—'I III T '-TI T [ | — — S ||
/A S S W W S W R OO | OOg | 7 4
/ / \ | | — L S ! /
/o I
\‘. - I'ul IJ'L'. ] T _'l W T 1 7777777 ¢ I TTTT7T77TT
/ N | S, W | __‘.‘_ b LU 'Il_ _ L i }] | | f /— | —
~ I/ 11 EEEEE———— | S LTS S
o~ ) f ‘Hﬁ A
."l -'ll i |I -~
I
[ min12m __\ /
~ I 4 T
". ._i ‘ ||r
i\ [ —lrL—' —
L [y
A — ]
A\ min 21m |f /A \
0 4 | )
W i \/ 7
Y l.l I' ,
AL I i \
{ |7 e v/ )
\/ —— e A
) \/ | e S - IIF '
A p——— ¥
N Y a \V
{ ) .‘}, "n,‘ '. /
" I,-"ll‘ III'\ -’:l
\ lll, IIrII.’I
/ ‘-
N v
- -— =
\ .

Diagram 2.3 - Minimum distance between habitable room windows

2.2.21 The levels of privacy expected from a residential environment will differ
depending upon the location. Within the older, more densely developed
neighbourhoods of Plymouth such as the Barbican, Stonehouse and Devonport, it
is not unreasonable to assume that privacy might be less than in lower-density
neighbourhoods of the city.

2.2.22 Thefollowing guidelines are intended to ensure that house extensions and
alterations do not result in a harmful loss of privacy to neighbouring properties, but
should be applied flexibly to reflect the character of the neighbourhood.

2.2.23 Habitable room windows facing directly opposite one another should
normally be a minimum of 21 metres apart for a two-storey development, as shown
in Diagram 2.3. This distance should be increased to 28 metres when one or more
of the buildings are 3 storeys in height. An exception may be allowed where the
proposed extension is single storey and there is a boundary wall between the
properties.

2.2.24 Problems concerning privacy can sometimes be overcome by relocating
windows, or by the installation of roof lights. Obscure glass can be an appropriate
solution if the facing window serves a non-habitable room such as a bathroom.




Page 59

2.2.25 The following requirements may be applied as planning conditions to
protect privacy.

A requirement for:

e  Obscure glazing of windows
e  Non-opening windows.

Balconies and roof gardens

2.2.26 Balconies and roof gardens are often unacceptable in urban areas because
of the impact they can have on the privacy of neighbours. In assessing a proposal
for a balcony or roof garden the degree of overlooking will be considered.

2.2.27 Balconies or roof gardens in proposed extensions should not be sited so
that they impinge to an unacceptable extent on the privacy of neighbours’ gardens
or habitable rooms. However, a balcony that is set back within an extension on the
rear elevation of a house may sometimes be acceptable as the extent of potential
overlooking is then reduced.

Decking, terraces and patios

2.2.28 Decking and other similar developments can lead to problems of
overlooking, particularly in sloping gardens, and will therefore be resisted if they
would create an unacceptable loss of privacy for neighbouring properties.

2.2.29 Screening or fencing may be used to overcome any overlooking problems
but must be of a scale that does not unreasonably affect the outlook or daylight of
the neighbouring property. Overlooking can also be reduced by positioning decking,
a terrace or patio away from the property boundary.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
mI—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S

I
82
b @
gco
» 2
m!—'-
> 3
o »
Q o
oS
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=N
o =
5 O
2 3
s
3_1
2 &
CBDE_'
w3
=
QO

Page 60

Diagram 2.4 - Distance between habitable room window and blank facing wall

+ 3m

._-_-__.'l‘.

e s <

" 4+ 2m
B

R e e e e

Diagram 2.5 - Difference in ground level

2.2.30 An extension should not be constructed in close proximity to either a main
window of a neighbouring property, or its private garden, where it would have an
unacceptable overbearing effect on a household’s outlook. Views from a private
house or garden, however, are not safeguarded by planning legislation.




Page 61

2.2.31 In order to protect the outlook of neighbouring properties, the minimum
distance between a main habitable room window and a blank wall, should normally
be at least 12 metres (see Diagram 2.4). This distance should be increased for a
three-storey development, normally to at least 15 metres.

2.2.32 Where there is a difference in ground levels between neighbouring
properties, then the minimum distance between them should be increased, normally
by an extra 3 metres for every 2 metres increase in height, as shown in Diagram
2.5.

Daylight and sunlight

2.2.33 Extensions should not result in a significant loss of daylight or sunlight to
habitable rooms of neighbouring properties, such as kitchens, living rooms or
bedrooms. An extension should also not lead to an unsatisfactory loss of light to
the property being extended.

2.2.34 Proposals which would result in a harmful loss of daylight or sunlight to a
neighbouring property will be refused.

2.2.35 In order to ensure that a proposed development will not cause a harmful
loss of daylight the 45 degree guideline should be followed.

The 45 degree guideline
— . 'y o 1t 1] —b —k —t |
V /) t \ {| [N\ \ ]
=y |/ / /_/ I| Tt it 1l o= 77 1 |'| N\ \ \
N { | b
/ Lj } J | | \ N
i ' | l—l \I 4
b l | I
1 )
'| J | /
( H" | A )
e | ] % ,’I |
I'I" ll,i / l | \\ | o
— e /‘- } \\\\ \\ |III
\ t\v\.ro/xstore',!r extens;én! 1 Z> L [ ‘\ L\ N b
\ muist not encroach ypon J |_[ b - ‘ \ I/
45° plane taliep from quarter/pouﬁt { A i \ \ \\
/ | ! \ .
- / i Tt T \
\ ! I/ V- ~ [ | € \ single store extension \
'u // / f PAg l i1/q'fz| b | must noter‘r&r t‘e upon \
(T f, | || r_‘ L s A \ 1 45° plane takta\nf \rn centre point
/ | \ [ e | <cass |~ ’ \ )
J f N S \ h 1 ' \
5 lane s S | o d \
taken from quartes point | - V| [ \ \
| I | I
of nﬂghbour g indow '. - I| I, .~ |
- ™~ i
e | | ~ f— 45° plane raken \\
/] l/ [ | ~ from centre point o& \
/ / | ] ¥ neighbouring windo (

Diagram 2.6 - The 45 degree guideline

2.2.36 The Council uses the 45 degree guideline to assess a proposal’s impact
on light to neighbouring properties.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
ml—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 62

2.2.37 Animaginary line at an angle of 45 degrees is drawn from a point within
the window of the closest ground floor habitable room of the neighbouring property
towards and across the site of the proposed extension or new development (see
Diagram 2.6). If there is more than one window lighting this room, the line is taken
from the window which is the main source of light. This line will show the maximum
width and/or depth that a proposed extension can build up to without obstructing
light or views to a neighbouring property.

2.2.38 The 45 degree guideline is relevant to both single and two-storey house
extensions. For a single-storey extension, the line is drawn from the mid-point of
the window. For a two-storey extension, the line is taken from the quarter point
closest to the boundary (as shown in Diagram 2.6).

2.2.39 House extensions are normally only considered acceptable if they do not
cross the 45 degrees line. Relaxation of this guideline may be considered for
light-weight, transparent structures such as conservatories, or where the orientation
of the properties concerned means that the guideline can be relaxed. Relaxation
may also be considered where there is a difference in ground levels between
adjacent sites or where there is a high boundary wall between two properties.

Front extensions

2.2.40 The front of a dwelling is usually the most visible part of the building. It
often follows a clear building line, helping to define the character of the street.

2.2.41 Extensions that project forward of the existing house will generally be
resisted. Where a street has a clear established building line, the only development
that might be acceptable at the front is likely to be a small, sympathetically designed
porch (see Diagram 2.7). In certain circumstances an exception may be allowed
where there is no obvious building line, where the property is set back from other
houses, or where front extensions are a feature of houses in the street.




Page 63

a front extension projecting
significantly beyond the established
building line will be resisted |

a sympathetically designed porch -
may be acceptable

Diagram 2.7 - Front extensions
Side extensions

2.2.42 |Inorderto ensure that a side extension does not over-dominate the existing
house or street-scene, it should generally be subordinate (smaller) in scale to the
original dwelling and set back from the front of the property, especially in a street
characterised by regularly spaced properties of similar design and scale.

2.2.43 The individual characteristics of the site and proposal will determine the
exact set back distance required, however a distance less than 1 metre will rarely
be considered acceptable, as shown in Diagram 2.8.

2.2.44 \Where an extension is set back, the roof of the extension should be lower
than that of the main house. This ensures that the extension is subordinate. Side
extensions should also be of a width to ensure they appear less important than the
original dwelling.

2.2.45 Insome situations the erection of a two-storey side extension could create
or contribute to an effect known as ‘terracing’. This is where side extensions almost
link up with neighbouring properties, leading to the appearance of a terraced street
(as shown in Diagram 2.8). Piecemeal joining up of individual properties is also
likely to appear shoddy and the loss of space can be harmful to the whole character
and amenity of an area.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
mI—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 64

2.2.46 To avoid a terracing effect, a gap should be left between the extension
and the boundary with the neighbouring property. This gap should generally be at
least 1.5 metres wide (refer to Diagram 2.8). Where it is not feasible to leave a gap,
an alternative is to set the extension further back from the front of the house. The
required set-back distance to avoid the appearance of terracing will vary, however
a set-back distance of at least 2 metres may be necessary.

adjoinikg extensions should

+ L B | | o | +
I | |1 \ extension should sit at least 1.5m generally be avoided

from the property boundary

A5

) nim

Diagram 2.8 - Side extensions and terracing effect

2.2.47 \Where there is an existing or a proposed ground floor extension that is not
set back from the front of the house, then a proposed first floor extension should
normally be set back by at least 2 metres to ensure that subordination is maintained
and terracing avoided.

2.248 Exceptions to these guidelines may be allowed in detached buildings which
have their own individual design.

Corner plot extensions

2.2.49 Corner plots are prominent sites. Often corner plots are left undeveloped
to create a spacious feel in an area or to ensure highway safety.

2.2.50 A corner extension should demonstrate that it will have a positive effect
on the street-scene. It should be set back from both front and rear elevations, and
generally be at least 3 metres from the pavement edge (see Diagram 2.9).
Two-storey side extensions have a greater visual impact than single-storey




Page 65

extensions. For such cases, particular care will be needed to ensure that both the
front and side elevations relate well to the street-scene of the adjacent streets. Blank
walls should be avoided as they detract from the street-scene and reduce natural
surveillance.

side extensions on corner plots should not extend
all the way to the plot boundary, overstep the building line
or present a blank street frontage

Ay

(@)
(@]
>
<
)
=S
@,
(@]
>
n
Q
>
o
o
D
<
@
(@]
©
3
D
>
: =L
i o
. =
>
()]
<
0
(@]
3
(0]
n

N
I
o)
C
(%]
®
0
X
(=
@
=]
28
o
=]
7
o
-]
o
O
~—
@
-
Q
=
o
-]
[
—
®
@,
o
o)
>
=
o

building line

Diagram 2.9 - Corner extensions




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 66

Rear extensions

2.2.51 An extension at the rear of a dwelling is usually less visible than a side or
front extension; however it can sometimes be seen from public areas. A rear
extension should be in keeping with the main dwelling and the character of the area.
An extension that follows an unusual layout may affect the character of the area
and will therefore need careful consideration.

Roof extensions

2.2.52 Extending into roof space is a popular way of creating more residential
accommodation, but roof extensions are likely to be prominent over a wide area
because of their height. It is important therefore to ensure that all roof alterations
are of a high quality and relate well to the original home and the street-scene.

2.2.53 Wherever possible, a roof extension should be located at the rear of the
property to minimise its impact on the street. Where the rear of the building is very
prominent, such as at the end of a terrace or street, roof extensions must be of
exceptional quality to be acceptable. Side extensions on hipped roofs are also
particularly sensitive because of their prominence and impact on the symmetry of
a building.

Roof windows/ skylights

2.2.54 These types of window usually lie flush with the profile of the roof. Providing
enough head room can be created, these are normally the best option for roof
extensions as they allow the profile of the roof to remain intact and are likely to have
less visual impact on neighbouring properties.

Dormer windows

2.2.55 Proposals for dormer windows will be considered based on their impact
on the dwelling, the street-scene and neighbours’ amenity. Dormer windows should
not dominate a building and should sit comfortably within the roof space. If it is
necessary to create a large area in the roof space it is generally preferable to
construct a number of small dormers rather than a single large roof extension.




Page 67

dormers should sit comfortably within the roof space and
respect the scale and proportion of the original dwelling

roof extensions should be located at the rear of properties,
front dormers are only acceptable where they are a feature of the surrounding area

dormers should be aligned with windows below

6&7 - ~— large, ill-proportioned"box type" roof extensions will be resisted

Diagram 2.10 - Dormer windows

2.2.56 Dormer windows should relate well to the building with respect to materials,
scale, shape and angle of roof. The front and sides of the dormer should be covered
in a material that matches, or is in harmony with, that of the existing roof. The style
and sub-division of windows should relate to those that exist elsewhere on the
building.

2.2.57 The positioning of dormer windows is important. They should not appear
squashed towards any of the roof edges and should be proportionate to the existing
windows below as shown in Diagram 2.10.

2.2.58 Dormer windows are only acceptable on the front roof of a property if this
is a feature of nearby properties and if they are sensitively designed and located.

2.2.59 Dormer windows on side roofs are particularly sensitive because of their
prominence and impact on the symmetry of a building. Side dormers that unbalance
the symmetry of a building are generally unacceptable. Only small, appropriately
designed and positioned dormers are likely to be acceptable.

2.2.60 Dormer windows are generally more appropriate at the rear of a property
providing they are located below ridge height and are sympathetically designed.
Where the rear of the building is very prominent, such as at the end of some terraces,
design criteria will be stricter.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
ml—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 68

2.2.61 ltis particularly important to ensure that the positioning of dormer windows
does not cause harm to the privacy of neighbouring properties.

Garages, car ports and hard-standings

2.2.62 Provision for off-road car parking is popular, especially where on-street
parking is limited, but must be carried out in a sensitive way so as not to detract
from the character of the area or reduce highway or pedestrian safety.

2.2.63 The following considerations apply:

Highway safety
Impact on neighbours
Visual amenity/ street-scene.

garages attached to the side of the dwelling they should generally be set backwards
should follow the same guidelines as from the original building, unless integrated
side extensions well into the original design

"box-like" garages protruding past the established building line will be resisted

Diagram 2.11 - Garages

Highway safety

2.2.64 \When determining planning applications the protection of both pedestrian
and vehicle safety is paramount.

Further information on garage and driveway dimensions can be found in the Devon
Design Guide: www.devon.gov.uk/highwaysdesignguide

2.2.65 Itis important that obstruction is not caused to the highway. For example,
garage doors must not project over a pavement or road either during opening or
when open. Off-road car parking must be designed so that cars do not overhang
the highway, for example when a car is parked prior to a garage being opened. To




Page 69

overcome this, when a driveway is in front of a garage, it should be a minimum of
5.5 metres long. Where a driveway is used by pedestrians to gain access to a
property it should be at least 3 metres wide.

2.2.66 To enable easy manoeuvring in and out of a garage or car parking area,
entrances should be designed so that a vehicle can enter or exit in a single turning
movement. Where the entrance is on to a classified road, then there must be room
for the vehicle to enter and exit in a forward gear.

Impact on neighbours

2.2.67 The construction of an off-street parking area should not negatively affect
occupants of neighbouring properties. Proposals which are likely to create a
disturbance in a residential area will be refused permission.

2.2.68 Withrespectto garages, particular attention needs to be paid to the impact
on neighbours’ outlook and light (please refer to guidance set out in paragraphs
2.2.20 t0 2.2.39).

Visual amenity/ street-scene

WreN

Diagram 2.12 - Garages in sloping front garden

2.2.69 The design of a garage, whether attached to the property or freestanding,
should relate well in scale and proportion to the original dwelling and to the
surrounding area (see Diagram 2.11). Attention should be paid to the design of all
parts of the structure including doors, walls and roofs. Where a garage is attached
to a house it is usually preferable to set it back from the front of the property unless
it can be linked into the front of the house in a pleasing manner (refer to paragraphs
2.2.42 to 2.2.48 for side extensions).

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
o




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
m‘_.-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 70

2.2.70 Garages in front gardens will generally be resisted as these are prominent
sites and can detract from the street-scene. In exceptional circumstances, garages
in sloping front gardens may be allowed if the majority of the garage can be built
into the garden (see Diagram 2.12).

2.2.71 Proposals should not lead to the destruction of trees or walls that are
important to the street-scene.

Hard-standings

2.2.72 Ithas become popular to pave over front gardens to provide parking space.
Although this may be a convenient way of providing off-street parking, it can be
detrimental on amenity, safety and environmental grounds.

Lrmmma

the lise lof planting t(}_'S_C%_n
paring @reas is encourage

T (e v e = = e e, )

|EEEEEEEREEEE]

= )
= & PN
2 keep hardstanding to a minimum
\ :== W =
- /f
Q 2
¥ Y do not remove the boundary wall
keep pedestrian access sfparate from vehide access et T Be oL

min|mise pavement
(but providk 2.7m remmmegad min width)
Z N

Diagram 2.13 - Hard-standings

2.2.73 In assessing proposals, the Council will have regard to the impact of the
proposal on the street-scene, highway safety and drainage.

2.2.74 The following guidelines should be borne in mind:

e Retain as much original walling, fencing or railings as practical to ensure the
appearance of enclosure is preserved. Full frontage crossings will not generally

be permitted.




Page 71

e Incorporate sufficient space for soft landscaping to screen cars and minimise
the visual impact of the hard surfaced area, as shown in Diagram 2.13.

e Use permeable or porous surfacing material, such as gravel, permeable concrete
block paving or porous asphalt, to allow rainwater to drain through to the subsaoil,
or allow the rainwater to drain into a lawn or border.

More information about how to pave your front garden in a sustainable way is
available on the Planning Portal (www.planningportal.gov.uk).You can also refer to
the publication ‘Guidance on the permeable surfacing of front gardens’ which is
available on www.communities.gov.uk

Parking to the rear of a property

2.2.75 The Council will resist any planning applications which propose the total
removal of rear boundary walls, and/or opening up of rear curtilages to accommodate
off-street parking where this would be prejudicial to security and visual amenity.

Boundary walls and fences

2.2.76 Boundary walls and fences mark the boundary of a property and maintain
the privacy and security of occupiers. The design and location of walls and fences
can, however, have a significant impact on the appearance of the street-scene and
on highway safety.

2.2.77 Whether or not you need to submit a planning application when building
or replacing a fence, garden wall or gate depends on a number of factors, including
height and position.

2.2.78 In determining planning applications for the erection or alteration of
boundary walls/ fences, the Council will normally have regard to the following
considerations:

e Visual impact
e Highway safety
e Impact on neighbours.

More information about garden walls and fences is available on the Planning Portal
(www.planningportal.gov.uk).

Visual impact

2.2.79 The height and appearance of walls and fences should reflect the character
of the existing street-scene, as shown in Diagram 2.14. Materials should relate to
their surroundings in respect of colour and texture. Clearly, a wall or fence positioned
at the front of a property is usually quite sensitive and should not normally be of a
height or material that would appear bleak, intimidating or out of character with its
surroundings.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
mI—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 72

boun:lgy fences between properties

—should provide adequate privacy

high, blank and unwelcoming solid walls
on the street frontage will be resisted

Diagram 2.14 - Boundary walls and fences

2.2.80 In residential areas which are open plan in nature, especially when they
are subject to a restrictive condition imposed on the original planning permission,
the erection of any front wall or other means of enclosure will normally be
unacceptable, although a very low wall may be acceptable in some cases. Where
there is no planning condition, there may still be a covenant restriction on front
enclosures.

2.2.81 Walls or fences over 1 metre high at the front of a property, or at the side
where the property is a corner plot may reduce natural surveillance and are likely
to be resisted.

Highway safety

2.2.82 The height and positioning of walls or fences should not impinge on highway
safety. Particular care should be taken at junctions and bends in the highway. Walls
or fences which restrict visibility for road users will be unacceptable.

Impact on neighbours

2.2.83 Fences and walls should be designed and located so that they do not
restrict light entering a neighbouring property or have an unacceptable effect on
outlook.

2.2.84 Referto paragraphs 2.2.20 to 2.2.39 for guidelines on privacy and outlook.




Page 73

Extensions for dependent relatives

2.2.85 Residential extensions such as ‘annexes’ can provide accommodation
which enables families to care for elderly or disabled or other dependent relatives.
Problems can arise, however, where this type of development constitutes a
self-contained unit either severed from the main house or which could, with little or
no adaptation, potentially be severed from the main dwelling to form a separate
unit. This can result in the creation of sub-standard accommodation with inadequate
privacy, access provision, parking and amenity space.

2.2.86 \When considering whether an extension is capable of being occupied
independently of the main house, the Council will have regard to its general
arrangement, in particular the extent to which facilities such as bathrooms, kitchens
and toilets are shared.

2.2.87 In order to be acceptable, these types of extensions should be designed
to form an integral part of the main dwelling with access to the accommodation via
the main dwelling and not by means of an independent access.

2.2.88 The guidelines relating to house extensions will also apply (refer to
paragraphs 2.2.1 to 2.2.84).

2.2.89 Self-contained extensions will not normally be allowed, but where
exceptionally such an arrangement is allowed in special and justified circumstances
it will be subject to a condition restricting occupancy to a member of the main
dwelling’s household.

2.3 Further information and additional considerations relating to
house extensions and alterations

2.3.1 The Planning Portal (www.planningportal.gov.uk) is is a one-stop-shop for
all planning information and services. The Planning Portal contains a wealth of
information to help you plan your house extension or alteration. The Interactive
House Guide provides a useful visual guide to householder development and
provides information on permitted development and Building Regulations.

2.3.2 Irrespective of the need for planning permission, most extensions require
Building Regulations approval.

Further information about Building Regulations can be found on the Council’s
website: www.plymouth.gov.uk/buildingcontrol or by contacting a member of the
Building Control team.

2.3.3 Ifyour proposal requires a dropped kerb and footway/verge vehicle crossing,
you will need to apply to Highways for permission.

Further information and the application form are available on the Council’s website:
www.plymouth.gov.uk/droppedkerb

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
m!—'-
> 3
o »
.
2 S
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
o 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=3
QO

Page 74

Biodiversity

234 Core Strategy Policy CS19 (Wildlife) states that
development should retain, protect and enhance features of
biological interest and seek to produce a net gain in biodiversity.
The Design SPD sets out guidance on development affecting
protected species and when a species or habitats survey is |
required.

2.3.5 The aim is to encourage even small developments such |
as house extensions to include measures to protect and enhance
biodiversity.

2.3.6 There are many wildlife-friendly features that can be
included in development designs to encourage wildlife, including
ponds, bat bricks, reptile hibernacula, bird boxes, wildflower
planting and planting of berry-bearing native shrub species. Wildlife
sensitive gardening will ensure that any enhancements remain
valuable to wildlife.

Further information on bat disturbance licences is available from
Natural England’s Wildlife Management and Licensing Service:
www.naturalengland.org.uk

Bat Brick

Information on protecting bats is available from the Bat Conservation Trust:
www.bats.org.uk.

Information on wildlife-friendly gardening is available from the Royal Society for the
Protection of Birds: www.rspb.org.uk/advice/qgardening/wildlife-friendly garden.asp.

Energy saving and renewable energy

2.3.7 The Design SPD requires development to be designed to minimise its carbon
footprint. Minor residential development such as extensions and alterations can
also incorporate measures to reduce energy consumption.

Guidance on how you can make your house extension energy efficient, together
with information about installing solar panels and wind turbines, is available on the
Planning Portal: www.planningportal.gov.uk.

Advice and information about energy-saving measures can be found on the Energy
Saving Trust Website at: http.//www.energysavingtrust.org.uk. The leaflet: ‘Energy
Efficient Domestic Extensions (CE122)’ provides much useful information.




Page 75

2.4 Checklist for planning applications: house extensions and
alterations

e Does the proposal respect the scale, form, proportions, and materials of
the original dwelling, and complement the character of the area?

e  Will the proposal cause loss of daylight, privacy or outlook to adjoining
properties?

e Are proposed boundary walls and fences appropriate to the character of
the area, amenity and highway safety?

e |f off-street parking is proposed, is it appropriate in terms of protecting the
character of the area, highway safety, and sustainability?

e Does the proposal provide an appropriate level of amenity for occupiers?

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
ml—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O

2.5 Conversions to HMOs and flats
2.5.1 This section covers considerations relating to:

e Houses in Multiple Occupation
e Flat conversions.

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)

2.5.2 HMOs can make a valuable contribution
to the private rented housing stock and provide
essential housing suited to predominantly young
and single people, including students, and those
on low incomes.

What is an HMO?

253 On 6 Aprii 2010 the Government
amended the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order to introduce a new Use Class (C4) &
for HMOs. The new C4 Use Class covers small &
shared dwelling houses occupied by between 3
and 6 unrelated individuals who share basic
amenities. Small bed-sits are also classified as
C4. Large HMOs, with more than 6 people
sharing, are 'sui generis' (not in a use class).

Further guidance on the C4 Use Class and
amendments to the C3 Use Class (Dwelling House in multiple occupation,
Houses) is set out in Circular 08/10: Changes to Devonport
Planning Regulations for Dwellinghouses and

Houses in Multiple Occupation available from www.communities.gov.uk.




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 76

2.5.4 The Council have made an 'Article 4 Direction' which, from 14 September
2012, will require planning permission from the Council in some areas of the City
for changes of use to C4 HMOs from a C3 dwellinghouse. Planning permission is
already required for changes of use to 'sui generis' HMOs (a sui generis use is a
term for all uses that have not been given a specific use class. They have no
permitted development rights for changes of use).

Please contact the Planning Service at the Council for advice on whether your
application will be considered as an HMO. Advice on HMOs and information about
the Article 4 Direction, including a map showing the area it applies to, can be found
on www.plymouth.gov.uk/hmoarticle4.

2.5.5 Physical alterations to a building, such as an extension, may require planning
permission, regardless of whether there is a change of use. Where planning
permission is required for physical alterations the considerations set out in section
2.2 will apply.

2.5.6 Further guidance on purpose-built student accommodation is set out in
paragraphs 2.8.46 and 2.8.54.

2.5.7 Remember, itis always best to check with the Planning Service as to whether
you need to make a planning application before carrying out any work or change
the use of your property.

2.5.8 The following planning considerations will be taken into account when
assessing an HMO application:

e Impact on residential character, including the mix of housing stock, and creation
of sustainable communities

e Impact to neighbours

e Standard of accommodation

e Transport and parking.

Impact on residential character

2.5.9 The conversion of family dwellings into HMOs reduces the local stock of
family dwellings and changes the character of the neighbourhood. HMOs are often
associated with negative impacts such as noise, on-street car parking, anti-social
behaviour and run-down properties. The degree of impact of a proposed HMO will
depend on the location and the nature of the existing and resulting housing stock,
and the number of existing HMOs and other non-family dwellings in the area.
Proposed HMOs should not cause the loss of a viable use that it is considered
important to retain given the Council's objective of creating sustainable, linked
communities (see particularly Core Strategy Strategic Objective 3 and Policy CS05).
It is also important to consider opportunities to provide family dwellings to help
re-balance communities where appropriate when considering conversions from
other uses.




Page 77

2510 Many HMOs are occupied by students, and the transient nature of the
student population can change the character of local services, shops and food and
drink outlets. Recent growth in the student population has brought benefits to
Plymouth in terms of widening educational opportunity, injecting spending power
into the local economy, enhancing the city's academic status and contributing to
the city's culture and long term growth. However, the uneven distribution of the
student population and other HMOs has put pressure on the housing stock in certain
parts of the city.

2.5.11 Core Strategy Policy CS15 seeks to protect the character of areas within
the City. The aim of the policy is to continue to provide HMO accommodation to
meet the city's housing needs but to manage the supply of new HMOs to avoid high
concentrations of this use in an area. Applications for HMO conversions in areas
where there is already a high concentration of non-family dwellings will normally be
resisted unless they can demonstrate that the conversion will not lead to, or worsen,
imbalanced communities, amenity concerns or loss of residential character.

2.5.12 In the absence of any formal definition of what constitutes a balanced
community, there have been attempts by local authorities to establish a threshold
at which a community can be said to be/or becoming imbalanced. The outcome of
the ‘threshold’ approach which is set out in this document is intended to be a guide
in relation to HMO applications and will be an important aspect for understanding
the context of a proposal, but it cannot be regarded as the determining factor in
deciding any planning application.

2.5.13 Evidence showing aggregated data, including concentrations of Council
Tax exempt properties in census output areas and any other data that is considered
appropriate, will be published in a separate document to support the considerations
in this SPD and will be updated yearly to reflect changes within the City. Information
will be gathered from available sources including Council Tax records, the Council’s
records of Licensed properties, Address Information and properties that are known
to be in HMO use through the planning process. It may not be possible to publish
the detailed evidence on a property by property basis because of data protection
laws. If specific data can not be published, the Council’s Officer will report the
relevant aggregated data to the planning application in the officer’s report, for
example in relation to the street’s (see below for definition) known concentrations.

2.5.14 Due to the types of information and resources available to the Council, it
is not possible to identify all of the HMOs within the city. In some circumstances,
information provided by the applicant or in letters of representation can be used as
evidence to support the Council’s decision, where the information can be reasonably
verified. Unsupported statements about the use of a property or properties will
normally carry very little weight. The local community, or applicant, may choose to
carry out research to produce an evidence base showing a detailed understanding
of their area. It will be expected that such research is carried out professionally
(normally by a professional accredited with the RTPI, RICS or another relevant

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S

I
82
B @
gco
o
m!—'-
> 3
o »
.
2 S
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
o 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
c3Dc3_'
» 3
=3
QO

Page 78

institute) and in accordance with good practice and ethical considerations. It may
be necessary for the Council to revise the threshold set below in the interests of
good planning if significant numbers of additional HMOs come to our attention.

2.5.15 In Plymouth it is considered that a threshold of 25% is an appropriate
ceiling to maintain balanced communities. This figure is the number of buildings
that are in HMO use as a percentage of all residential buildings. Changes of use
that would result in a concentration of HMOs higher than 25% will normally be
resisted. A balanced judgement will be sought depending on the circumstances of
the Planning Application and it is recommended that consideration is given to the
concentration of HMOs in the local area, the census output area and at the street
level.

2.5.16 Forthe purpose of this assessment a ‘local area’ will normally be a cluster
of contiguous Census Output Areas (see Diagram 2.14a). This approach is believed
to be consistent and robust as it is one which is related to statistical information and
at a sufficiently large scale to be statistically significant.

Key
D Contiguous Output Areas
_ Home Qutput Area

Other Qutput Areas

_

{¢) Crown Copyright.All rights reserved Plymouth City Council Mo- 100018633, Published 2012.This map extract has been
produced fr the sole purpose of providing you with reference information onfy NO FURTHER COPIES CAN BE MADE. Scale 1:4500

Diagram 2.14a

2.5.17 For the purpose of this assessment a ‘street’ will normally be a 100m
distance in each direction measured along the adjacent street frontage on either
side, crossing any bisecting roads and also continuing round street corners (see
Diagram 2.14b).




Page 79

produced: for the sole. purbosc u[pmwﬁmg Yol with réference’ information on\y NO FuRTHER COPIES CANEE MADE. S::Ie I: &SOO I

= Key \
\) - Example Application Property § y
Properties within 100m on same side of road T
. . Properties within 100m on application street on
opposite side of road !\" 7
L\
Properties within 100m that turn the cormer L
from application street (A
o -
3 r Properties not included -
1 # 100 metres i\
T AT @ starting Point S 1
q This map is for illustrative purposes only =4
(c) Crcwn CupynghLAll nghmms«.-r\rcd Plyrwu\h\’.:ty Cnuncﬂ No- |00018633 -Pubin%'h:d 2G|2Thus mag extract bas been ‘

AR S e

Diagram 2.14b

2.5.18 In some circumstances, the concentration of HMOs in an individual street
may be so high that it would not be appropriate to restrict the remaining family
housing from conversion. There will be a presumption in favour of applications for
changes of use to HMOs in streets where in excess of 90% of the properties are
already in use as HMOs. As far as possible these streets will be identified in a
separate evidence document.

2.5.19 Some properties, due to their large size, may no longer be appropriate as
modern family dwellings. Consideration will be given to these circumstances and
potential alternative uses when balancing the impact of a proposal on the character
of an area and the effective use of buildings and land.

Impact to Neighbours

2.5.20 Converting or sub-dividing a house to an HMO results in more people living
in the property and the potential for greater noise levels. Noise is by far the greatest
direct cause of disturbance to neighbours. Reducing noise is also important for the
amenity of occupiers (see 2.5.25).

2.5.21 HMOs within residential areas generally have less impact on neighbours
if they are located in large, detached properties. If the proposal involves a
semi-detached or terraced house, then good sound insulation will be needed to
prevent any noise disturbance to neighbours.

2.5.22 Guidance on external staircases set out in paragraph 2.5.39 also applies
to HMOs.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
ml—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 80

Standard of accommodation

2.5.23 Core Strategy policy CS15 states that houses of less than 115 m2 gross
floor area are not suited for conversion to HMOs or flats. When assessing proposals,
the Council calculates the gross floor area of the dwelling as the area of the building
10 years prior to the application. This prevents the extending of ‘family’
accommodation purely to take it above the 115 m2 floor area criteria. With regard
to HMOs this policy was originally introduced in the context of ‘sui generis’ HMOs.
In the context of ‘C4’ HMOs, the guidance in paragraphs 2.8.25 — 2.8.30 regarding
space standards will also be considered when determining the suitability for a
conversion.

2.5.24 In addition, it is important that the accommodation is of a decent standard
for occupiers. Further information about HMO standards of accommodation is set
outin paragraphs 2.6.2 and 2.6.3. To ensure that sufficient standards are maintained
it may be appropriate to attach a condition to the planning permission that requires
certain rooms to be retained for communal use.

2.5.25 Noise disturbance within the dwelling can be reduced by ensuring that
communal rooms such as lounges, bathrooms and kitchens do not immediately
adjoin sleeping accommodation on the same floor. Soundproofing can also be put
in internal vertical walls surrounding sleeping accommodation on the same floor,
and between floors. Stairwell walls can be sound-proofed. Adjoining communal
rooms and sleeping accommodation between neighbouring properties should also
be avoided where possible and good sound insulation should be considered.

Transport and parking

2.5.26 Additional pressure for on-street or off-street parking arising from an HMO
conversion can be reduced if the HMO is located within easy walking distance of
shops and services and public transport services.

2.5.27 Alocation well served by public transport or close to local facilities will also
benefit occupiers of HMOs by providing easy access to services and facilities.

2.5.28 Where off-street parking is proposed, the guidance set out in paragraphs
2.2.62 to 2.2.75 will apply. Chapter 8 sets out guidance on parking standards and
travel plans for residential development.

Conversions to flats

2.5.29 Flat conversions for purchase or for rent are an important component of
the housing market and add to the range and choice of available accommodation,
particularly for those new to the housing market, for those on limited incomes or for
those who do not want the expense or responsibility of maintaining a house.

2.5.30 Inorder to protect the stock of family dwellings, Core Strategy policy CS15
states that houses of less than 115 m2 gross floor area are not suited for conversion
to HMOs or flats. When assessing proposals, the Council calculates the gross floor




Page 81

area of the dwelling as the area of the building 10 years prior to the application.
This prevents the extending of ‘family’ accommodation purely to take it above the
115 m2 floor area criteria.

2.5.31 To subdivide a house into multiple units you must obtain planning
permission. The following considerations will be applied to applications for flat
conversions:

e ltisimportant that flat conversions respect the scale and character of the original
building and other buildings in the neighbourhood

e  The property should be large enough to accommodate the number of flats
proposed and provide the necessary amenities without the need for significant
alterations or extensions.

2.5.32 The guidelines on off-street parking, flat size and outdoor amenity space
in this Chapter, refuse storage in Chapter 6 and parking standards and travel plans
in Chapter 8 are all relevant considerations.

2.5.33 A self contained flat is where all the dwelling’s rooms and basic amenities
are accessible from behind a single entrance door.

Conversions of vacant or under-used buildings

2.5.34 In  recent years the
government has encouraged the
conversion of vacant or under-used
space over shops into flats in order to
bring more life back into city, district [
and local centres and to make more §
efficient use of available space. The
conversion of other non-residential
buildings, such as vacant office or
warehouse space into flats has also
been encouraged.

Flat conversion, Royal William Yard

2.5.35 Strategic Objective 15 of the

Core Strategy (Delivering Community Well-being), however, states that key
community infrastructure should be safeguarded. Policy CS01 (Development of
Sustainable Linked Communities) also requires development to meet the needs of
the neighbourhood. Some non-residential buildings — such as public houses and
social centres — may be unsuitable for residential conversion if they are the only
one serving the local community.

2.5.36 The Council will take the following considerations into account when
considering suitability for conversion:

e The proposed development should not cause the loss of a viable use that it is
considered important to retain given the Council’s objective of creating

oON
S
T
2 2
b @
gco
» 2
ml—"
> 3
o o
o 2.
o S
< »m
D o
o 5
© o
3o
® =
2 B
o =
5 O
2 3
s .
3-_1
o
%6_'
» 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
b @
gm
» 2
ml—"
> 3
o »
Q o
oS
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=N
o =
5 O
2 3
s
3_1
2 &
CEDE_'
w3
=
o

Page 82

sustainable, linked communities (see particularly Core Strategy Strategic
Objective 3 and Policy CS05)
e There will be no adverse effect on the vitality and viability of shopping centres
e The location and situation of the premises will provide an acceptable living
environment, having regard to the nature of the area and adjacent uses.

Standard of accommodation

2.5.37 Itis important for the quality of life of the occupiers that flat conversions
provide a decent standard of accommodation. Further information about standards
of accommodation is set out in paragraph 2.6.4.

2.5.38 In addition, the following considerations for layout apply:

e  Generally, there should be no more than one unit per floor, except in larger
buildings where the layout permits more units of accommodation

e The proposal should not generally involve the provision of self-contained flats
within basements and rear tenements

e Internal layouts should provide rooms that can accommodate standard size
furniture. All flats for two persons or more should provide a bedroom of sufficient
size to accommodate a double bed with access on both sides

e  Where possible, ‘stacking’ principles should be adhered to with living rooms
above living rooms, bedrooms above bedrooms, etc.

e All flats must be self-contained

e Adequate provision must be made for sound proofing, both for horizontally and
vertically adjoining rooms

e Principal habitable rooms should receive adequate levels of natural daylight,
and single aspect flats should generally be avoided.

External staircases

2.5.39 External staircases can cause problems for neighbours’ amenity in relation
to noise and privacy and often look unsightly. They can also compromise the safety
of occupiers as they may be poorly lit and become slippery in wet and cold weather
conditions. For these reasons they will rarely be acceptable. The presumption is
that staircases should be accommodated internally.

2.6 Further information and additional considerations for
conversions to HMOs and flats

2.6.1 The Housing Act 2004 defines a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) as:
an entire house, flat or converted building which is let to three or more tenants who
form two or more households, who share facilities such as a kitchen, bathroom or
toilet.

A detailed definition of an HMO under the Housing Act 2004 can be found on the
following website:
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hmo.htm




Page 83

2.6.2 The Housing Act 2004 introduced measures to ensure that all dwellings
provide adequate standards of accommodation. HMOs must comply with the health
and safety requirements of the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS).
This requires accommodation to be healthy and safe, have adequate natural and
artificial lighting and sound insulation.

2.6.3 Larger HMOs, occupied by five or more people and of at least three storeys
high, must obtain an HMO license from the Council.

The Council’s standards for HMO licensed properties are set out in the publication
Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation, Application Guidance and Standards
2009, available on the Council’'s website www.plymouth.gov.uk.

Further information on the HHSRS and the Council’'s HMO standards is available
from the Housing Private Rented Team at the Council, who will also advise you of
any schemes available to assist you.

You may also wish to read the following publication — Plymouth City Council (2007)
Advice for private Landlords — Houses in Multiple Occupation

2.6.4 Allflat conversions must also comply with the health and safety requirements
of the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS).

2.7 Checklist for planning applications: conversions to HMOs and
flats

e Does the proposal involve the loss of family housing or other uses that
contribute towards the balance of a community? If so, will this have an
unacceptable impact on the residential character of the area or the
community’s sustainability?

e Will the proposal contribute towards or the creation of a sustainable
community?

e Is the building suitable for the proposed residential conversion?

o |f off-street parking is proposed, is it appropriate in terms of protecting the
character of the area, highway safety, and sustainability?

e |sthe proposal located in a sustainable location to reduce the need for car
ownership?

e Does the proposal provide a decent standard of accommodation?

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
o




oON
S
I
& o
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
g
2 S
< o
D o
o >
T o
=
® =
=
S 2
5 O
2 3
s
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 84

2.8 Detailed considerations for residential developments
2.8.1 This section covers considerations relating to:

Natural site context

Built context

Sunlight and daylight
Internal space guidelines
Outdoor amenity space
Children’s play space.

2.8.2 This section also includes considerations relating to:

e  Purpose-built student housing
e Lifetime homes.

2.8.3 The guidance is intended to complement the guidance set out in the Design
SPD in relation to residential development.

2.8.4 This section should be read in conjunction with guidance in Chapter 6
(Refuse storage facilities) and Chapter 8 (Parking standards and travel plans).

2.8.5 In assessing the impact of new residential development on neighbouring
property, and the outlook from new developments, the Council will have regard to
the criteria on privacy and outlook set out in paragraphs 2.2.20 to 2.2.39.

2.8.6 Area Action Plans include design and delivery statements for proposed
development sites. These set out acceptable uses and number of dwellings. Other
key sites (including some within Area Action Plan areas) will have Site Development
Statements to assist developers to prepare suitable schemes. Where detailed
statements have been prepared they will take precedence over general
considerations set out in this document.

Does the development respect the natural site context?

2.8.7 The Design SPD highlights Plymouth’s distinctive topography and geology
and the need for new development to respect and reinforce this. This includes the
need to consider retaining existing trees and existing natural features in order to
enhance biodiversity and protect landscape character.

2.8.8 Natural features on or adjacent to a site, such as trees, hedges or water
courses, provide valuable wildlife habitats and contribute to biodiversity. Such
features should be protected and incorporated into the layout of the development
wherever possible. They can also benefit the development as they provide interest
and help to assimilate the development into its surroundings. However, potential
negative effects should also be considered in the design to avoid, for example,
overshadowing by large trees or risk of flooding from streams.




Page 85

Diagram 2.15 - Using the natural contours of the site

2.8.9 The layout should work with the natural contours of the site. This will
maximise efficient use of natural resources and will reduce the amount of cut and
fill that is required.

2.8.10 The topography can influence micro climates, for example by funnelling
wind, or creating shaded areas and frost pockets. A sloping site can add interest
and value to development by allowing variation in designs, and maximising views
out to the surrounding area (as shown in Diagram 2.15).

Does the development respect the built context?

2.8.11 The Design SPD highlights the varied characteristics of Plymouth’s
neighbourhoods and the need for development to reflect local distinctiveness,
including urban setting, density, scale and layout.

2.8.12 New development should normally reflect the existing scale and massing
of its surroundings. The existing block sizes, plot sizes, and street patterns should
influence the layout.

2.8.13 Views into and out of the development can positively contribute to
integrating development into its surroundings. There may also be occasions when
the layout should be designed to minimise the negative effect of an adjacent existing
development such as a major road, or an unsightly or unneighbourly use. Where
negative impacts cannot be overcome by design, or mitigation, the site might be
considered inappropriate for housing.

oON
S
T
82
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 86

Does the development maximise sunlight and daylight?

2.8.14 The Design SPD requires new development to be designed so as to
maximise the potential for passive solar gain. Maximising the availability of sunlight
and natural daylight to a dwelling has two main benefits:

e |timproves the living conditions of residents and thereby provides health benefits
e It makes a building more energy efficient by reducing the need for artificial
lighting and also reduces heating costs through solar heat gain.

2.8.15 The Council expects that all new residential development is planned to
maximise the benefits of sunlight and daylight by following the following guidance:

Orientation and layout

Diagram 2.16 - Orientations to maximinse sunlight

2.8.16 The main orientation of new dwellings should be within 30 degrees of south
to maximise sunlight, as shown in Diagram 2.16. The most frequently used rooms
should be located on the south side of the building.

2.8.17 Spaces on the north side of a building, such as hallways, utility rooms and
bathrooms, should have smaller windows to minimise heat loss.

2.8.18 In the case of flat developments, single-aspect flats should generally be
avoided. Even in prime locations, north-facing single aspect units are generally
unacceptable.

2.8.19 Housing scheme layouts should be designed to facilitate the penetration
of light: for example, by providing appropriate breaks in terrace blocks or in the
layout of semi-detached houses.




Page 87

Plan depth

a b c

S

‘mproved ight penetraton with shallow plan

Diagram 2.17 - Plan depth and window height

2.8.20 Itis particularly important that principal habitable rooms receive adequate
levels of natural light. Housing plans with front to back dimensions of 9 t0o13 metres
provide good sun and daylight penetration. Plan depth also affects natural ventilation.

2.8.21 Plan depths exceeding 13 metres should be avoided as they result in poor
light penetration to the centre of the building; therefore increasing the need for
artificial lighting (as shown in Diagram 2.17a).

2.8.22 Where buildings are closely spaced, the amount of daylight can be
maximised by keeping rooms shallow in plan and raising window head heights (as
shown in Diagram 2.17b and c).

Windows

2.8.23 Windows should be large enough to provide adequate daylight to habitable
rooms. For principle habitable rooms, windows should cover an area equal to at
least 15% of the room’s floor area.

Natural shading

2.8.24 |t is important to consider the shading effect that landscaping schemes
will have on sunlight and daylight once the landscaping matures.

Internal space guidelines

2.8.25 Ensuring that new dwellings have sufficient space for basic daily activities
and needs is important for the quality of life for occupiers. The minimum standards
set out in Table 2.1 are guidelines to encourage new dwellings that will meet the
needs of occupiers. The sizes relate to gross internal floorspace (including storage
cupboards, hallways and staircases).

Type of dwelling Size (m’)

One-bedroom flat 40

Two-bedroom flat 55

oON
S
T
3 2
B @
g(D
» <
m'—F
> 3
o o
.
@ S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
@
s ¢
3—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
o




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
m‘_.-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 88

Type of dwelling Size (m?

Three-bedroom flat 65
Four+ bedroom flat 75
Two-bedroom house 72
Three-bedroom house 82
Four+ bedroom house 106

Table 2.1 — Minimum size for dwellings
Does the development provide enough outdoor amenity space?

2.8.26 Outdoor amenity space, including patios and balconies, is important for
providing a high quality residential environment. Good design can ensure that even
dense residential developments incorporate effective amenity space. The size and
nature of the space will depend upon the type of dwelling, and its location. Within
the older, more densely developed neighbourhoods of Plymouth, or in the City
Centre, district or local centres, it is not unreasonable to assume that outdoor amenity
space provision might be lower.

2.8.27 The following guidelines set out recommended minimum standards of
provision:

Detached dwelling — 100 m’

Semi-detached dwelling — 75 m’

Terraced dwelling — 50 m’

Flats — 50 m”per development, plus 5 m” per additional unit over 5 units. This
will normally be in the form of a communal space. Private balconies can be
included in the calculation of amenity space, provided that they are a useable
size of at least 3 m’.

2.8.28 It is not appropriate to define leftover spaces as communal areas.
2.8.29 Communal outdoor amenity areas should be:

Located to give a degree of privacy from streets, or other public areas

Be accessible to all residents

Laid out in a way which will provide good amenity to residents

Be located so as to be able to be supervised by residents in order to make
them feel safe.

2.8.30 These guidelines do not refer to the provision of public open space.




Page 89

Does the development provide children’s play space?

2.8.31 Successful play spaces provide high quality, sustainable and memorable
play experiences for children and carers. However, too often play spaces are poorly
designed and maintained and provide poor quality play spaces. They can also be
perceived as a nuisance to residential amenity or even as a hazard to children.

2.8.32 This section supports Policy CS30
(Sport, Recreation and Children’'s Play
Facilities) and reflects national guidance which
requires new residential development to
provide, or enable good access to, play space.

2.8.33 In particular, where family housing |
is proposed, it is important to ensure that there
is good provision of play areas and informal
play space. These should be well designed,
safe, secure and stimulating areas with safe
pedestrian access.

Children's play area, Astor Park

2.8.34 The Plymouth local standard and tariff for play space is set out in the
Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document.
Whether on- or off-site provision is required will depend on the size of the proposed
development and local circumstances and needs. Decisions about new play space
will be made in conjunction with the Council’s Parks Services and Children’s Services
with reference to the Play Policy and Strategy for Plymouth 2007 — 2010 and
Plymouth’s Green Space Strategy 2008 — 2023.

2.8.35 The following considerations for play space apply in relation to development
applications:

Is it located on accessible green space?

2.8.36 Play space should be located on accessible green space (i.e. space that
is freely accessible for informal recreation) where this is feasible. This will encourage
children to engage in free as well as static play, and will provide a buffer between
the play area and the built up area.

What sort of boundary is proposed?

2.8.37 Play spaces need not always be fenced off. Other types of boundaries
such as low hedges, rocks or a low wall can be just as effective in demarcating the
play area and can make more attractive and welcoming spaces.

oON
S
T
2 2
b @
g(‘D
» 2
ml—"
> 3
o o
o 2.
o S
< »m
D o
o 5
T a
3o
® =
2 B
o =
5 O
2 3
s .
3-_1
o
%6_'
» 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 90

Is it well overlooked?

2.8.38 Play spaces should be located where there is good natural surveillance
from nearby houses or from the street to enhance safety and reduce vandalism.
Play areas away from residential areas can be located near to other facilities where
there will usually be people about.

Does it include opportunities for free as well as static play?

2.8.39 Play spaces do not have to consist solely of static play equipment. Free
play can be encouraged by innovative design and use of natural features such as
trees and rocks.

Is it easily and safely accessible?

2.8.40 Play areas should not be located next to busy main roads. Play areas
should be located in areas that are safe and easy to reach on foot or bicycle and
that do not involve crossing busy roads. They should also be accessible for
wheelchair users or carers pushing buggies.

Does it include provision for disabled children and carers?

2.8.41 Successful play spaces offer enjoyable play experiences for disabled
children as well as non-disabled children. Children with different abilities can play
together in well-designed play spaces. Carers may also be disabled. It is important
to remember that there are many different types of disability, including visual and
hearing as well as physical. Play areas that cater to a variety of senses and physical
abilities will be most inclusive.

Does it cater to children of different ages?

2.8.42 Successful play spaces should contain play elements catering for a range
of age groups and abilities. Through careful design, play spaces can include elements
for both younger and older children without being prescriptive about who uses what.

Have local children and residents been consulted about the design?

2.8.43 Successful play spaces reflect local needs. Involving children and young
people in the design of play space will ensure that it meets local needs and priorities.
Taking time to explore people’s concerns is essential.

Does the play space include flexible spaces?

2.8.44 Including some ‘slack space’ into the layout of the play area with no
predefined function can help introduce the potential for change and evolution. It
also provides space for free play.




Page 91

What sort of surfacing will be used?

2.8.45 The type of surfacing material used should fit the proposed play activities.
Loose-fill surfacing, such as sand or bark chips, can offer young children greater
play value than more solid surfaces. Bound rubber surfaces have great potential
for wheeled play and high speed games, and provide better access for wheelchair
users. Grass can be suitable for areas with less intensive play but is not suitable
for areas that will have high usage.

Further information about children’s play space can be found in:

Developing Accessible Play Space — a Good Practice Guide (2003) available
at: www.communities.gov.uk.

Design for Play: a guide to creating successful play spaces (2008):
www.playengland.org.uk

Play in Plymouth: the Play Policy and Strategy for Plymouth 2007 — 2010:
www.plymouth.gov.uk

Plymouth’s Green Space Strategy 2008 — 2023: www.plymouth.gov.uk

Purpose-built student housing

2.8.46 Purpose-built student accommodation |
in the form of cluster flats and studio

developments, in accessible locations, with '
on-site management staffing, relieves the
pressure on family-sized dwellings in popular
locations such as Mutley and Greenbank and
Derriford and reduces the need for students to
commute by car. The Council supports this form
of student accommodation as long as it is well
designed, provides a decent standard of
accommodation and is suitably located to
minimise any negative impacts on residential amenity.

Student accommodation, University
of Plymouth

Impact on residential character

2.8.47 Purpose-built student housing can have a significant impact on the character
of an area in terms of scale and associated impacts from increased activity, noise
or disturbance, either from the proposal itself or combined with existing similar
accommodation, especially in residential neighbourhoods.

2.8.48 It is important that student housing is located where it will not have an
unacceptable impact on residential character or amenity. Residential areas that
already have a considerable amount of non-family housing may be particularly
sensitive to further student accommodation.

oON
S

T
82
B @
g(D
» <
ml—F
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o 5
T a
=
® =
>3
o =
5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%6_'
o 3
=
O




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
m!—'-
> 3
o »
.
2 S
< »
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
o 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=3
QO

Page 92

Transport considerations

2.8.49 The majority of students wish to live close to where they study and also
close to shops. The Council and University wish to encourage students not to use
their cars; therefore locations close to public transport routes to the University main
campus or to the Peninsula Hospital School and within easy walking distance of
the City Centre or a local or district centre are most appropriate. Student housing
should also be located within easy walking distance of accessible open space and
leisure/ recreation facilities.

2.8.50 The Council’s guidance on parking standards and travel plans for residential
development are set out in Chapter 8.

Standard of accommodation

2.8.51 It is important that student housing provides a decent standard of
accommodation for occupiers.

2.8.52 Larger schemes (10+ study bedrooms) should include a laundry room with
communal washing and drying facilities.

2.8.53 A planning condition will be attached to purpose-built student housing to
restrict occupancy to full time students.

2.8.54 Codes of practice have been introduced to raise the quality of purpose-built
student accommodation. More information is available on the following websites:
www.universitiesuk.ac.uk and www.anuk.org.uk.

Lifetime homes — design principles

2.8.55 Policy CS15 (Overall Housing Provision) requires 20% of new dwellings
to be built to Lifetime Homes standards. This applies to developments of 5 dwelling
units or more. Lifetime Homes standards are a set of simple home features that
make housing more functional for everyone, including families, disabled people and
older people. They also include future-proofing features that enable cheaper, simpler
adaptations to be made when needed. For example, they make getting in and around
the home easy for everyone, whether they have small children or limited mobility.

2.8.56 Key features of Lifetime Homes include:
a level or gentle sloping approach to property;
doors wide enough to allow wheelchair access; |
the living room at entrance level; an entrance §
level toilet; walls able to take adaptations; a |
bathroom giving side access to toilet and bath;
low window sills and electrical sockets and |
controls at convenient heights. The requirements |
are set out in Table 2.2.

Flats built to Lifetime Homes
Standard




Page 93

Standard

(I Car parking

Requirement

Where car parking is adjacent
to the home it should be
capable of enlargement to
attain 3.3m width.

Comment

A general parking space width of
2400mm should have a grass
verge or footway running beside
and level with it to enable it to be
enlarged if required.

The distance from the car

A level approach is preferable.

yZll Access to the
home from parking space to the home
car parking should be kept to a minimum.
KB Approach The approach should be Where topography prevents this,
a maximum gradient on an
level or gently sloping. individual slope is permissible as
follows:
1:12 if the slope is less than 5m;
1:15 if it is between 5m — 10m;
1:20 where the slope is more than
10m. There must be top, bottom
and intermediate1200mm clear
landings. Paths should be a
minimum 900mm wide.
3 External All entrances should be Any upstand should not exceed
entrances illuminated, have a covered 15mm.

main entrance, and have level
access over the threshold.

LI Communal
stairs

Communal stairs should
provide easy access, and
where homes are reached by
a lift, it should be fully
accessible.

Communal stairs should provide:

Uniform rise not more than
170mm, uniform going not less
than 250mm. Handrails extend
300mm beyond top and bottom
step, handrail height 900mm from
each nosing.

Lifts:

Clear landing entrances minimum
1500mm x1500mm

Minimum internal dimensions
1100mm x 1400mm

oON
S
T
82
B @
gco
>
ml-l‘
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o >
T a
=
® =
=
o =
S5 O
2 3
s ¢
:—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
o




oON
S
I
e
8. &
(:)CD
> Q
ml—l-
> 5
o »
o 2.
2 S
< o
D o
o >
T o
=
® =
=0
o =
o
=
»
s
:-'1
2 &
c‘:;a
w3
=
O

Page 94

Standard

Requirement

Comment

Controls between 900 — 1200mm
from floor and 400mm from the
lift's internal front wall.

‘I Doorways
and hallways

The width of internal doorways
and hallways should conform
to Part M, except that when
the approach is not head on
and the hallway width is
900mm, the clear opening
width should be 900mm rather
than 800mm.

There should be 300mm to the
side of the leading edge of the
doors on entrance level.

This standard goes beyond Part
M, because of the requirement for
300mm to the leading edge of
ground floor doors to facilitate
opening for wheelchairs, and for
900mm clear opening off a
900mm corridor.

A Access for
wheelchairs

There should be space for
turning a wheelchair in dining
areas and living rooms and
adequate circulation space for
wheelchairs elsewhere.

A turning circle of 1500mm or a
turning ellipse of 1700mm x
1400mm is required in living
rooms and dining areas.

3 Living rooms

The living room should be at
entrance level.

Il Two or more

storey
requirements

In houses of two or more
storeys, there should be space
on the entrance level that
could be used as a convenient
bed space.

This could be a temporary
measure, but there should be
enough space to make one
without compromising the living
room.

[/l Toilets and
shower

In houses with three
bedrooms or more there
should be a wheelchair
accessible toilet at entrance
level with drainage provision
enabling a shower to be fitted
in the future. In houses with
two bedrooms the downstairs
toilet should conform at least
to Part M.

For properties of two-bed and
below, a part M toilet is
acceptable, for three-bed and
larger then the wheelchair user
should be able to close the door
and do a sideways transfer on to
the toilet. Minimum requirement
is 1100mm in front of the toilet
pan.

(kM Bathroom
and toilet
walls

Walls should be capable of
accepting adaptations such as
hand rails.

Walls may need to be
strengthened between 300mm,
and 1500mm from the floor.




Page 95

Standard

Requirement

Comment

(VA Stair lifts The design should incorporate | There must be a minimum of
provision for a future stair lift | 900mm clear distance between
and a suitably identified space | the stair wall (on which the stair
for a through the floor lift from | lift would normally be fixed) and
the ground floor to the first the edge of the opposite
floor, for example to a handrail/balustrade. Unobstructed
bedroom next to the ‘landings’ are needed at the top
bathroom. and bottom of the stairs.

(R Main The design and specification | One solution would be a

bedroom for a potential hoist from a removable panel between the

main bedroom to a bathroom.

bedroom and a bathroom. New
hoist design does mean that a
straight run is no longer needed.

('8 Bathroom

This should be designed to

Although there is no requirement

layout allow for easy access to bath, | for a turning circle in bathrooms
toilet and wash basin. sufficient space should be
allowed so that a wheelchair user
can conveniently use the facilities.
Ll Windows Living room window glazing | Wheelchair users should be able

should be no higher than
800mm from floor level, and
windows should be easy to
open/close.

to see out of the window whilst
seated and be able to operate at
least one window in each room.

(‘W Fixtures and
fittings

Switches, sockets, services,
ventilation controls etc. should
be at a height useable by all
(i.e. between 450mm and
1200mm from the floor).

This exceeds part M as it applies
to all floors, and all controls.

Table 2.2 — Lifetime Homes Standards

2.8.57 While Lifetime Homes will meet the needs of the majority of those with
mobility impairments there is an unmet need for wheelchair housing. Developers
are encouraged to consider the provision of wheelchair housing in their schemes.
Wheelchair/disabled housing specification exceeds that of Lifetime Homes.

Details of the wheelchair/disabled housing specification are available on the Homes
and Communities Agency website (www.hca.gov.uk) and by contacting the relevant
Plymouth City Council Planning, Housing or Access Officer.

oON
S
T
82
B @
gco
» 2
ml-l‘
> 3
o o
.
o S
< o
D o
o >
T a
=
® =
=
o =
S5 O
2 3
s ¢
3—_1
o
%5_'
o 3
=
o




oON
S
I
82
B @
gco
o
ml—'-
> 3
o »
o 2
2 S
< o
D o
o 5
T o
=
® =
=i
S 2
5 O
2 3
<
3_1
2 &
C3Dc3_'
» 3
=
o

Page 96

2.9 Further information and additional considerations for residential
development

2.10 Checklist for planning applications: residential development
considerations

Does the development respect the natural site context?

Does the development respect the built context?

Does the design maximise sunlight and daylight?

Does the proposal include a sufficient amount of internal space?

Does the proposal include an appropriate level of outdoor amenity space?

Where applicable, does the proposal follow the guidelines on the provision

of children’s play space?

e |nthe case of student housing, is the proposal acceptable in terms of
location and amenity?

e  Where applicable, does the proposal include lifetime homes principles in

the design?




Page 97

3 Food and drink uses

3.1 Introduction

311 Food and drink uses, including
cafés, street cafés, restaurants, public
houses and hot-food takeaways, can serve
important local needs, create employment
and contribute to the vitality of city and
district centres. They form an important part
of the Evening and Night Time Economy
(ENTE) of Plymouth. However, an K8
over-concentration of uses can detract from =S das= = ;
the retail vitality and viability of centres. In Street Café, Barbican
some locations proposals can also cause

apprehension amongst residents because of the negative amenity impacts that
these uses can have. The Council recognises these fears and expects all proposals
to respect householders’ standards of amenity.

3.1.2 This chapter provides planning guidance relating to food and drink uses
and nightclubs. The policies contained in the LDF Core Strategy that relate to food
and drink uses are:

CS13 (Evening/Night-Time Economy Uses)

CS10 (Changes of Use in the City Centre)

CS11 (Changes of Use in District and Local Centres)
CS22 (Pollution)

CS34 (Planning Application Considerations)

3.1.3 Policies CS10 and CS11 seek to protect the retail vitality and viability of
designated centres. Policy CS13 seeks to ensure that any ENTE proposals do not
have an unacceptable impact on neighbouring uses through noise, traffic or
disturbance, harm residents’ amenity, or contribute to existing problems of disorder
and nuisance. They should contribute to the vitality of the City Centre and waterfront
areas. Policy CS22 seeks to protect people from unacceptable noise, nuisance or
light pollution.

3.1.4 This chapter seeks to clarify and lend support to these policies. It sets out
guidance on the following planning considerations in relation to the amenity impacts
of food and drink uses:

Noise and disturbance (including light pollution)
Cooking odours

Visual amenity

Refuse

Litter

w
M
(®)
]
o
Q
>
o
o
=.
>
=
cC
(2]
D
(7]




w
m
(®)
(@]
o
Q
]
o
Q.
=.
=)
=
cC
n
D
(2]

Page 98

e  Cumulative impact
e Access and parking.

3.1.5 Additional guidance is provided on considerations relating to smoking shelters
and street cafés.

3.1.6 In assessing proposals for food and drink uses, the Council will have regard
to the nature and character of the locality. What is acceptable in the city or a district
centre will differ from what is acceptable in a residential area.

3.1.7 Food and drink uses include the A3 (restaurants and cafés), A4 (drinking
establishments) and A5 (hot food takeaways) Use Classes. Planning permission is
required for certain changes of use - for example, a café would need planning
permission to become a hot food takeaway.

3.1.8 Night clubs are classed as sui generis uses meaning ‘in a class of their own’
because of the large scale impacts that they can have. This means that planning
applications for night clubs will be considered on an individual basis. However, many
of the considerations for food and drink uses are also relevant for nightclubs and
similar uses.

3.1.9 Regulations concerning the sale of food and drink are quite complex and
failure to comply with statutory planning legislation can have serious consequences.
It is strongly recommended that anyone considering erecting or altering a building
for an A3, A4 or A5 Use or a night club contacts the Planning Service for advice.

3.1.10 Planning permission may be required for the use of some external areas
for eating or drinking (e.g. street cafés) and for a material alteration in the appearance
of a shop front and the erection of some types of signs and advertisements (see
Chapters 4 and 5 for guidance on shop fronts and signs and advertisements).

3.2 Planning considerations

Will there be noise and disturbance from customers?

3.21 Food and drink uses are often open beyond normal working hours so the
potential for conflict with residential uses can be high. Noise can be generated from:

e The use itself, including noise from cooking, extraction and general ventilation
systems, e.g. air conditioning or cooling systems and vibration and resonance
arising from use of the equipment.

e People travelling to and from the use or from smoking areas. Food and drink
uses, especially hot food takeaways, can generate an abundance of short term
visits from the public, especially in the evenings and at weekends.

3.2.2 For these reasons the Council will take a cautious approach to food and
drink applications, particularly in residential areas and when opening times extend
beyond ‘normal’ shop hours.




Page 99

3.2.3 In order to assess likely levels of noise and disturbance, the following
information should be submitted with the planning application:

e The sound power level and the likely resultant noise level of equipment at the
site boundary for all noise-producing machinery such as extract ventilation
systems, refrigeration equipment etc. that is likely to be installed

e How any noise-generating plant or equipment will be located and installed so
as to reduce noise impacts on neighbouring properties

e The intended hours and days of operation

e Proposed developments immediately adjoining (including below or above)
residential premises should provide full details of sound insulation measures.

3.2.4 Noise disturbance from food and drink uses can be controlled by:

e  Specifying hours of use

e The appropriate design and position of entrances. Two sets of doors, with an
internal lobby, may be necessary to reduce the volume of noise from inside the
premises reaching the street. Doorways should be sited to avoid noise and
disturbance affecting residents

e Screening proposed car parking areas from adjoining residential properties to
prevent the transmission of noise.

3.2.5 A Planning Condition may be imposed to restrict opening hours in order to
safeguard residential amenity.

Are there cooking odours?

3.2.6 Cooking odours are required to be dispersed under public health legislation.
The impact of cooking odours is largely dependent on the proximity of premises to
neighbouring uses and the type of odour and wind direction.

3.2.7 In most cases, natural ventilation is insufficient and an extract duct with a
fan and grease filters is required for ventilation although, in practise, it is virtually
impossible to completely eliminate all cooking smells, irrespective of the extraction
equipment installed. In older properties, fumes and odours can often penetrate the
fabric of the building and can have a significant detrimental impact on the occupiers
of adjacent properties. Applicants must be able to prove that nuisance or pollution
from cooking odours will not be caused by the proposed use.

3.2.8 In order to assess the likely impact of cooking odours, the following
information should be provided with the planning application:

e Al A3, A4 and A5 Use applications must include details of proposed fume
extraction systems. This must include details of the size, design, siting, finish,
acoustic treatment and odour abatement techniques of the flue extraction
system.

3.2.9 If aflue needs to be fixed to a building it should:

w
-
(®)
]
o
Q
>
o
o
=.
>
=
cC
(2]
D
(7]




w
n
(®)
(@]
o
Q
]
o
Q.
=.
=)
=
cC
n
D
(2]

Page 100

e Be located to minimise its visual impact on the street-scene

e Terminate at least 1 metre above the ridge height of the building to which it is
attached, unless this will create an unacceptable impact on the character of
the street-scene, for example in areas of historic character

e The route ducting should avoid proximity to residential or office windows on
neighbouring properties and should be designed to minimise noise from the
extraction process.

3.210 Occasionally, internal ducting is required due to the design of the building.
In these cases Building Regulation approval may be required and a suitable fire
risk assessment undertaken.

3.211 Planning Conditions can be imposed requiring extraction and filtration of
cooking odours to safeguard the amenity of an area.

What is the impact on visual amenity?

3.2.12 All proposals for food and drink uses should be designed and sited in a
way that they:

e Enhance the street-scene
e Protect the safety and free flow of pavement users
e Have no detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents.

3.213 Proposals should be well designed, use appropriate materials and be in
character with existing buildings in the area. Guidance is set out in Chapter 4 relating
to shop front design. This guidance also applies to food and drink uses.

3.2.14 Special considerations will apply for proposals that are within a Conservation
Area or affect a listed building.

What provision is made for disposal of waste products?

3.215 A3, A4 and A5 Uses can cause significant problems for the drainage system
as a result of the disposal of cooking fat/grease from these premises. A build-up of
fat deposits may block the drain either locally or further down the sewerage system.
To prevent blockages and consequent problems, suitable grease traps must be
installed on all drains.

3.216 Guidance on refuse storage requirements is set out in Chapter 6.

What provision is made to prevent litter?

3.217 To avoid the generation of litter around food and drink uses from people
entering or leaving the premises, food and drink uses will normally be required to
provide a litter bin outside the premises at all times when the business is open.
Applicants may wish to consider how litter arising from the use of the premises will
be dealt with.




Page 101

Will the proposal lead to an unacceptable concentration of uses
or cumulative impact?

3.2.18 Where several food and drink uses are located in close proximity to each
other, unacceptable cumulative impacts may occur. The development of clusters
of food and drink uses can also undermine the mixed use character of an area and
can result in the displacement of other uses, especially retail uses, that contribute
positively to the character of an area and to the range of facilities and services
provided. Itis important that such uses do not detract from the primary retail function
of the centres, or result in the loss of shops to the detriment of local residents.

3.2.19 Further guidance on district and local centres to support policies CS10
and CS11 of the Core Strategy will be set out in the Shopping Centres
Supplementary Planning Document.

What impact will the proposal have on access and parking?

3.2.20 Food and drink uses may attract customers from a wide area, and it is
important that they are in easily accessible locations. They should be close to a
public transport route. Provision for car and cycle parking should follow the Council’s
guidance on parking standards and travel plans (see Chapter 8).

3.2.21 Adequate provision should be made for the loading and unloading of goods
and servicing of premises, including refuse collections (see Chapter 6). Traffic routes
should be planned to avoid the need for vehicles to reverse, particularly in public
areas.

Special considerations in relation to smoking shelters

3.2.22 The Health Act 2006 introduced a statutory smoking ban in ‘enclosed’ and
‘substantially enclosed’ premises. This includes all food and drink uses. In response,
many businesses provide outdoor smoking shelters or spaces for their employees
and customers.

3.2.23 Planning permission from the local authority will normally be required for
permanent external smoking shelter structures — whether freestanding or attached
to existing buildings.

3.2.24 Applications for smoking shelters should include calculations to demonstrate
that the structure will not be ‘substantially enclosed’. This means that walls (including
windows and doors) take up less than half the sides of the structure — i.e. that the
structure is predominantly open.

3.2.25 The following considerations are important to ensure that any proposal for
a smoking shelter does not have an adverse amenity impact:

e Does it overlook adjacent residential premises?

w
-
(®)
]
o
Q
>
o
o
=.
>
=
cC
(2]
D
(7]

e Does it cause light pollution?




Page 102

e Is it sited adjacent to doors, windows or air intake systems?

e Could there be secondary smoke infiltration into adjacent residential or
commercial premises?

e  Willit introduce or intensify activity and disturbance near to noise sensitive
premises, particularly in the late evening? The opening hours of the premises
to which the structure relates will be a consideration here

e  Willit resultin the loss of parking spaces? Will this have an impact on parking
in the vicinity?

e  Willit obstruct or block an adjacent public footpath or road to the detriment of
pedestrian or traffic safety? In general, canopies, shelters, heaters or similar
structures sited on the public highway or on other public spaces are unlikely to
be permitted

e Isitin a Conservation Area or does it affect a listed building? Special
considerations will apply

e |sitaccessible to people with a disability?

w
n
(®)
(@]
o
Q
]
o
Q.
=.
=)
=
cC
n
D
(2]

Special considerations applying to street cafés

3.2.26 Tables and chairs placed outside buildings can provide enjoyable facilities
and contribute to the vibrancy and character of an area as long as they do not
obstruct pedestrian access or endanger pedestrian safety.

3.2.27 The following planning considerations will apply to proposals for outdoor
chairs and tables in association with a food and drink use, as illustrated in Diagram
3.1:

e  Street cafés need to relate positively to the existing street-scene and movement
of pedestrians

e There should be at least 2 metres clear unobstructed footway width between
the edge of the street café and the edge of the carriageway. A greater width
may be required in some locations

e  Where the use directly fronts the premises from which the refreshments are
served then an unobstructed corridor to the shop entrance of at least 2 metres
must be retained

e Tables/ chairs should be sufficiently spaced to enable wheelchairs and prams
access

e When tables and chairs are proposed directly outside a shop front on a public
highway then a physical barrier of about 1 metre in height will be required to
guide visually impaired persons safely around the use

e The style of furniture should reflect its purpose and location. Domestic ‘patio
style’ furniture is unlikely to work in the city or a district centre setting. Particular
attention needs to be given to outdoor furniture design in Conservation Areas.




Page 103

where located directly on
public highway, a min 1m
high barrier is required to

guide visually impaired

e | i |
T,

w
M
(®)
]
o
Q
>
o
o
=.
>
=
cC
(2]
D
(7]

min 2m UEQ . Yty L
provide unobstructed corridor w ,3 P
to shop entrance of min 2m min 2m -
min 2m ; a5
: provide unobstructed : \‘w sl
width of 2m to one side o

Diagram 3.1 - Street café planning considerations

3.2.28 The following considerations are important to ensure that any proposal for
street cafés does not have an adverse amenity impact:

e Does it overlook adjacent residential premises?

e Willit introduce or intensify activity and disturbance near to noise sensitive
premises, particularly in the late evening? The opening hours of the premises
to which the structure relates will be a consideration here

e  Willitresultin the loss of parking spaces? Will this have an impact on parking
in the vicinity?

e  Willit obstruct or block an adjacent public footpath or road to the detriment of
pedestrian or traffic safety?

e Isitin a Conservation Area or does it affect the historic character of the area
or the setting of a listed building? Special considerations will apply

e Are additional litter bins required?

3.3 Further information and additional considerations for food and
drink uses

3.3.1  Always check with the Council what consents are required before opening
or altering an A3, A4 or A5 Use or nightclub.




w
n
(®)
(@]
o
Q
]
o
Q.
=.
=)
=
cC
n
D
(2]

Page 104

3.3.2 Licences are required for activities such as the sale of alcohol, provision of
various forms of public entertainment, the installation of gaming machines and the
use of doormen.

3.3.3 Thelicensing authority recognises that licensing applications should not be
seen as a repeat of the planning application process and that there should be a
clear separation of the planning and licensing regimes to avoid duplication and
inefficiency. Applications for premises licences for permanent commercial premises
should normally be from businesses with planning consent for the property
concerned.

3.3.4 Businesses operating between 23.00 hours and 05.00 hours may require
a licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003.

3.3.5 The Council has adopted a cumulative impact policy to control the licensing
of premises issued under the Licensing Act 2003 in six areas of the city. These are:
Barbican, North Hill, Stoke Village, Mutley Plain, Union Street and Derry’s Cross.
Within these areas the Council as the licensing authority may take into account
matters such as:

The character of the surrounding area

The impact of the licence on the surrounding area

The nature and character of the proposed operation

Impact of the application in terms of crime, disorder or public nuisance, public
safety and protection of children from harm.

Guidance on activities covered by the Licensing Act can be found via the link —
http.//www.plymouth.gov.uk/requlated entertainment-2.pdf

General advice on Licensing and on complying with smoke free legislation and
smoking shelters can be found on the Council Website: www.plymouth.gov.uk

3.3.6 Environmental Health advice will always be sought on planning applications
for smoking shelters and related features.

3.3.7 ltis necessary to obtain an annual permit from the Council to place tables
and chairs on the public highway. Hours of operation will be specified in the permit.

Information on how to apply is available on the Council
website:www.plymouth.gov.uk/highways _permit_cafe_licensed.pdf

3.3.8 Food businesses will need to register with the Council’s Public Protection
Service www.public.protection@plymouth.gov.uk

3.3.9 Businesses that provide food or drink for consumption on the premises or
provide entertainment must have a suitable number of toilets in accordance with
British Standard 6465. Suitable provision must be made for the disabled.




Page 105

3.4 Checklist for food and drink planning applications

e  What uses surround the proposed use and are these shown on a plan?

e Does the application specify hours of use and include information on
expected noise levels and sound-proofing measures?

e If applicable, are details of flume extraction systems provided?

e Will the proposed use be acceptable in terms of visual impact on the
street-scene?

e Are details of disposal of waste products and refuse storage provided?

e Are details provided about car and cycle parking?

w
M
(®)
]
o
Q
>
o
o
=.
>
=
cC
(2]
D
(7]




Page 106

3 Food and drink uses




Page 107

4 Shop fronts

4.1 Introduction

411 This chapter provides guidance
on the design of shop fronts. It applies to
shops in general (A1 uses) but also to |
other ‘A" Use Classes including banks,
estate agents, restaurants, cafés and
pubs.

4.1.2 Shop fronts play a vital role in
contributing to the character and
appearance of the street-scene as well
as attracting customers. Well designed
shop fronts can contribute to creating an
attractive and distinctive environment while poorly designed shop fronts can
contribute to the perception of a neglected and low quality environment.

Shop front, City Centre

4.1.3 The guidance supports Core Strategy policies CS02 (Design) and CS34
(Planning Application Considerations). The aim is to ensure that shop fronts
contribute positively to the street-scene.

4.1.4 If a shop front is installed, altered, or replaced, planning permission will
generally be required.

4.1.5 The first part of this chapter covers general principles for all shop fronts.
Section 4.3 sets out special considerations relating to historic shop fronts, while
section 4.4 refers to special considerations for shop fronts within the City Centre.

41.6 Shop signs may also need Advertisement Consent (see Chapter 5 for
guidance).

41.7 If you are a tenant the consent of the landlord/ ground landlord will be
required before undertaking alterations.

4.2 Planning considerations

Is the shop front an integral part of the building?

4.2.1 Shop fronts should not be designed in isolation, but considered as part of
the architectural composition of the building. The shop front and upper floors should
be seen together rather than as separate entities, and should be well related to
each other in terms of scale and design.

4.2.2 \Where existing shop fronts are a distinctive and original element of the
building, the Council encourages them to be retained or replicated.

N
n
>
(e}

©
—
=
o
S
=~
7]




'
wn
>
o

©
.
=
o
S5
=
»

Page 108

4.2.3 Anyreplacement shop front should respect the scale and proportions of the
building.

Are the shop front components appropriately proportioned?

4.2.4 Shop fronts are commonly made up of several different components as
shown in Diagram 4.1. It is important to ensure these components within the shop
front work together as a whole, and are in proportion with the scale and architectural
style of the building.

_—— ¢ mullion F— |

#
[~ Pllastey €[ separate entrance
to accommodation above
recessed entrance — Ll L_:___: _El!l_______; _-:-_-_—_—_—_;._.
stall riser [L IR = 3 o i | — L)
Sl | 8 [ i ; pm— | S
. | — e _,__{j:_.,.-_u.-.m--ﬂ“
ity ] ==

Diagram 4.1 - Traditional shop front showing shop front elements
Fascia and pilasters

4.2.5 The fascia and pilasters are important elements as they frame the shop
front. The fascia provides the backdrop for the shop sign and is often the most
noticeable part. The pilasters define the shop width and support the upper floors.

4.2.6 Broken link - possible circular reference Broken link - possible circular
reference Special care should be taken to ensure that the proportion and design of
the fascia is sympathetic to the rest of the shop front and building. If oversized, the
fascia will unbalance the shop front. Generally, the depth of the shop front fascia
should be no more than a quarter of the depth from the pavement level to the bottom
of the fascia. There should also be a visual gap between the top of the fascia and
the window sills above. Diagram 4.2 shows a good and a poor example of a shop
front.




Page 109

jl:"l_IJ 1 i

a—— e - —

fascia set with adequate spacing below

cills to provide visual differentiation fascias must not obscure 1st floor windows
between shop and upper floors and should also not extend the full width of the bujlding
—[ o 4 -
1 1
1 | ]
- TR & 1 : "
I ]

Yax

iers at arbitrary placing of collimns and
X logical positions, piers, unrelated to any surrounding [
al support to loadbearing or opening elements, |
H above i
i — +—

Diagram 4.2 - Modern shop fronts showing good and poor examples of shop front design

4.2.7 Where the existing shop front is badly proportioned, the replacement shop
front design should rectify this by applying the above principles.

4.2.8 Where a false ceiling is proposed inside a shop, it will not be acceptable to
increase the depth of the fascia in line with this. The change in level can be dealt
with through careful detailing of the shop window itself — e.g. transom lights with
opaque glass or by setting the false ceiling back within the shop (as shown in
Diagram 4.3).

N
n
>
(e}
©
—
=
o
S
=~
7]




'
wn
>
o

©
.
=
o
S5
=
»

Page 110

fascia fascia
ceiling void ceiling void
extended additional
frame transom
and fascia and opaque
to cover glazing
false ceiling
behind : f
fascia fascia
ceiling void ceiling void
ceiling ceiling |
sloping (and light | ||
away from feature) [l
shop front set back || ||
from shop [
front [

Diagram 4.3 - How to design a false ceiling without increasing fascia depth
Cornice

4.2.9 The comice is the horizontal moulding at the uppermost part of the shop
front and is a common feature of traditional shop fronts (see Diagram 4.1). As well
as serving a practical purpose in providing weather protection it also provides a
visual break between the shop front and the upper floors. The use of a cornice may
be applied to a modern building and can be useful in providing an upper frame to
the fascia and shop sign.

Stall riser

4.2.10 The stall riser serves a practical purpose in anchoring the shop front to
the ground (see Diagram 4.1). Shop fronts with no stall riser at all will appear top
heavy. However, stall risers in modern shop fronts may be minimal.

4.2.11 The design of the stall riser should reflect the character of the area. Where
stall risers are of a common height or material, this should be followed in the design.
In Stoke Village, for example, the late Victorian shop fronts had rendered stall risers.




Page 111

Windows and displays

4.212 Window displays can make a big difference to the appearance of a building
and a street. Itis important to ensure that window displays fronting highways do not
endanger public safety. The Council will encourage traders to be imaginative in the
design of their window displays even if the shop does not have goods to display.
Traders are encouraged to pay attention to the appearance of windows in the upper
floors of buildings. Where windows serve as storage areas, traders should consider
introducing display windows or obscuring windows so that storage is not visible.

4.2.13 The method of subdivision of windows should reflect the scale and style
of the building. In general, there is more subdivision in traditional shop fronts than
modern shop fronts.

4.2.14 Finishes to glazing can add interest to the appearance of a shop front. For
example, glass engraving may be used to create variety. This may provide a high
quality advertising opportunity, or an opportunity to say something about the nature
of the business.

4.2.15 Should a cash machine be installed, it must be an integral part of the design
of the shop front, using materials that are sympathetic to the building. It should be
positioned where there is a sufficient degree of natural surveillance and where users
will not impede pedestrian movement (refer to Diagram 4.4). It should also be well
lit.

Doors

4216 Shop front doors and entrances should meet the specified Building
Regulation standards for accessibility. They can either be flush with the shop front
or recessed. Doors must not open over the highway.

4.217 In the case of a very long shop front, such as for a department store,
frequent openings should be provided to keep a vibrant, lively shop frontage.

4.2.18 Door furniture should be appropriate to the character of the door, shop
front and building.

N
n
>
(e}

©
—
=
o
S
=~
7]




'
wn
>
o

©
.
=
o
S5
=
»

Page 112

Blinds and canopies

4.2.19 The use of blinds or canopies can
be useful to a business in protecting goods
from direct sunlight, as well as providing
shade and shelter to shoppers. They can
also add interest and colour to a street.

4.2.20 Blinds and canopies should be
designed as an integral part of the design
of the shop front and relate satisfactorily to
the features of a building and the general
street-scene in both the open and retracted
state.

4.2.21 The following guidelines should be
followed:

This shop has a well-designed fascia and
e  They should normally cover the full canopy
width of the shop front between the
pilasters
e Blinds should be made of canvas or a similar non-reflective material

e They should sit beneath the fascia level and should be constructed so that
when fully erected will not cause obstruction to passers-by

e Where a blind or canopy overhangs the public highway it should have a
minimum height clearance of 2.4 m

e |fthe shop front is not being altered, it may be appropriate to position the blind
mechanism above the cornice

e |tis essential that, whether modern or traditional, the blind box is incorporated
into the shop front design and not simply applied

e Fixed 'dutch’ blinds or the use of plastic will not normally be acceptable as they
can look unattractive and permanently obscure the shop front

e Blinds should be avoided over doors alone or on upper storey or basement
windows

e Any lettering / design on the canopy should not be allowed to dominate it and
the style should relate to the design of the whole shop front, especially the
fascia sign.

Does the proposal respect the character of the area?

4.2.22 The character of an area must be respected and care taken to ensure that
standard designs are not imposed on areas, or even individual streets, with distinct
architectural, historic or social character. The Council will expect corporate images
to be adapted and modified to suit each particular location and will refuse proposals
which seek to impose a standard, corporate solution at the expense of distinctive
local characteristics.




Page 113

Does the shop front create an active ground floor frontage?

4.2.23 When designing a shop front it is important to ensure that activities within
the property can be seen through a substantial proportion of the glazed area in
order to enliven the street-scene and promote natural surveillance, although it is
acceptable for part of the shop front to include a window display area.

4.2.24 All shop fronts should have clear glazed windows that allow inside activity
to be seen from the outside.

4.2.25 Sometimes, shop front proposals may have window posters or cash
machines integrated into their frontage, resulting in the loss of active frontage. In
most cases, allowing more than one third of the width of the window shop front to
be obscured will result in significant harm to the visual amenity of the street-scene
and to natural surveillance and will therefore be resisted.

4.2.26 The correct shop front proportions to ensure an active ground floor frontage
are illustrated in Diagram 4.4. However, each proposal will be considered on its
own merits, taking into account the prominence of the shop front, its position in the
street, the amount of existing ground floor frontage in the area, and the width of the
shop front.

a minimum of two thirds of the shop front
should be clearly glazed to provide an active frontage

| | L L

Diagram 4.4 - Shop front with active ground floor shop front

4.2.27 A planning condition may be attached to require the ground floor commercial
windows or specified windows to remain as active windows or window displays.

N
n
>
(e}

©
—
=
o
S
=~
7]




'
wn
>
o

©
.
=
o
S5
=
»

Page 114

Are high quality materials and finishes used?

4.2.28 High quality materials and finishes are required for all shop fronts. In
designing a shop front, consideration should be given to:

e The sustainability and longevity of the materials and finishes

e Their appropriateness to the character of the area and building

e Visual relationship with the upper floor and adjacent buildings (particularly if
part of a terrace).

4.2.29 The colour scheme selected should harmonise with any colour on the
building above, and on adjoining buildings and shop fronts. Colour contrast is
important for people with visual impairments, but garish contrasts and vivid colours
should be avoided.

Does the shop front use appropriate security measures?

4.2.30 Security is an important issue which should be integrated into the design
of shop fronts at the outset. Security measures should not create a negative impact
on the street-scene, particularly at night. For example, a street of solid shutters can
create a hostile appearance and poor image.

Shutters and grilles

4.2.31 External solid or perforated metal shutters and grilles are unattractive as
they present a blank frontage to the street and can be subject to graffiti and
vandalism, and will normally be resisted by the Council. The following alternative
means of security are recommended (in order of preference):

e  Security glass — this is usually laminated and has the capacity to remain intact
even when broken

e Internal shutter grilles — these can be fitted discreetly behind the shop window
and are retractable and should be open mesh if feasible

e External open mesh grilles — there may be instances where these are
acceptable. This would be subject to the shop front design and the building. If
acceptable, the window display must still be visible and the shutter box housing
integrated within the shop front, i.e. behind the fascia or be recessed and flush
with the shop front.

4.2.32 Careful thought must be given to the need, design and siting of alarms.
They should never be sited on architectural features such as pilasters or decorative
mouldings.




Page 115

4.3 Historic shop fronts guidance

4.3.1 Shop fronts of listed buildings, in Conservation Areas or in other areas with
historic character need to respect the historic setting. The following guidance sets
out special considerations. Diagram 4.1 illustrates many of the design principles for
historic shop fronts set out in this section.

Historic shop fronts: fascias and pilasters

4.3.2 The depth of the fascia should be in proportion to the width of the pilasters
and sit below the cornice. Above the pilasters, corbel brackets should be used to
frame the fascia and support the cornice.

Historic shop fronts: windows and displays

4.3.3 Traditionally, the shop window extended from the stall riser to the fascia,
maximising the glazing. Large, undivided areas of glass look out of place and must
be avoided. The window could be divided vertically with mullions, usually of moulded
timber or cast iron, and sometimes, depending on the proportions, also with a
horizontal transom rail. Usually mullions and transoms are slender in profile and
can have decorative mouldings. Traditionally, a timber cill overhanging the stall riser
is provided as a weathering detail.

Historic shop fronts: doors

4.3.4 Overlights are often placed above the door and in some cases the doors
are set back from the shop windows. This gives the shop front an interesting
three-dimensional character and allows the entrance to be ramped and sheltered
from the elements. If a set back is needed in a new doorway, this should be no more
than 1.5 metres in depth, incorporating sensitive lighting.

4.3.5 Traditional fittings, often of brass, should be considered.
Historic shop fronts: blinds and canopies

4.3.6 Traditionally blinds/awnings were made of canvas and retracted into a blind
box designed as integral to the shop front. The blinds were often used to display
advertising. If historic blinds or a blind box exist, then consideration should be given
to repairing these or reinstatement. They were traditionally hand operated with
winders but can be made with motor operation if desired.

Historic shop fronts: materials and finishes

4.3.7 Materials and finishes should be in keeping with the historic character of
the building. The use of uPVC will not be acceptable on shop fronts of listed buildings
or in Conservation Areas. Varnish or artificial graining may sometimes be appropriate.

N
n
>
(e}

©
—
=
o
S
=~
7]




'
wn
>
o

©
.
=
o
S5
=
»

Page 116

4.4 City Centre shop fronts planning guidance

441 Policy CC01 (Place making and the Historic Environment) of the City Centre
Area Action Plan submission document seeks to enhance the most successful
elements of the City Centre’s historic environment.

4.4.2 The guidance in this section is additional to the guidance set out in section
4.2 and seeks to ensure that shop fronts in the City Centre enhance the historic
character of the buildings and the street-scene. Shop front designs should respect
the ‘civic scale’ of these buildings. Special guidance on City Centre shop signs is
set out in section 5.4.

4.4.3 Shop fronts may be composed in many different ways to reflect the needs
of traders. Designs should, however, respect the following specific guidance.

City Centre: stall risers

4.4.4 Stall risers should generally be designed to take account of floor levels and
form a suitable plinth to the shop front, but should not be excessively large. Robust
materials should be used. The use of natural stone such as granite, local limestone,
Portland Stone or local slate should be used to create a high quality, sustainable
and long-lasting stall riser. This may be polished where appropriate. Other materials,
such as high quality metal, will be considered if it can be demonstrated that they
relate well to the wider building and to the composition of the shop front as a whole.

City Centre: fascias and pilasters

4.4.5 In many instances these form part of the original building design and are
finished in stone. Where possible, the original fascias and pilasters should be
retained. New display windows should be inserted within the openings framed by
the original fascias and pilasters. Fascia signs should follow specific guidance for
City Centre signs in chapter 5 (section 5.4).

City Centre: windows and framing

4.4.6 The area between the top of the stall
riser and bottom of the original fascia must
have an overall appearance that is
‘light-weight’. This should be achieved by:

e Maximising the height of display
windows or glazing
¢ Avoiding the installation of box fascias

City Centre shop front with contemporary
appearance




Page 117

e Using clerestories of clear/translucent/obscure glazing or other light-weight
treatments to minimise the extent of solid in the frontage.

e Framing elements (glazing bars, door frames, transoms and mullions) form an
important part of the structure of the shop front and should be integral to the
whole composition. Generally, they should be designed in a modern way,
employing high quality materials. For example, a contemporary appearance
that relates well to the wider building can be achieved by composing the frontage
entirely in glazing with no solid framing, or by using a very thin section of framing
to create a ‘light-weight’ appearance. Generally, the extent of framing should
be minimised to ensure that shop fronts are of a suitable scale.

4.4.7 The following materials may be appropriate for framing:

e  Metal with a high quality applied finish such as bronze, stainless steel or similar.

e Timber provided that it is of suitable contemporary style and has a good quality
section.

e Powder or nylon-coated metals provided they have a suitable colour and finish
and that sections are of a high quality. Standard square or rectangular sections
will generally not achieve a suitable quality.

e Plastic framing will generally not create an appropriate quality finish.

City Centre: canopies and blinds

4.4.8 Many buildings have solid canopies
between ground and first floor. These are
part of the original building design and
provide important shelter. Within solid
canopies roller blind boxes for canvas *
awnings are housed. The use of traditional
roller blinds in these positions is acceptable.
Where traditional-style canvas awnings are
proposed in other locations, the Council will
have regard to the individual characteristics = e
of the building. City Centre shop front with solid canopy

4.4.9 Blinds or canopies will generally not be permitted on the upper floors of
buildings.

4.5 Further information and additional considerations for shop
fronts

4.5.1 Where a shop front blind or canopy overhangs a public highway a licence
will be required under the Highways Act.

4.5.2 Shop front proposals should meet the access requirements as set out in
Approved Document M of the Building Regulations.

N
n
>
(e}

©
—
=
o
S
=~
7]




'
wn
>
o

©
.
=
o
S5
=
»

Page 118

4.6 Checklist for shop front planning applications

Is the shop front designed as an integral part of the building?

Are the components of the shop front appropriately proportioned?

Does it respect the character of the area?

Does it create an active ground floor frontage?

Are high quality materials and finishes used?

Does the shop front use appropriate security measures?

Is it accessible to all?

If applicable, has the guidance on historic shop fronts or City Centre shop
fronts been followed?




Page 119

5 Outdoor signs and advertisements

5.1 Introduction

5.1.1 Outdoor signs and advertisements, including shop signs, are important for
the economic viability of business and for the health of the local economy. Signs
can be informative and add interest to drab urban environments. However, if poorly
designed in relation to their surroundings, and uncontrolled, they can cause
significant harm to the appearance of a building or area, as well as endanger public
safety.

5.1.2 The guidance in this chapter expands on Policies CS02 (Design) and CS34
(Planning Application Considerations) in the Core Strategy. The aim is to ensure
that advertisements and signs contribute positively to the street-scene.

5.1.3 Guidance is given on the design of popular advertising formats, including
shop front signs, to ensure they fit in with their surroundings and do not endanger
public safety. Additional guidance is provided for shop signs on historic buildings
and shop signs in the City Centre historic area.

5.1.4 ltis strongly recommended that you contact the Planning Service for advice
before erecting any sign or advertisement. The display of signs or advertisements
without the necessary consent is a criminal offence and the Council has widespread
powers under the Regulations to seek their removal and to prosecute offenders.

5.1.5 The advertisement control system rules are set out in the Town and Country
Planning (Control of Advertisements)(England) Regulations 2007 (amended July
2007). It is the responsibility of the local planning authority to decide whether a
particular advertisement should be permitted or not under these rules.

5.1.6 The local planning authority can decide on matters relating to the size, siting,
design and illumination of signs and advertisements but not content. Some categories
of advertisements can be displayed without the planning authority’s specific consent,
such as advertisements displayed within a building and not within one metre of the
shopfront window. Others have ‘deemed consent’ which means that they can be
displayed without application being made to the planning authority, such as bus
stop signs or rail station signs. However, many types of advertisements do need
the Council’s ‘express’ consent. This includes:

e Virtually all poster hoardings

e  Some illuminated signs

e Fascia signs and projecting signs on shop fronts or business premises where
the top edge of the sign is more than 4.6 metres above ground level

e Many advertisements on gable ends.

5.1.7 Highway Authority approval may be required in addition to any planning
consent.

3
O
=
=
a
]
(@)
-
n.
Q
=
»
o
S
a
Q
o
<
®
=
o
(¢)
=
o
S
~—
o




o
®)
c
=
a
o)
o
=
0.

Q
>
(]
o
>
a
Q
ol
<
o)
=
(7]
@
3
o
>
—
(2]

Page 120

5.2 Planning considerations

5.21 When considering an application for an advertisement or sign, the Council
will consider its impact on visual amenity, noise and public safety.

Visual amenity

5.2.2 Most buildings have a distinctive character and this should be the starting
point when designing a sign. Advertisements will not be acceptable if they are
visually intrusive, dominant, or contribute to visual clutter. For example, too many
signs on a building can create visual clutter. Advertisements must be sympathetic
in scale, size, proportion, materials, colour and design in relation to their
surroundings. Further guidance on the design of shop front signs is given below.

Noise

5.2.3 Advertisements should not make excessive noise, especially where they
are located close to residential uses.

Public safety

5.2.4 Advertisements will not be acceptable if they endanger public safety. Public
safety can be described as being the safety of people using any form of travel likely
to be affected by the advertisement.

5.2.5 The vital consideration in assessing the impact of an advertisement in terms
of public safety is whether the advertisement and its location would be so distracting
or confusing that it creates a hazard for, or endangers, people who are taking
reasonable care for their own, and others’, safety. Particular care needs to be taken
where an advertisement is to be positioned close to a road junction where drivers
may be distracted. Extra care should also be taken to ensure that illuminated
advertisements do not distract drivers, or cause confusion with illuminated traffic
signs and signals. Advertisements placed on the pavement (for example, outside
shop fronts) may pose a hazard to pedestrians.

5.2.6 Appendix B of Circular 03/07 Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 sets out public safety considerations
in relation to advertisements and consultation requirements.

Special considerations for shop front signs

5.2.7 Nearly all shops display signs or advertisements. It is important that their
size and position within the shopfront is considered at the earliest stage. Signage
that bears little relationship to a shopfront can ruin an otherwise attractive design.




Page 121

Fascia signs

5.2.8 Fascia signs, the principal form of advertisement on retail premises, have
a major impact on the quality of the street-scene. Most properties have an established
or logical position for the fascia sign and this should be adhered to.

5.2.9 A fascia sign should be set within the shop front fascia, in proportion with
the composition of the shop front and building (refer to paragraphs 4.2.5 to 4.2.8).

5.2.10 Applications for fascia advertisements on poorly proportioned shop fronts
raise a number of concerns and must be carefully considered. The presence of a
poorly proportioned fascia space will not normally be considered a sufficient reason
to allow an advertisement that is detrimental to the visual amenity of an area. The
applicant may consider redesigning the shop front or should design the sign so as
to compensate for the fascia’s poor proportions. The guidance on fascia design set
out in Chapter 4 should be followed.

Projecting signs

5.2.11 Projecting signs can be an effective way of drawing attention to a shop
but can result in a cluttered appearance if allowed to proliferate. Therefore, only
one projecting sign per shop front will be acceptable, although there are
circumstances, such as in the City Centre, where projecting signs may not be
appropriate (see section 5.4).

5.2.12 Signs should normally be in line with the fascia panel and below first floor
level. In some cases, it may be appropriate to place a projecting sign at a higher
level where this is in keeping with the proportions and character of the building. The
size of the sign will be determined by its proportion with the fascia. Materials and
bracketing should reflect the character and style of the building.

5.2.13 Projecting signs will be resisted where they might become a safety hazard
to pedestrians, road users, or where they may cause disturbance to occupants of
upper floors.

High level signage in shop fronts

5.2.14 Advertisements located above the level of first floor windows are generally
not acceptable. They may be allowed exceptionally where they relate to a use which
is not found on the ground floor of a property. In these instances advertising should
be restrained and relate well to the building and any existing signs. The painting of
lettering or signs on window glass is often the most visually attractive way of
achieving this.

Lighting

5.2.15 If overlit or using obtrusive equipment, shop front signs can spoil the
appearance of a building or detract from the character of an area.

3
O
=
=
a
]
(@)
-
n.
Q
=
»
o
S
a
Q
o
<
®
=
o
(¢)
=
o
S
~—
o




o
O
=
=
a
(@]
(@)
-
@
Q
=
7
o
S
a
Q
Q
<
[¢)
=
o
(¢)
=
o
S
—
o

Page 122

5.2.16 The following principles should be followed:

e The use of individual fittings to highlight certain parts of the fascia may be
acceptable, subject to design and impact on the shop front

e There may be opportunities to fit linear lighting discreetly in the fascia design
or possibly beneath the soffit of the cornice

e The illumination levels of advertisements should be in accordance with the
standards set by the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisement)
Regulations 2007

e Any illumination should use low energy lighting.

5.3 Historic buildings: shop front signs

5.3.1 Signs and advertisements on listed buildings, within conservation areas or
other areas of historic character should be particularly sensitive to the location and
its setting.

5.3.2 Advertisements displayed on Listed Buildings will require Listed Building
Consent irrespective of whether Advertisement Consent is required.

Historic buildings: fascia signs

5.3.3 Traditional fascias must always be retained or replicated. Large modern
box fascia signs made of plastic or metal will not be accepted on historic shop fronts
as they can obscure architectural features and can look bulky. Fascias that do not
detract from the special interest, historic character or appearance of the building as
a whole or of the area will be supported.

5.3.4 On existing historic shop fronts, painting directly onto the fascia or individually
applied three dimensional letters will normally be expected.

Historic buildings: projecting signs

5.3.5 Modern plastic box signs are not
acceptable as rarely do these relate well to
historic shop fronts.

5.3.6 Many ‘pre-modern’ signs were made
of timber with the signs painted directly onto
them. Brackets were made of cast or
wrought iron. The use of these materials
and traditional designs will be encouraged.

A street scene in the Barbican showing
traditional projecting signs




Page 123

Historic buildings: advertisement lighting

5.3.7 A good window display with internal low energy lighting is the preferred
option. Lighting of external advertisements can often detract from the historic
character and setting of a building and therefore is discouraged on grounds of visual
amenity. However, in some circumstances the use of quality and sensitive lighting
might be acceptable.

5.3.8 Large, internally lit box fascia signs will be resisted, as they can obscure
architectural features, and appear bulky and dominant.

5.4 City Centre: shop front signs

5.4.1 Shop front signs proposed in the City Centre should follow the guidelines
below in addition to the guidelines in section 5.2. These guidelines complement the
guidelines for City Centre shop fronts in section 4.4.

5.4.2 Where original stone (or similar) fascias exist, fascia signs must be applied
within them. Solid fascias positioned below the original shop front fascia will not
normally be acceptable.

5.4.3 Buildings which have original stone fascias should have signs that take the
form of well designed individual raised lettering applied directly to the original fascia.
Lettering should relate well in style, scale and use of materials to the rest of the
shop front of which they form a part. Some forms of plastic raised lettering can
appear crude against a natural stone backdrop.

5.4.4 Where original fascias are considered to be too high in relation to the rest
of the shop front, designers may consider how lettering might be applied differently.
For example, raised lettering may be applied to the top of a transom and occupy
the clerestory space in a display window. Solid backdrops should be avoided in
such instances.

5.4.5 The use of fascia backing boards (particularly timber or perspex) or box
fascia signs, applied directly onto original fascias, will not be acceptable, unless it
can be demonstrated that this treatment would be visually appropriate.

5.4.6 Where original fascias do not exist, new fascias should be designed so that
their height and length fit suitably within the design of the remainder of the shop
front.

5.4.7 Projecting signs in the City Centre will not normally be acceptable due to
the architectural clean, modern lines of the buildings. Furthermore, the Council does
not in any case approve projecting signs as ground landlord of these buildings. Box
signs in the identified ‘civic scale’ buildings in the City Centre will not be accepted,
due to the architectural and historic significance of these buildings.

5.4.8 lllumination of signs is welcomed as it adds to the colour and vitality of the

3
O
=
=
a
]
(@)
-
n.
Q
=
»
o
S
a
Q
o
<
®
=
o
(¢)
=
o
S
~—
o

City Centre at night.




o
O
=
=
a
(@]
(@)
-
@
Q
=
7
o
S
a
Q
Q
<
[¢)
=
o
(¢)
=
o
S
—
o

Page 124

5.49 Discrete external illumination of =——— SIS o]
signs will often be better than internal
ilumination. External illumination will =
normally allow greater scope to design a |

shop sign that is particular to the
requirements of an individual shop front
design. Greater flexibility in scale, style and
use of materials would be available.
Internally illuminated adverts may be
acceptable if they achieve other
requirements set out in these guidelines. A discreetly lit shop sign in the City Centre

5.4.10 The use of neon signs (without visible runner bars) and more animated
signs may be considered in some locations provided they do not cause a traffic
hazard or harm residential amenity and that they are designed to a high quality,
positioned sensibly and relate suitably to the use they refer to.

5.5 Further information on signs and advertisements

The following guidance is available on the Planning  Portal
(www.planningportal.gov.uk):

Planning Policy Guidance Note 19 — Outdoor Advertisement Control
Outdoor Advertisements and Signs: a guide for advertisers (2007).

Circular 03/07 Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
(England) Regulations 2007.

Corrections to Circular 03/07: Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

5.6 Checklist for applications for signs and advertisements

Does the advertisement or sign require express consent?

Is it acceptable on visual amenity and noise grounds?

Does it endanger public safety?

Ifitis a shop front sign, is it in proportion and character with the composition
of the shop front and building?

If applicable, does it follow special guidelines for City Centre signs?

e Is the proposal for a listed building, in a Conservation Area, or in an area
of historic character? If so, special considerations apply.




Page 125

6 Refuse storage facilities

6.1 Introduction

6.1.1 This chapter sets out planning guidance relating to the provision of adequate
and appropriate refuse storage and recycling facilities within new development. It
covers both residential and non-residential development, and supports Core Strategy
Policy CS26 (Sustainable Waste Management).

6.1.2 The aim of this guidance is to complement guidance in the Design
Supplementary Planning Document and improve the quality of refuse storage design
and provision in new development to ensure that:

e Adequate refuse and recycling facilities are provided

e  Storage of wheelie bins, communal waste bins and refuse sacks does not
detract from the street-scene, obstruct access or detract from residential amenity

e Separation of waste takes place at source to reduce landfill and improve
recycling

e There is convenient access, both for users of the waste storage facility and for
those who collect waste

e Waste materials do not create odours or attract vermin

e Waste storage does not create a fire hazard or impact on public health.

6.1.3 Refuse storage should be considered at the beginning of the design process
in new developments, as many of these issues can be addressed by appropriate
design and location of waste storage and collection facilities.

6.1.4 Where the proposed development affects a listed building or Conservation
Area, special care will be needed to ensure that provision of refuse storage areas
does not detract from the historic character or setting of the building or area.

6.2 Refuse storage guidelines

6.2.1 Tables 6.1 and 6.2 set out space and design standards that will be applied
to different types of development. Diagram 6.1 illustrates some of the main principles
in designing a communal storage area. Table 6.3 in section 6.7 sets out standard
dimensions for refuse and recycling containers.

Criteria Standard

Per person’ 70 litres per week for refuse/

40 litres per week for recycling

Per family dwelling/ per dwelling in 2 x 240 litre wheeled bins
developments less than 6 dwellings

(=2}
A
0]
=
cC
[72]
@
2]
—
o
=
Q
(@]
@
—
Q
0.
=
D
7]




Page 126

; Criteria Standard

g" Per 6 flats/dwellings 1 x 1100 litre wheeled bin for refuse
% Per 10 flats/dwellings 1 x 1100 bin for recycling

% Per shop unit Dependent on need

?3_;_ Industrial/ commercial Dependent on need

§ Table 6.1 — Standards for calculating the volume of waste storage needed

1

In cases where applying this guidance would result in parts of a bin, then the number
of containers should always be rounded up, i.e. a development with 22 flats should
provide space for 4 bulk bins for normal refuse and 3 for recycling.

Central
Gap drain with
between gully trap
bins is at to foul
least water
150mm

Store is laid out in a manner that allows all bins to be accessed
easily by residents and allows collectors to remove any bin
without having to move others first. Recycling and refuse bins
kept separately.

Diagram 6.1 - Layout of communal refuse storeage area for 1100 litre bins




Page 127

Type of

development

Individual
residential
storage areas

Design criteria for storage area

At least 1.2 m’ in size (for 2 x 240 litre wheeled bins).

Entrance wide enough to allow bins to be wheeled in and out
easily.

If covered, must be at least 1.8 metres high to allow bin lids to
be opened for filling.

Should be located at least 2 metres away from windows or
ventilators, preferably under shade or shelter.

Should usually be located within 30 metres from the main
entrance to the dwelling (excluding any vertical distance), and
containers should be within 25 metres of the waste collection
point.

Communal
residential
storage areas/
storage for retail,
industrial or
commercial uses
— see also
Diagram 6.1

Bin stores for 1100 litre bins must allow at least 150 mm
clearance around each bin, with a minimum of 1 metre
clearance if the bins are located facing each other. It must
allow individual bins to be moved in and out of the store easily.

Should be separate areas within the store for recyclable and
non-recyclable waste.

Must be screened to a height of at least 450 mm above the
top of the bins. Walls must be a minimum of 2 metres high. If
covered, walls must be at least 2.5 metres high to allow lids of
bulk bins to be opened fully.

Should be sited in a convenient and unobtrusive location, to
avoid noise or odour disturbance to neighbours.

Should have basic low energy lighting (e.g. solar lights).

Should have appropriate drainage to assist cleaning — an
impervious washable floor inclined slightly to a central drain.
This drain must be connected to a foul water drain and
incorporate a gully trap system.

Should be secure to prevent anti-social behaviour or fly-tipping.

Should be easily accessible to both occupiers and collection
vehicles.

(=2}
A
0]
=
cC
[72]
@
2]
—
o
=
Q
(@]
@
—
Q
0.
=
D
7]




(=]
A
(©]
=
(S
(2]
@
(2]
—
o
=
Q
Q
@
—
Q
Q.
=
D
()

Page 128

Type of Design criteria for storage area
development

Should usually be located within 30 metres from the main
entrance (excluding any vertical distance), and containers
should be within 25 metres of the waste collection point.

For mixed residential/ commercial development, waste storage
should be separated to ensure that commercial waste does
not enter the domestic waste stream.

Table 6.2 — Design guidance for refuse storage areas
6.3 Residential development — refuse storage

6.3.1 New residential developments should include adequate and appropriate
means of storing refuse and recyclable materials.

Internal storage

6.3.2 Kitchen/utility room layouts should allow sufficient space for a minimum of
two ten-litre waste bins. Provision should also be made for additional bins/storage
space for other recyclable items such as glass and textiles.

External storage

6.3.3 The potential for external storage and the type of storage that is appropriate
varies with the type of dwelling, as follows:

Detached, semi-detached and end of terrace houses with side access

6.3.4 External waste storage areas should be integrated with the fabric of the
dwelling or an associated garage, or otherwise screened or sited out of public view,
but readily accessible to the occupiers. The layout should enable bins to be moved
easily to the point where they can be collected, e.g. the roadside or a communal
collection point.




Page 129

Mid-terrace houses and other properties without side or accessible rear access

6.3.5 Dwellings mustinclude an enclosed waste
store integrated with the fabric of the dwelling and
readily accessible to both occupiers and the
roadside or area from which the waste bins are
collected, as illustrated in the photo opposite and §
in Diagram 6.2.

Low rise flats, houses in multiple occupancy
and high density housing developments Housing with integrated St°"“9‘|’oif:s’
6.3.6 If
provision is
made for
individual
waste storage
for each
dwelling, the
principles
outlined above
for mid-terrace
dwellings should be applied.

6.3.7 Low rise flats (up to 4 storeys in height), properties in multiple occupancy
and high density housing developments should, as a general rule, be provided with
a communal refuse enclosure or store designed for an appropriate number of bulk
refuse and recycling bins, provided 6 or more dwellings are present.

6.3.8 If the development has less than 6
dwellings, then a store or space (communal or
individual) must be provided for 2x240 litre
wheeled bins for each dwelling.

Design considerations for residential
refuse storage facilities

6.3.9 These guidelines are in addition to those Good examples of communal refuse
set out in Table 6.2. bin storage layout

6.3.10 Storage facilities should be designed to be:

e Fitfor purpose — large enough to accommodate the volume of refuse anticipated
from the residential development

e Visually unobtrusive

e Easytoaccess by refuse collectors and householders. Potential obstacles such
as steps, heavy shale and steep slopes should be avoided.

(=2}
A
0]
=
cC
[72]
@
(7]
—
o
=
Q
(@]
@
—
Q
0.
=
D
7]




(=]
A
(©]
=
(S
(2]
@
(]
(=g
o
=
Q
Q
@
—
Q
Q.
=
D
()

Page 130

]

(T

7
M7 |
-
L1

LRI

L

// - .
dwellings must include an enclosed waste store,
which should be fully integrated into the gn of the
facade and not just be a later add-on

Diagram 6.2 - Good and poor examples of provision for bin storage in residential design




Page 131

6.3.11 There may be circumstances where you might choose to locate stores in
a prominent location. This is likely to be acceptable only where alternative locations
do not comply with other elements of this guidance (for example, they are not
accessible).

6.3.12 If you intend to locate refuse storage areas within your residential layout
in a conspicuous place you will need to demonstrate that they can be provided in
a visually acceptable manner, as shown in Diagram 6.2. You should consider
carefully:

e  The choice of building materials

e How the scale and position of the store relates to the proposed dwellings

e The potential to incorporate bin storage areas into other structures such as
porches, garages or high garden walls.

6.4 Shopping development (including food and drink uses)

6.4.1 Premises should be served with one or more 1100 litre bins. Where the
premises generate relatively little refuse, 240 litre wheeled bins may be used.

Shops with rear servicing

6.4.2 New shopping developments should normally be designed to enable servicing
and deliveries by larger vehicles to the rear of the premises.

6.4.3 Rear service areas will normally be the appropriate location for waste storage
facilities. These should be designed so that they are properly integrated into the
scheme, and accessible to users and collection vehicles (see Table 6.2 for design
guidelines).

6.4.4 Forgroups of shops it may be possible to design communal facilities, which
would assist collection by minimising the number of collection points.

6.4.5 Waste facilities should be designed so as to allow free access to the rear
of the premises for deliveries, emergency vehicles etc.

6.4.6 Security should be provided for all waste storage areas, to design out
opportunities for vandalism or fly-tipping.

Shops without rear servicing

6.4.7 In established commercial areas it may not be possible to provide rear
servicing for shops, so waste collection will be provided from the street frontage.

6.4.8 In the design of new shopping developments of this type, it is essential to
ensure that facilities are provided within the fabric of the building to enable the
separation of waste and its collection from the street. This could take the form of

(=2}
A
0]
=
cC
[72]
@
2]
—
o
=
Q
(@]
@
—
Q
0.
=
D
7]




(=]
A
(©]
=
(S
(2]
@
(2]
(=g
o
=
Q
Q
@
—
Q
Q.
=
D
()

Page 132

an enclosed structure within the shop frontage that is capable of taking the requisite
number of bins, or a screened sideway with easy access to the street frontage for
collection purposes.

6.4.9 Where more than one shop unit is proposed, consideration should be given
to designing in communal facilities that are easily accessible to all units as well as
collection vehicles.

6.5 Industrial/commercial development

6.5.1 All developments intended for industrial/commercial use must provide
adequate space for solid waste storage. The same considerations for size, screening,
location and security set out in Table 6.2 for communal storage apply.

6.5.2 The numbers of refuse and recycling containers required will be dependent
on the nature and size of the business.

6.5.3 Waste facilities at the front of the building may be necessary provided that
they are not on the highway. Such facilities should be kept secure in order to prevent
vandalism and fly tipping and should not restrict access to the premises.

6.5.4 For efficient disposal and collection of industrial waste, it is preferable to
store it in external enclosures which should be integrated with the design and layout
of the rest of the development, accessible to users, screened and readily accessible
to collection vehicles.

6.5.5 Industrial premises are supplied with green sacks, 1100 litre wheeled bins
or skips subject to the type and volume of waste involved, and are encouraged to
separate waste for recycling.

6.5.6 The developer must ensure that all facilities relating to the storage or
pre-treatment of waste conform to any national guidelines and regulations that may
be in place regarding the specific type of waste produced.

6.6 Access for refuse collection vehicles

6.6.1 The construction of all access roads for refuse collection vehicles will need
to be designed to withstand the maximum payload of the vehicle (currently 30
tonnes). Manhole covers and gully gratings etc. should also be designed to withstand
such weight.

6.6.2 In a new development sufficient space should be designed in for the refuse
collection vehicle to manoeuvre. Roads and parking areas should be laid out to
ensure reasonable convenience for the collection vehicles.

6.6.3 The Council will generally collect bulk bins directly from communal stores.
However, where access to stores is restricted by locked gates or similar,
arrangements must be in place to ensure that collectors have access to the bins

on collection day.




Page 133

6.6.4 The main factors we advise you to bear in mind are:

Any structure under which the refuse vehicle has to operate should provide a
minimum vertical clearance of 4 metres, with a minimum working area of 3.5
metres width by 4 metres length where the emptying of the containers will take
place.

Refuse collection vehicles should not be expected to reverse into or from a
highway to make a collection. Where collection vehicles do have to enter a
development, there should be sufficient on site turning circles or hammerheads
to allow safe manoeuvring and exit from the development.

Roads with inadequate width or turning facilities are inaccessible to collection
vehicles. In such cases alternative presentation points on a nearby public
highway have to be arranged.

The length of a refuse collection vehicle plus container is generally 10 metres;
the working length should take account of the size of the container, making the
length of the vehicle with the container in emptying position 12 metres. A further
2 metres is required for operatives to stand clear of the bin whilst being lifted.
The emptying position that the vehicle manoeuvres to and operates from should
be relatively level and flat for the entire length of vehicle and container.

Any slopes or gradients (other than those necessary for surface water drainage)
should be avoided. Ideally the vehicle should pull into a dedicated off road bay,
without the necessity of reversing into or out of the bay.

A minimum width of 4 metres clearance for refuse vehicles will be sought on
access roads, taking account of any additional width required for parking of
vehicles on one or both sides of the road (see Diagram 6.3).

All access roads must have a minimum of 4 metres vertical clearance along
their length.

Ideally, refuse collection vehicles should be able to continue moving forward
at all times (due to their size, reversing and turning round is difficult) and
therefore cul-de-sacs should be avoided. If however this cannot be avoided,
then a turning circle must be provided at the end of the road. This must be a
minimum of 24.6 metres in diameter excluding any additional width required
for parking of vehicles.

All roads must have hard wearing metalled surfaces.

o
Py
)
@
[
(%]
@
®
—
)
-
®
Q
@
—
®
Q.
=
®
7




(=]
A
(©]
=
(S
(2]
@
(2]
—
o
=
Q
Q
@
—
Q
Q.
=
D
()

Page 134

min 4m

Diagram 6.3 - An example of minimum road width clearance required where on-street parking
is provided for on both sides of the road

6.7 Dimensions of standard refuse and recycling containers

240 litre bin

Height = 1070 mm (with lid shut) 1800 mm (with lid fully open)

Width = 570 mm

Depth = 730 mm

1100 litre bin

Height = 1380 mm (with lid shut) 2250mm (with lid fully open)

Width = 1270 mm

Depth = 1000 mm

940 litre ‘Chamberlain’ bin (for use with chute systems)

Height = 1430 mm

Width = 1040 mm

Depth = 980 mm

Table 6.3 — Dimensions of standard refuse and recycling containers

Dimensions may vary by up to 50 mm dependent on manufacturer.




Page 135

6.8 Further information and additional considerations for refuse
storage

6.8.1 For large developments, a Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) may be
required along with the planning application.

Further information about Site Waste Management Plans is given in the Design
Supplementary Planning Document. You can also consult the following document
‘Non statutory guidance for site waste management plans’ available at
www.defra.gov.uk.

6.8.2 In providing for waste storage and collection facilities on development sites,
applicants are strongly advised to familiarise themselves with the Building
Regulations Approved Document H Part H6 and the advice in BS5906:2005.

Building Regulations Approved Document H Drainage and Waste Disposal (2002)
Part H6 Solid Waste Disposal and British Standard BS5906 (2005 edition) can be
viewed on the Planning Portal website (www.planningportal.gov.uk).

Further information about the Council’s waste policies can be found on the following
sites:

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/compostingathome.htm

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/businessandtradewaste.htm

http.//www.plymouth.qov.uk/bulkywaste.htm

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningconsents.htm

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/buildingcontrol.htm

You can contact the Council’s Neighbourhood and Environmental Quality team by
ringing 01752 304147 or by e-mailing public.protection@plymouth.gov.uk

6.9 Checklist for planning applications: refuse storage provision

e Does the development provide adequate storage for the volume of waste
needed?

e Does the development provide adequate storage for recyclable and
non-recyclable waste?

e Is the design of refuse storage facilities acceptable in relation to location,
size, access and visual amenity?

e Does the development provide appropriate access for refuse collection
vehicles?

(=2}
A
0]
=
cC
[72]
@
2]
—
o
=
Q
(@]
@
—
Q
0.
=
D
7]




Page 136

6 Refuse storage facilities




Page 137

7 Telecommunications

7.1 Introduction

7.1.1  Telecommunications are an essential feature in modern day living and play
a significant role in the function of all local communities and the national economy.

7.1.2 This chapter supports Policy CS29 of Plymouth’s adopted Core Strategy
and reflects Government guidance as contained in Planning Policy Guidance Note
8: Telecommunications, August 2001 (PPG8), by outlining the Council’s approach
to telecommunications development in Plymouth. Policy CS29 covers
telecommunication developments including mobile phone operators’ masts and
towers, antennas of all kinds, overhead wires, cabling and equipment housing.

7.1.3 The guidance in this chapter also reflects the guidance set out in the Code
of Best Practice on Mobile Phone Network Development (Code of Practice), produced
jointly by representatives of central and local government and the mobile phone
industry.

7.1.4 The erection of telecommunications apparatus on a listed building, block of
flats or in a Conservation Area may require specific consent, such as listed building
consent or planning permission, and further guidance should always be sought from
the Council’s Planning Services.

7.1.5 There are four categories of telecommunications developments:

e  Minor development

e Permitted development

e  Prior approval

e Proposals that require planning permission.
Minor development

7.1.6 Minor development involves works which are so small or insignificant that
they do not require any form of approval. This includes most conventional television
aerials and other small telecommunications equipment that have a minimal impact
on the external appearance of the building on which they may be installed.

Permitted development

7.1.7 The full range of permitted telecommunications development is set out in
the General Permitted Development Order. Permitted development includes
proposals that need no formal application to be submitted to the Council, such as
the erection of household satellite dishes (subject to conditions set out in the Order),
many alterations to existing telecommunications masts and the erection of antennas.

N
o
®
Q
o
3
3
c
3.
o
Q
=
o
=
7




N
o)
®
Q
o
3
=
c
3,
o
Q
=
o
=
o

Page 138

7.1.8 Satellite television dishes should be installed in locations to minimise the
impact of the equipment on amenity. The colour of a dish should also be chosen to
blend into the background and to not overly impact on the external appearance of
a building. The Council advises that the installation of dishes in close proximity to
windows and doors of neighbouring properties is avoided as this can lead to
complaints. In relation to blocks of flats, the Council encourages the use of shared
systems to minimise any future increase in number of dishes on a building.

7.1.9 Antennas should be as small and as unobtrusive as possible, in order to
blend in with building features and street-scene. They should also be sited to
minimise impact on the external appearance of any building. Consideration must
be given to the existing number of masts/antennas in order to avoid overcrowding
of apparatus on one building.

Further information about installing antennas and satellite dishes is available on the
Planning Portal (www.planningportal.gov.uk).

Prior approval

7.1.10 The majority of mobile phone masts up to and including 15 metres in height,
as well as many rooftop installations, do not require the submission of a planning
application. They must, however, satisfy the 56-day prior approval procedure. This
procedure requires the operator to notify the Council of their intention to undertake
such development and to apply to the Council for determination as to whether prior
approval for the siting and appearance of the apparatus is required. If the Council
decides that prior approval is required, it may also decide to refuse to give such
approval if there are valid planning grounds for so doing. The operator may then
appeal against this decision.

Proposals that require planning permission

7.1.11 Proposals that require planning permission are usually those that are not
permitted by the General Permitted Development Order, including proposals that
exceed the limits of the prior approval procedure, such as the erection of phone
masts over 15 metres in height.

7.2 Planning considerations

7.21 The following considerations will be taken into account when assessing
planning applications, in support of Policy CS29 of the Core Strategy.

Design

7.2.2 The design of telecommunications development should be sympathetic to
the site and consideration should be given to camouflaging, in order to minimise
the impact of the development on the surrounding environment.




Page 139

7.2.3 The Council will support developers taking advantage of any future
telecommunication developments which may reduce the need for obtrusive masts
or antennas, and considering the availability of alternative design solutions which
may be more suited to a proposed site.

Appearance

7.2.4 Innovative designs are encouraged by the Council in order to reduce the
visual impact of telecommunications equipment on the character of an area. For
example, masts can be designed to resemble existing structures in the street-scene
such as lampposts (in accordance with streetlight design practice) or telegraph
poles. Proposals which use existing or replacement street furniture, such as street
lighting, are also encouraged.

7.2.5 Examples of this approach are shown in the photos. The photo on the right
shows a structure designed to mimic existing street lighting with the exception of
the base of the mast, which is slightly wider, and also the top of the mast, which
extends higher.

7.2.6 The photo on the left shows a mast designed to resemble a telegraph pole
and is equal width from top to bottom. Monopole type masts are usually better
accepted and considered less intrusive when they are slim-line in design, with no
irregularities. In this respect, obvious shrouds and obtrusive antennas should be
avoided.

Examples of camouflaged telecommunications equipment

N
o)
®
Q
o
3
3
c
3.
o
Q
=
o
>
7




N
o)
®
Q
o
3
=
c
3,
o
Q
=
o
=
o

Page 140

Materials and paint colour

7.2.7 These must be carefully chosen to ensure telecommunication equipment
looks well maintained and blends in with existing surroundings. A mast can be
painted as an additional camouflage measure.

Dimensions

7.2.8 The Council will consider the dimensions of any development in relation to
its surrounding area to ensure it is not visually intrusive. Monopoles with an excessive
girth should be avoided.

Siting and location

7.2.9 A mast located in an area which is a predominantly open landscape with
little development surrounding it, could look invasive. Where this is the case,
consideration should be given to using innovative design solutions, such as installing
replacement street lighting columns that are designed with telecoms apparatus, in
order to reduce or minimise visual impact.

7.2.10 Some larger buildings and structures may be able to accommodate multiple
operators and their associated equipment and this can reduce the need for individual
stand alone masts. As encouraged by PPG8, the Council’s preferred approach is
the sharing of existing telecommunication sites/structures. The Council will expect
a developer to submit evidence to demonstrate that site/mast sharing options have
been fully explored.

7.211 The Council will generally support the appropriate siting of well designed
telecommunications apparatus on existing buildings.

7.212 The following factors will also be considered in relation to location:

The effect of a development on the skyline

The appearance of the site when viewed from any angle

The site in relation to designated areas and their associated views

The site in relation to existing masts, structures or buildings and, in particular,
any effect on historic buildings or Conservation Areas

The impact on footway width of any proposed cabinets

e The site in relation to residential properties

e The height of a site in relation to surrounding land, as well as considering the
existence of topographical features and natural vegetation.




Page 141

Landscaping

7.213 In some cases, it may be appropriate
to ensure a mast is less intrusive by screening |
with trees. This would be particularly appropriate |
in designated and predominantly green areas,
where every attempt should be made to ensure
the apparatus blends in with the landscape. In
Plymouth, Moorcroft Quarry is an example of
where this method has been used. The mast
has been located on an access road to the
quarry; however, due to the height of the trees, W
it cannot be seen easily from the main public =
road. I

Protecting the countryside

7.214 As stated in PPG8, areas of
environmental importance, such as Dartmoor
National Park and Plymouth’s surrounding Areas
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONBs), need protecting. In the case of a mast
proposal in such an area, the Council will expect evidence to show the significance
of the proposal as part of the national network and to show that alternative sites
have been considered unsuitable.

Example of mast screened by trees

Access for service vehicles

7.215 Safe access and servicing arrangements to the proposed equipment should
be demonstrated, including parking arrangements and locating apparatus without
compromising the operation of highways and footways.

Telecommunication needs for new development

7.216 In the case of any new development, such as new housing, office
accommodation or industrial development, the Council will encourage developers
to consider how the telecommunication needs of future occupiers will be met. Where
appropriate, the Council will support ducting for telecommunication cables to be
located underground or along external surfaces of buildings to minimise the impact
of telecoms apparatus on the building’s amenity. The Council does recognise,
however, that methods of distribution for telecommunications which already exist
in an area could affect the location of ducting and apparatus for new developments.

7.217 The Council acknowledges the potential for new developments, such as
tall buildings and wind turbines, to cause interference with existing
telecommunications and this will need to be addressed prior to the submission of
a planning application.

N
o
®
Q
o
3
3
c
3.
o
Q
=
o
=
7




N
o)
®
Q
o
3
=
c
3,
o
Q
=
o
=
o

Page 142

7.2.18 Proposals for new telecommunications apparatus will also be considered
in light of proposed significant development, for example, major residential
development that might be prejudiced by the inappropriate siting of masts.

Health issues

7.219 Itis the Government’s view that adequate safeguards are in place to ensure
the public’s safety in relation to telecommunication emissions. The criteria set by
the Government means that councils must ensure that all proposals for mobile
phone base stations are submitted with a certificate confirming that the development
complies with International Commission on Non-lodizing Radiation Protection
(ICNIRP) guidelines.

7.2.20 While it is not usually necessary to consider further health concerns, the
Council will encourage developers to consider siting proposals in ways which will
be sympathetic to, and reduce, public perceptions of health risks.

7.3 Further information on telecommunications

7.3.1 Information on satellite dishes, antennas and mobile phone masts is available
on the Planning Portal — http://www.planningportal.gov.uk

7.3.2 PPG8 (Telecommunications) and the Code of Best Practice on Mobile
Phone Network Development are available at http.//www.communities.gov.uk.

7.3.3 Further information about telecommunications masts is available from the
Mobile Operators Association — http.//www.mobilemastinfo.com/

7.4 Checklist for planning applications: telecommunications

Is the design sympathetic to its location?

Is it sited so that it does not have an unacceptable impact on views?
Is it well landscaped?

Is it sited sensitively in relation to existing development?

Is there access for maintenance vehicles?

Does the proposal cater for the needs of future occupiers?




Page 143

8 Parking standards and travel plans

8.1 Introduction

8.1.1 The purpose of this chapter is to provide guidance in relation to parking
standards in new development, both car-parking and parking for motorcycles and
cycles and guidance on travel plans. This guidance supports Policy CS28 (Local
Transport Considerations) which requires development proposals to be assessed
in relation to car parking standards set out in the Council’s Parking Strategy and to
actively promote green travel plans. This guidance also supports Policy CS34
(Planning Application Considerations) which requires development to meet the
parking requirement arising from necessary car use. It also reflects national guidance
in PPG13 (2001) which recognises the need to promote sustainable travel choices
and PPS3 (2006) which requires local planning authorities to develop residential
parking policies for their area which take account of expected levels of car ownership.
This guidance updates the Council’s existing Car Parking Strategy (2006 — 2011)
and will inform the preparation of the next Parking Strategy.

8.2 Parking standards for new residential development

Car parking

Land Use Maximum parking standard

Dwellings with 2 or more bedrooms | 2 spaces per dwelling

Dwellings with 1 bedroom 1 space per dwelling

Houses in Multiple Occupation and
purpose-built student 1 space per 2 occupiers
accommodation

Table 8.1 — Maximum car-parking standards for new residential development

8.2.1 These standards apply to all new P
residential development, including =
residential conversions. The aim of these
maximum residential standards is to support
the creation of high quality residential
neighbourhoods by reducing the adverse
impacts of inadequate residential parking
such as excessive on-street parking or _#
illegal parking. i Ff "'

8.2.2 They allow for increased levels of s TS =
park|ng pl‘OVISIOﬂ above preV|OUS COUHCI| Example of residential car parking
standards. This reflects the latest

government policy as set out in PPS3 which requires Local Planning Authorities,

(o]
-
o
=
2.
2
(@]
n
23
o
>
Q.
o
-
Q.
(7]
o
>
a
-
=
Q
<
ol
=2
o
=]
(2]




o]
U
Q
=
2.
S
(@]
()]
—
Q
>
Q.
Q
-3
o
(7]
Q
>
o
~—
=
Q
<
@
ji
Q
>
(7]

Page 144

together with stakeholders and communities, to develop residential parking policies
for their area, taking account of expected levels of car ownership. The 2006 DCLG
report Delivering Planning Policy for Housing: PPG3 Implementation Study, identified
that it is more important to target car usage rather than ownership in order to promote
sustainable transport. Research by CABE (cited in the Manual for Streets guidance)
has also found that car parking remains a significant issue for residents and house
buyers.

8.2.3 Within the maximum parking standards developers will be expected:

e To provide adequate parking to accommodate parking arising from necessary
car use in accordance with CS34

e To protect the surrounding areas from overspill parking and resulting problems
on the highway.

8.2.4 The burden of responsibility is on the developer to ensure that parking is
managed within the site, or that measures are put in place such that resulting
on-street parking does not:

e Impede other users of the highway, particularly pedestrians, cyclists, buses
and emergency vehicles

e  Compromise highway safety

e Impact on residential amenity

e  Overspill into other areas.

8.2.5 The level of parking provision should reflect the accessibility of the location
by public transport. In exceptional circumstances off-site mitigation measures,
including the introduction of a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ), may be appropriate
as part of an overall approach to management of parking on a development. See
section 8.5 on CPZs for more information.

Cycle parking

Land Use Minimum Cycle Parking Standard

1 space per dwelling to be secure and

Dwellings with 1 bedroom
under cover.

1 space per 2 dwellings to be secure and

Flats
under cover.

Houses in Multiple Occupation and
purpose-built student
accommodation

1 space per 2 bedspaces to be secure and
under cover.

Table 8.2 — Minimum cycle parking standards




Page 145

8.2.6 Cycle parking should be incorporated into new residential developments,
particularly where car parking levels have been reduced. Every effort should be
made to ensure that cycle parking is well designed, under cover and secure.

8.2.7 Fordevelopments of flats, communal stores should be provided. They should
be well lit, fully covered, secure and contain cycle stands that allow individual cycle
frames and wheels to be secured horizontally (i.e. both wheels on the ground) such
as Sheffield stands.

8.2.8 For all types of residential development visitor cycle parking should be
considered. This should allow individual cycle frames and wheels to be secured
horizontally and be provided where it will be overlooked by the properties.

Motorcycle parking

8.2.9 Provision of motorcycle parking should be considered within all developments
but in particular flats, houses in multiple occupation and those with low levels of car
parking.

8.2.10 Where included, motorcycle parking should be well lit, covered and contain
stands that allow the vehicles to be securely anchored.

8.3 Non-residential parking standards
Car parking

8.3.1 The Council’'s methodology for
calculating the maximum car parking
standard for non-residential development is
based upon the overall accessibility of the
site having regard to public transport,
walking and cycling networks. The maximum
standards include both operational and
non-operational parking.

8.3.2 An assessment of parking provision

will need to be undertaken, taking as its =

starting point the maximum parking standard Non-residential parking , East End
for the type of development as set out in Community Village
Table 8.3. The standard is then adjusted on

the basis of how well located the development site is in accessibility terms. The
methodology for this adjustment is set out in section 8.6.

(o)
Y
Q
=
=
=)
«Q
92]
—
Q
2
o
Q
=
o
2
Q
>
o
—
=
V)
<
@
j=3
Q
>
(7]




oo
Y
Q
=
2.
=]
«Q
0
—
Q
>
o
Q
-3
o
(7]
Q
>
[oX
~—
=
Q
<
o
ji
Q
>
n

Page 146

Land Use Maximum Parking Standard

A1 Shops less than 370 m’

1 space per 28 m’gross floorspace

A1 Medium non-food shops 370
- 999 m’

1 space per 24 m*gross floorspace

A1 Large non-food shops more
than 999 m’

1 space per 20 m*gross floorspace

A1 Medium food and
convenience goods shops 370 -
999 m’

1 space per 21 m” gross floorspace

A1 Large food and convenience
goods shops more than 999 m’

1 space per 14 m” gross floorspace

A2 Offices providing services
mainly to visiting people

1 space per 30 m” gross floorspace

A3 Restaurants and cafes

1 space per 5.5 m” used by customers

A4 Public Houses / bars

1 space per 2 m’ of floorspace used by
customers for drinking. For dining floor space,
the above standard will apply.

A5 Hot food takeaways

1 space per 5.5 m” used by customers

B1 General business uses

1 space per 30 m” gross floorspace

B2 Manufacturing

1 space per 51 m” gross floorspace. Lorry
parking assessed on merits of each case.

B2 Small industrial units less than
235 m’

1 space per 44 m” gross floorspace. Small
industrial units particularly of the grouped or
court variety need separate assessment.
Parking provision will normally be communal.

B8 Warehouses less than 2500
2
m

1 space per 70 m” gross floorspace. Lorry
parking will be assessed on merits of each
case.

B8 Warehouses larger than 2500
m2

1 space per 200 m’ gross floorspace. Lorry
parking will be assessed on merits of each
case.

B8 Wholesale cash and carry

Car and lorry parking will be assessed on the
merits of each case.




Page 147

Land Use Maximum Parking Standard

C1 Hotels and guest houses

1 space per guest room + 1 space for the
resident proprietor or resident manager.
Conference / function space will be determined
on merit. Coach parking needs will be
assessed on merits of each case.

Hostels

1 space per 8 residents + 1 space per 2
non-resident staff + 1 space for a resident
proprietor / resident manager.

C2 Convalescent/ nursing homes

1 space per 8 residents + 1 space per 3
non-resident staff + 1 space for any resident
proprietor / manager.

Provision for visitors will be determined on
merits of each case. For nursing homes,
attention will be paid to need for adequate
servicing, particularly for ambulances, and
additional staff.

C2 Hospitals

1 space per 4 staff + 1 space per 3 visitors.

C3 Communal housing of elderly
and disabled

1 space per 2 dwellings + 1 space per warden

C3 Holiday caravans and chalets

1 space per unit

Additional spaces required where camping or
other facilities are provided or made available
for non-residents.

C3 Dwelling houses and C4
HMOs

Parking standards are set out in Table 8.1

D1 Primary schools

1 space per teacher + 1 space per classroom
for support staff and visitors

D1 Secondary schools

1 space per teacher + 1 space per classroom
for support staff and visitors

D1 Higher and further education

1 space per 2 staff + 1 space per 15 students

D1 Libraries

To be determined on the merits of each case

0
Y
Q
=
=
)
(@]
92]
—
Q
2
o
Q
=
o
2
Q
>
o
—
=
Q
<
@
=
Q
>
(7]




oo
Y
Q
=
2.
=]
«Q
0
—
Q
>
o
Q
-3
o
(7]
Q
>
[oX
~—
=
Q
<
o
ji
Q
>
n

Page 148

Land Use Maximum Parking Standard

D1 Creches, day nurseries or day
centres

1 space per 3 staff members. Attention must
be paid to the safety of the children. Adequate
facilities should be provided for the dropping
off and collection of children.

D1 Doctors’, dental and
veterinary surgeries and other
health services (excluding
hospitals)

1 space per practitioner, 1 space per 2
additional staff and 2 spaces per consulting
room

D2 Cinemas and conference
facilities larger than 1000 m’

1 space per 5 seats

D2 Concert halls, casinos,

community centres, and indoor

sports facilities larger than 1000
2

m

1 space per 22 m” gross floorspace

D2 Dance halls less than 1000
m2

1 space per 3 m’ of net public floor area

D2 Community centres less than
1000 m’

1 space per 5.5 m’ of main assembly hall floor
space.

D2 Snooker, billiards and pool
halls less than 1000 m’

1 space per table + 1 space per 2 tables

D2 Squash courts less than 1000
m2

1 space per court + 1 space per 10 spectator
seats. Additional spaces may be required if a
bar and / or other members’ facilities are
provided.

D2 Swimming pools less than
1,000 m’

1 space per 6 m” of water area

D2 Gyms less than 1000 m’

To be assessed on the merits of each case

D2 Stadia with more than 1500
seats

1 space per 15 seats

D2 Stadia with less than 1500
seats

1 space per 10 seats

Launderettes and amusement
centres

1 space per 28 m*gross floorspace




Page 149

Land Use Maximum Parking Standard

Motor repair garages, car sales, | 1 space per staff + 3 spaces for each service
petrol filling stations and car / fitting/ testing bay. 1 space per 10 cars
washes displayed. Adequate provision shall be made
loading / unloading, servicing and petrol tanker
supplies. For car washes sufficient circulation
space for waiting cars is required.

Taxi and private hire vehicle 1 space per staff / driver
offices

Table 8.3 — Maximum car-parking standards for non-residential development

(o)
Y
Q
=
=
=)
«Q
92]
—
Q
2
o
Q
=
o
2
Q
>
o
—
=
Q
<
@
j=3
Q
>
(7]

8.3.3 Other matters may be taken into account in completing the assessment of
parking provision:

e A higher level of parking than that determined by the assessment could be
acceptable, but only if strong evidence can be presented on grounds of
economic viability or of the impact of a lesser provision on the function of the
highway; for example, if the proposal would lead to a level of casual on-street
parking that might impact on the operation of the highway.

e In exceptional circumstances, a higher level of parking provision may be
acceptable to facilitate and help kick-start a regeneration programme. However,
this level of flexibility does not apply to all subsequent developments. Increased
economic activity in an area should be linked with increased public transport
accessibility.

e  Where appropriate, consideration will be taken of the time(s) of day when the
majority of the trips will be generated and accessibility assessed accordingly.
In particular, shift patterns will be considered where they start or end during
periods where public transport does not operate with the same frequency as
during normal office hours (8am — 6pm).

e  The capacity of public transport and future programmed infrastructure
improvements can influence accessibility assessments.

e In areas of existing, or at significant risk of future, congestion, and in existing
or potential air quality management areas (AQMA\) in particular, further
reductions may be necessary in order to make the proposal acceptable in traffic
impact terms.

8.3.4 The assessment must take account of parking availability and restrictions
in the surrounding area, and the impact of the proposed development on any parking
in the surrounding area.

8.3.5 Shared use of parking is to be encouraged. It is noted, however, that there
may be an imbalance in the amount of parking that should be provided for each
development. In this case, the car park should be effectively managed so that an
over-supply of parking spaces does not occur at any time which could encourage
unnecessary use of spaces and unsustainable travel.




(o]
0
o
=
2.
-}
«Q
[72]
—
o
2
o
o
)
o
(72}
o
-]
o
—
=
Q
<
@
o
o
-]
(7]

Page 150

8.3.6 Larger new developments may include new access roads. These access
roads could have on-street parking designed in and this provision could be counted
as part of the development.

Review period

8.3.7 The maximum parking standards set out in Tables 8.1 and 8.3 and the
application methodology will be reviewed every 5 years. Reviews will establish ease
of application, impact on transport networks and impacts on developments.

8.3.8 The accessibility maps form part of the Local Transport Plan and these will
be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure changes to the public transport network
are appropriately reflected.

Disabled parking

8.3.9 Provision of parking for disabled motorists should be in line with Department
for Transport guidance. Provision for disabled parking is included within the
calculated maximum levels, but should be calculated on the basis of the size of the
car park before any reductions have been applied.

8.3.10 Disabled parking should be located as close as is practical to the main
pedestrian entrance of the development.

Current disabled parking standards are set out in Traffic Advisory Leaflet 5/95
Parking for Disabled People: www.dft.gov.uk

Powered two-wheelers

8.3.11 The Council encourages safe use of powered two-wheelers. Therefore,
secure parking should be included within all new developments.

8.3.12 The number of motorcycle spaces required for a development is to be
calculated from the maximum parking standard for that development before reduction,
and rounded up as necessary.

8.3.13 For employee parking, a minimum provision of 4% of the maximum parking
standard for cars is applicable.

8.3.14 For other parking, based on motorcycles currently accounting for 1% of
Plymouth’s traffic, a minimum of 1% of parking spaces should be for motorcycles.
The absolute minimum is 1 space.

8.3.15 In some cases provision greater than the minimum may be more
appropriate, for example when shift patterns do not allow travel by public transport.

8.3.16 Motorcycle parking should be provided in line with the Institute of Highway
Incorporated Engineers Guidelines for Motorcycling.




Page 151

Cycle facilities

8.3.17 The Council actively encourages
increased use of cycles as a mode of transport. £
To complement public investment in cycling, £
facilities for cyclists must be included within all
new developments and must be sufficient to meet
increasing demand.

8.3.18  Minimum cycle parking standards for [ Bl :
non-residential development are set out in Table
8.4.

8.3.19  Cycle parking for staff and other | P\
long-stay users may need to be different from that =
for short-stay users. Ease of access needs to be
balanced with security.

8.3.20 Staff and other long-stay cycle parking
ideally should be located within the main building.
If this is not possible then it should be located
close to the entrances and must be closer than Short stay cycle parking, Drake
any corresponding car parking (staff cycle parking Circus
should be close to staff entrances). It must be secure, covered, well-lit and easily
observed. Employers should provide lockers, showers and changing facilities.

8.3.21 Short-stay cycle parking must be close to the appropriate building entrances
and closer than car parking. It must be secure, clearly visible, well-signed and easily
accessible. It will preferably be covered but not so as to compromise safety and
security.

8.3.22 For convenience, and to encourage cycling, it may be preferable on a
larger site to have clusters of cycle parking facilities rather than one central point.

Land Use Minimum Cycle Parking Standard

A1, A3, A4 and A5 (Shops, food and | Staff: 1 space per 370m” gross floorspace,
drink) or 1 space per 10 employees whichever is
the greater, to be secure and under cover.

Customer: 1 space per 500m’ gross in a
prominent and convenient position in the
form of Sheffield racks or similar.

A2 and B1 (Financial and Staff: 1 space per 300m’ gross floorspace,
professional services and or 1 space per 10 employees whichever is
businesses.) the greater, to be secure and under cover.

(o)
Y
Q
=
=
=)
«Q
92]
—
Q
2
o
Q
=
o
2
Q
>
o
—
=
Q
<
@
j=3
Q
>
(7]




oo
Y
Q
=
=
>
«Q
(2]
—
Q
>
[oF
Q
=
o
()
Q
>
o
—
=
Q
<
o
o
Q
>
()

Page 152

Land Use Minimum Cycle Parking Standard

Customer: each case to be determined on
its merits.

B2 (General industry) Staff: 1 space per 400m” gross floorspace,
or 1 space per 10 employees whichever is
the greater, to be secure and under cover.

D1 and D2 (Non-residential Staff: 1 space per 10 employees to be
institutions, assembly and leisure) | secure and under cover.

Customer: 1 space per 20 people expected
to use the facility at any one time in a
prominent and convenient position, in the
form of Sheffield racks or similar.

All other uses To be determined on their individual merits.

Table 8.4 — Cycle Parking for non-residential development: minimum standards
8.4 Travel plans and car park management plans

8.4.1 Depending on the nature of the development, it is likely that the Council will
ask the developer to submit a travel plan. Travel plans may be requested for:

e Residential developments
e Non-residential developments
e Schools.

8.4.2 Voluntary travel plans may also be submitted. These are welcomed from
all developments where a travel plan has not been specifically requested by the
Council but where the organisation/development has a commitment to encouraging
sustainable travel.

What is a travel plan?

8.4.3 A travel plan is a long-term management strategy which enables an
organisation / development to achieve increased levels of sustainable travel modes
for all journeys to and from a site. It should consist of a package of measures aimed
at promoting sustainable travel and reducing reliance on single occupancy car
journeys.

What should it contain?

8.4.4 In general, a travel plan should cover four areas:




Page 153

e A site audit report giving a description of the site and information on how the
site is accessed by all modes of travel

e An action plan to address and promote sustainable travel to and from the site
covering staff, customers and visitors (and pupils and parents in connection
with a school travel plan)

e A monitoring strategy which provides a methodology and schedule for monitoring
travel to and from a development site by all modes of travel. This also includes
modal share targets agreed by the Council

e A commitment to operating the travel plan, to working with the relevant Council
travel plan officers and providing relevant data on modal share targets.

8.4.5 ltis the responsibility of the developer/organisation to appoint a travel plan
coordinator who will develop, implement and monitor the success of the plan in
conjunction with the Council. Where appropriate, the developer/organisation will be
required, with support from the travel plan coordinator, to use the Council’s
web-based travel plan assessment and monitoring system, called “ITRACE”. If a
travel plan is requested, the developer/organisation is obliged to make contact with
the Council’s Travel Plan Officers within the Sustainable Transport Team at the
earliest possible opportunity so that advice on the appropriate content for the plan
can be sought.

8.4.6 Travel plans, where appropriate, should be linked to a Transport Assessment
and Car Park Management Plan to show how car parking spaces will be managed.
This may be for reasons of land efficiency, accessibility, restriction of overflow
parking, etc., as well as for sustainability and the simple economics of the site
operation.

8.4.7 The Car Park Management Plan should be included within the travel plan
for the development and may also be a condition of planning permission. This should
include intentions for future charging for staff parking, specifications for the operation
of the car park, allocation of spaces, operating hours, and other details that affect
the use of the car park. For example, only a limited number of spaces may be made
available before 10 am, reserving the remainder for non-commuter use later in the
day. This may be of particular significance when parking spaces are shared between
developments, or within a mixed use development.

8.5 Controlled parking zones

8.5.1 The introduction of a controlled parking zone (CPZ) should be a last resort
within any new development; improvements to more sustainable modes should be
the primary consideration. However, a CPZ may ultimately be required to ensure
parking is managed appropriately. Factors that should be considered when deciding
to introduce a CPZ are:

e Propensity of cars to overspill from a nearby employment area / leisure facility
/ retail area
e On-street parking and the absence, or otherwise, of controls

(o]
0
Q
=
2.
2
(@]
n
=
Q
-}
Q.
Q
)
Q.
(2}
Q
>
o
—
-
Q
<
@
=2
Q
-}
(2]




oo
Y
Q
=
=
>
«Q
(2]
—
Q
)
[oF
Q
=
o
(2}
Q
>
o
—
=
Q
<
@
o
Q
)
()

Page 154

e  Whether there are nearby public car parks, and
e The potential for shared parking.

8.5.2 A proposal within a CPZ which operates at least 6 days a week and more
than 6 hours a day could be acceptable without the provision of off-street parking.

8.5.3 Occupants of new developments within an existing CPZ will not be issued
with permits in accordance with the Plymouth Joint Highways Committee Report
recommendation of May 1997. It must be checked that there are no adjoining areas
where on-street parking could take place to the detriment of others.

8.5.4 Within a shorter operating CPZ, a contribution must be made in that the
developer will have to:

e  Provide some off-street car parking (application of maximum standard for private
residential or up to 50% of the maximum for student accommodation) or

e Pay monies / provide engineering work to restrict on-street parking or

e  Apply parking management techniques to their development which ensures no
on-street parking will take place.

8.5.5 For major developments it may be appropriate for the development to fund
the costs of consultation and implementation to change the short hour CPZ into
long term zones.

8.5.6 Where the extension (operating hours or geographic scope) or introduction
of a CPZ is not publicly acceptable, alternative mitigation measures will need to be
considered which could include engineering works or contributions towards more
sustainable transport modes.

8.6 Methodology for calculating accessibility

8.6.1 The Council has produced accessibility maps using the Accession software
which are to be used to determine the accessibility of each site (see example in
Diagram 8.1).

8.6.2 These maps show the percentage of Plymouth residents that live within a
30 minute travel time by public transport and/or walking of each location. The travel
time is defined as up to a 400 metre walk to a bus stop, in-vehicle bus time and a
maximum 400 metre walk to end destination at an appropriate time of day. Sites
further than 400 metres from a bus stop are not considered to be accessible. Sites
are assessed from 0% accessibility to over 80% accessible.

8.6.3 These maps form part of the evidence base for the Car Parking Strategy of
Plymouth’s current Local Transport Plan and are updated on an annual basis to
ensure changes to public transport routes / times / frequencies are incorporated.

8.6.4 The following steps should be taken to determine the maximum car parking
standard for a particular development:




Page 155

1. Calculate the site’s ‘accessibility per cent score’. This is taken from the nearest

point(s) on the appropriate accessibility map. Then subtract this score from

100 to calculate the site’s accessibility.

Add 20%.

3. Multiply this percentage by the maximum car parking standard identified in
Table 8.3.

N

8.6.5 It should be noted that these maps are not site specific and a more detailed
consideration may be required. The accessibility on the maps is given as a band.
The mid point of the band should be used unless there is evidence to the contrary.
This evidence may include a lower or higher accessibility level on the adjoining point
with the site somewhere between the two.

For example, site X is a supermarket development with a GFA of 2500 m*. The
parking standards in Table 8.3 would enable the site to have a maximum of
179 parking spaces (1 space per 14 m?).

This would require the development to provide —

e 11 disabled parking bays (based on current standards)
e 7 motorcycle spaces for employees and at least 2 for customer parking

These are calculated before adjustments are made.

The total maximum number of car-parking spaces allowed would then be
adjusted as follows —

The site has an accessibility score of 55% which gives it an accessibility of 45%
(100 — 55). However, the adjustment is less than this because of the 20%
‘additional’ allowance -

65% of 179 (45%+20%) = 116 spaces.

This includes disabled spaces, so a maximum of 105 spaces could be provided
for other car-parking.

Cycle parking (using the standards set out in Table 8.4) would require a minimum
of 7 spaces for employees (based on size rather than number of employees)
and at least 5 spaces for customers.

8.6.6 The maps are based on current public transport services. Any applicable
likely future changes to accessibility, such as a likely HQPT link, must be considered
at this point. Future accessibility maps will be developed to enable this to occur with
ease. Until this time, applicants need to take a realistic view of the potential for
improvements to take place following discussions with the Council’s Development
Management team (Transport). The maps will be updated regularly to take account
of service changes in the short term.

(o)
Y
Q
=
=
=)
«Q
92]
—
Q
2
o
Q
=
o
2
Q
>
o
—
=
Q
<
@
j=3
Q
>
(7]




Page 156

(6002) SeINUI 0 UIYNIM SIUBPISSY YInowA|d

yrnoUyy
& 30 % podsue] 21jand Aq Apqissesay

=

L88FL:| 222 ‘s3urpaasord [1a1 30
uonnazsosd o) peaj Aew pue jyRnidor usmor) sa3ulgur uonanpoidal paspoineur) “HAVIN 38 NYD SHIJOO YIHINNL ON
*AJUO UOTIBLLLIOJUL 2dUaIajal Yim noA Buipiaosd o asodind ajos ay Joj paonpoad uaaq sey 1oenxa dew sy

00Z/C1/TT PAUSTIINd TLGSLOVTT "ON 20udr] [10una)) A1) ipnowik(d 1qdnide)) unor) (2)
“201[J() Arsuonelg s A1salizja] I9E] Jo Ja[[onto)) a1 Jo uoissruuad oy s sdem [eS1p sdoaing asueupi() 21} wWolj pasnpoiday]

Aqisseooe oN )
%6 01 %1
%61 01 %01
%62 0} %0Z © |
%6E 01 %0E @ o
%ErOI%Or @ |-
%6G01%0S @ | =T Lo
%69 01 %09 ® .
%6. 01 %0. @ :
%08 Uey ol0N @ | - .
6002 TWid | - “ o

0)

2

se0000 0 o“o |

99
e

8 Parking standards and travel plans

Diagram 8.1 - Public transport accessibility levels in Plymouth, 2009




Page 157

8.7 Further information on parking standards and travel plans

8.7.1 The design of car-parking and cycle parking should comply with guidance
in the Manual for Streets (2005) available on www.communities.gov.uk.

8.7.2 The Council’s Parking Strategy can be accessed at
http.//www.plymouth.gov.uk/proltpparking.htm

8.7.3 Government guidance on parking is set out in PPG13 (2001) Transport and
PPS3 (2006) Housing which are available on www.communities.qov.uk.

8.7.4 Cycle parking should be provided in line with Cycling England guidance.

Cycling England guidance can be found on the following website —
www.dft.gov.uk/cyclingengland

8.7.5 More information and guidance on travel plans can be found on the
Sustainable Transport Team’s web pages at:

www.plymouth.qov.uk/workbasedtravelplans
www.plymouth.qov.uk/schooltravelplan

Telephone: 01752 304585/5417
Email: publictransport@plymouth.qov.uk

Further information is also available at: www.dft.qov.uk/pgr/sustainable/travelplans

8.8 Checklist for applications: parking standards and travel plans

e Does the application comply with the Council’s standards for car-parking,
cycle-parking, motor-cycle parking and disabled parking?

e |s atravel plan required and does it comply with the Council’s guidance?

e For non-residential developments, is a Car Park Management Plan
included?

(o]
0
Q
=
2.
2
(@]
n
=
Q
-}
Q.
Q
)
Q.
(2}
Q
>
o
—
-
Q
<
@
=2
Q
-}
(2]




Page 158

8 Parking standards and travel plans




Page 159

9 Coastal development considerations

9.1 Introduction

9.1.1 Small scale developments in the coastal zone are subject to various laws
and policies in order to protect wildlife, safeguard navigation and protect the coast.
This chapter explains briefly the key constraints in this zone and the implications
for gaining planning permission. The additional marine consents and licences are
also explained. The chapter contains information and guidance on the following
considerations:

e Relevant planning policies

e Environmental designations in the
coastal zone

e Considerations for coastal development

e Minimising the ecological impacts of
development

e Additional consents for development
within the coastal zone

e  Further information.

9.1.2 The Port of Plymouth is a complex and dynamic area which encompasses
Plymouth Sound and extends up the rivers of the Tamar, Tavy, Lynher and Plym.
This area as a whole constitutes one of Britain’s finest estuarine complexes with
rich and diverse wildlife, landscape and historic heritage.

9.1.3 The waters of Plymouth Sound and the Tamar Estuaries are used for
defence, commercial and recreational purposes thereby providing a key economic
asset for Plymouth and nearby coastal communities. They are one of England’s
major recreational boating centres and are enjoyed by local residents and those
living further afield. These activities support the distinctiveness of Plymouth and do
much to help develop the vitality of the city with a bustling, lively waterfront.

9.1.4 Development close to or in the waters of Plymouth Sound or any of the
estuaries requires a number of considerations, in terms of marine licensing
requirements, design measures, construction methods and subsequent use. This
chapter sets out what they are and suggests some approaches which can help to
address some common concerns regarding coastal development. This is particularly
important given that the Core Strategy identifies that many of the priorities for the
city’s regeneration will be focused on the waterfront areas.

9.1.5 Coastal Development is defined as any development or change of use that
takes place on the coastline. It includes waterfront development, coastal defence
schemes, marinas and jetties, dredging as well as footpaths and cycleways adjacent
to the estuary. It should be noted that this is an indicative list and should not be
considered as exhaustive.

117

©
Q)
o)
o
(]
%)
o
Q
)
<
o
o

e
=
o)
>
=,
Q
o
=]
@,
g
o)
-
o
=
o
=
(2]




©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
o
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
D
g
@
-
o
=
o
>
(]

Page 160

9.1.6 Any proposed development above the low water mark will require the
submission of a planning application to the Council. In the coastal zone there are
also a complex assortment of additional permissions and licences from other
agencies that need to be secured which must also consider the impacts of the
development on the natural environment. These must be applied for and secured
before any work can be started.

9.1.7 Coastal development in sensitive marine areas is a particularly complex
matter and this chapter can therefore only provide a brief introduction to the additional
considerations that need to be made.

9.1.7a The Water Framework Directive (2000/60/EC) (WFD) was established in
the United Kingdom in 2003 in an effort to improve the water quality of our rivers,
estuaries, coastal waters, reservoirs and groundwaters. A fundamental requirement
of the Water Framework Directive is to attain good ecological water quality status
and that deterioration in the status of waters is prevented. Any new development
must therefore ensure that these two fundamental requirements of the Directive are
not compromised. Issues that will need to be considered therefore include proper
connection to the sewage systems, controlled rain and storm runoff, and pollution
control.

9.1.8 Due to the complexity of coastal planning, you are strongly advised to contact
the Coastal Planning Coordinator in the Development Planning team
(coastal@plymouth.gov.uk) before you submit your planning application in order to
find out whether you will need to apply for other marine consents and licenses.

Further information on developments in the marine environment is available from
www.plymouth.gov.uk/tecf

9.2 Relevant planning policies

9.21 The guidance in this chapter
supports the following Core Strategy |
objectives and policies that relate to the &
marine and coastal environment:

e SO1 (Delivering Plymouth’s Strategic
Role) — this sets out the vision for
delivering development whilst
safeguarding natural resources through
limiting the use of greenfield sites (and
‘bluefield’), avoiding harming features of acknowledged importance, providing
for renewable energy and seeking new opportunities for enriching the city’s
biodiversity.

e Policy CS02 (Design) — this identifies the need for design to reflect Plymouth’s
setting and character and to protect key views.




Page 161

e Policy CS03 (Historic Environment) — this safeguards the character and setting
of historic features of the city and will apply to maritime related features as well
as terrestrial.

e Area Vision 10 (Plymouth Sound and Estuaries) — this recognises the need to
conserve and enhance the city’s unique coastal and waterfront setting,
promoting an integrated management approach to its sustainable development.
Also included in the policy are measures to protect the Port of Plymouth,
delivering the conservation objectives of the European Marine Site, improving
opportunities for water transport linkages and acknowledging the port’s
importance to the economy of the area through naval activities, commercial
shipping, fishing, tourism, recreation and leisure.

e Policy CS05 (Development of Existing Sites) — the priority for existing marine
employment sites will be to safeguard them for marine industrial uses that
require a waterfront location.

e  Strategic Objective 11 (Delivering a Sustainable Environment) — this sets out
the way in which the LDF will safeguard and promote access to Plymouth’s
coastal environments by conserving and enhancing biodiversity, by protecting
them from pollution and managing flood risk and working in partnership in order
to achieve an integrated approach.

e Policy CS19 (Wildlife) — this policy relates to safeguarding protected sites and
species from inappropriate development and impacts and ensuring that
development seeks to produce a net gain in biodiversity.

e Policy CS20 (Sustainable Resource Use) — this looks at the efficient use of
water and effective water management including the use of SUDs and also
ensuring that development and land use in the ‘coastal zone’ responds
appropriately to the character of the particular type of coast in order to preserve
and make best use of this limited resource.

e Policy CS21 (Flood Risk) — this states that development will not be permitted
in areas of flood risk unless the benefits outweigh the risks, that it does not
increase the risks for other areas and that no alternative sites are available. It
also sets out the requirements for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS).

e Policy CS22 (Pollution) — this emphasises that development must not cause
unacceptable levels of noise, nuisance, light, water or air pollution.

e Strategic Objective 14 (Delivering Sustainable Transport) — this describes the
need to support investment in public water transport, sea freight infrastructure,
including the safeguarding of key sites, encouraging modal shift away from
private cars, and promoting walking and cycling.

©
Q)
]
Q
(7))
—
a
o
@
<
@
]
©
3
@
>
—
o
@]
>
2
o
@
=
Q
==
©]
>
(7]

9.3 Environmental designations in the coastal zone

9.3.1 Plymouth’s coastal zone is protected by a number of environmental
designations in recognition of the special qualities of the marine and coastal
environment. These designations together help to ensure that the internationally,
regionally and locally important features of Plymouth Sound and the Tamar Estuaries
can flourish by minimising adverse effects from development.




©
@)
o)
o
(]
~—
o
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
D
g
@
-
o
=
o
>
(]

Page 162

Plymouth Sound and Estuaries European Marine Site

9.3.2 Plymouth Sound and Estuaries is
designated as a Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) under the European
Union’s Habitats Directive 92/443/EEC, as
implemented by the Conservation (Natural
Habitats, &c) Regulations 1994. Together,
these two designated areas constitute the
Plymouth Sound and Estuaries European
Marine Site. The habitats and species for which the area is listed are:

e Large shallow inlets and bays (including intertidal rocky shore communities,
sub tidal rocky reef, tide-swept channels and kelp forest communities)

e Estuaries (including intertidal and sub tidal mudflats, estuarine rocky habitats,
intertidal underboulder communities, blue mussel beds, salt marsh, atlantic salt
meadows and reed bed and coastal grazing marsh)

e Sandbanks which are slightly covered by seawater (including eelgrass beds
and gravel and sand communities)

e Reefs

e  Shore Dock

e Allis Shad.




Page 163

&
To Gunnislake l:l SPA/SAC
D Excluded from SAC

III Yealm Estuary Management

Calstock

Plan

Lopwell Dam

©
Q)
]
Q
(7))
—
a
o
@
<
@
]
©
3
@
>
—
o
@]
>
2
o
@
=
Q
==
©]
>
(7]

Kingsmill Lake \ =

Tamerton Lake

_ Royal Albert
Bridge

Saltash
St Germans

Torpoint Deveonport Sutton Q?
- Millbay  Harbour
St Johns Docks i

Laira Bridge
Lake

The Hoe

Cattewater

Mount Harbour

Lake

Jennycliff ’ —
Bay “!"

Wembury

Reproduced from the Ordnance Surveys digital maps with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Station Office. © Crown Copyright.
Plymouth City Council Licence No. 100018633. This map extract has been produced for the sole purposes of providing you with reference
information only. NO FURTHER COPIES CAN BE MADE. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

Published 2006.

9.3.3 The Tamar Estuaries Complex also qualifies as a Special Protection Area
(SPA) for the following nationally important populations of the regularly occurring
species listed in the Birds Directive:

e Avocet
e Little Egret.

This is by no means an exhaustive list but merely identifies the broad range of
species and habitats that are protected.

121




©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
Qo
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
@),
g
@
-
o
=5
o
>
(]

Page 164

Further information is available from www.plymouth.qov.uk/tecf

9.3.4 Underthese two European designations, no development is permitted which
would have a significant effect on the integrity of the habitats and features of the
European Marine Site listed above. There are exceptions to this whereby consent
may be given by the Secretary of State, but only if there are no alternative solutions
and if the proposal must be carried out for overriding public interests of a social or
economic nature and only then when compensatory habitat has been identified.

9.3.5 Where the proposed development may have a significant effect on the
habitats and species listed above, then formal consent from Natural England is a
statutory requirement. It should be noted that developments outside the European
Marine Site boundary may still have a detrimental impact on the international features
of importance for which the site has been designated. Decisions will also have
regard to the effects of the Water Framework Directive.

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs)

9.3.6 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) are designated under s.28 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 in order to safeguard and enhance the
characteristic plants, animals and physical features of our natural heritage. In
Plymouth the coastal SSSIs are Western King, Plymouth Shores and Cliffs
(Jennycliff) and the Tamar-Tavy. As part of the planning process, Natural England
must be consulted on any proposed developments that may impact on a SSSI.
Written consent must be obtained from Natural England before any operations likely
to damage the special interest of a SSSI can be carried out.

Information on where the coastal SSSIs are in Plymouth can be found at:
http.//www.natureonthemap.org.uk/map.aspx

County Wildlife Sites (CWS) and Local Nature Reserves (LNRs)

9.3.7 County Wildlife Sites are designated by a panel which includes the local
authority and Devon Wildlife Trust on the Plymouth side of the estuary. On the
Cornish side it is Cornwall Wildlife Trust. Whilst they are not statutory designations,
they are given protection through policy CS19 of Plymouth’s Core Strategy. The
key coastal sites in Plymouth are: the Plym Estuary upstream of Laira Bridge,
Blagdon’s Meadow, Saltram, Radford Lake, Hooe Lake, Hoe and Madeira Road,
Devil's Point, Warren Point, Jennycliff, Kinterbury Creek and the Ernesettle Complex.

9.3.8 Local Nature Reserves are designated by the local authority and are
protected under the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949. In
Plymouth the only coastal LNR is at Budshead Wood. Further information about
Plymouth's County Wildlife Sites and Local Nature Reserves can be found at
www.plymouth.gov.uk




Page 165

Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) Priority Habitats

9.3.9 Most intertidal and marine habitats are now also classified as BAP priority
habitats. Those relevant to the coastal zone in the Plymouth area include intertidal
underboulder communities, coastal saltmarsh, intertidal mudflats, seagrass beds,
sheltered muddy gravels and tide-swept channels and estuarine rocky habitats. As
with County Wildlife Sites they are afforded protection through the Local Development
Framework.

9.4 Considerations for coastal development

Environmental considerations

9.4.1 Any proposal for development in the coastal zone will be assessed for its
potential to produce ‘likely significant effects’ on the nature conservation interests
of the Plymouth Sound and Tamar Estuaries Special Area of Conservation (SAC),
Special Protection Area (SPA) and also on any Sites of Special Scientific Interest
near to the proposal site. Natural England will advise the organisation that is
assessing the application. For major developments, the applicant will be required
to undertake an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) or a more limited ecological
assessment according to the statutory regulations. This will provide information on
how the proposal will affect the SAC or SPA and what measures are available to
avoid or minimise these effects. The EIA should be undertaken on the developer’s
behalf by experienced professionals with input from a qualified ecologist.

9.4.2 Developments below the high water FE=5=
mark can have a profound effect on the
dynamic marine environment which can then
have a knock-on effect on other aspects of
the environment. Ultimately this can even
have repercussions on other users including §
the ability of the port to operate effectively
with open navigational channels.

9.4.3 Impacts can include:

e Physical loss of habitat area from built Example of a slipway designed with
structures such as slipways, jetties, complex surfaces to reduce impacts
land claim, dredging etc.

e Fragmentation of habitats where built structures divide the shore into smaller,
less sustainable units

e Physical damage to the habitat so that it degrades over the long-term e.g.
through increased trampling, anchoring or trawling, also shading impacts of
structures on underlying seabed habitats

e Biological disturbance e.g. through increased bait collection

e Pollution of the shore and estuary as a whole through increased runoff, pollution
incidents from construction sites, oil spills, disturbance of contaminated
sediments through dredging

©
Q)
o)
o
(]
%)
o
Q
)
<
o
o

e
=
o)
>
=,
Q
o
=]
@,
g
o)
-
o
=
o
=
(2]




©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
o
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
D
g
@
-
o
=
o
>
(]

Page 166

e  Obstruction of natural currents (hydrodynamics) by built structures such as
quays, slipways, walls etc. This can cause erosion of key habitats such as
saltmarshes and reedbeds

Contribution to adverse in-combination effects

Disturbance to wintering birds through interference, noise etc.

Disturbance to migratory fish

Disturbance to species protected under European law.

9.4.4 The most common concerns and issues raised through the planning process
relate to disturbance of the sediment during construction and the subsequent
re-mobilisation of any contaminants locked into this sediment.

9.4.5 The placement of pilings and structures on the seabed can alter the
hydrodynamics within the estuary which in turn can result in changes to sediment
movement causing the silting up of important habitats and also of important deep
water channels which are so vital for navigation.

9.4.6 Developments can cause the loss of intertidal and subtidal habitat. Even
small losses need to be avoided since whilst they may not be important in
themselves, continuous small losses can collectively have a major impact on the
overall functioning of the estuary through a process known as ‘cumulative loss’.
This is relevant to issues other than strictly ecology and includes the way in which
the estuary can dissipate energy and sediment, the potential impacts on patterns
of sedimentation and accretion and the fact that land reclamation at specific sites
will have estuary-wide implications over timescales of decades to centuries.

9.4.7 New development can also lead to increased runoff, which can lead to
higher levels of pollutants entering the waterbodies, for example road runoff, which
brings with it dissolved hydrocarbons. Any new development should therefore seek
to minimise the amount of surface water runoff.

9.4.8 The construction process in itself
can also have a detrimental impact on g
marine habitats, particularly when heavy &
plant machinery is used on the foreshore.
Details should therefore be provided under
a method statement on how this will be
minimised.

9.4.9 In order to ensure the protection of
Plymouth Sound and Estuaries, &
developments which would result in an & . S : .
element of detrimental impact must have Good use of local materials
regard to the following principles listed in

order of importance:




Page 167

e Avoidance: that there is no alternative site for the development and that it has
to take place. That the development is no larger than is absolutely necessary
and that no existing structures can be utilised

e Minimisation: that all methods for design to benefit biodiversity have been
included in the development. Further information is given in section 9.5

e Mitigation of adverse effects: that any adverse effects have been offset by
corresponding environmental benefits

e Compensation for adverse effects: if habitat is lost, then compensatory
habitat must be created.

9.4.10 Once a development is deemed necessary then, regardless of which
licences are required, the developer will need to demonstrate that they have taken
all steps necessary to minimise detrimental impact on the biodiversity. There are
proven methods in design and construction that are known to benefit nature
conservation. These are given in section 9.5.

Economic considerations

9.4.11 The potential impact of any development on those with an interest in using
the waters will need to be identified and a balanced view taken whilst recognising
the strategic importance of the port for defence, commerce, energy and all other
economic uses both now and into the future.

Navigation considerations

9.4.12 Plymouth Sound and the estuarine waters are heavily used by the navy,
commercial shipping and a wide range of recreational vessels. This activity relies
heavily on the navigational channels being kept open to ensure sufficient depth of
water to allow the passage of boats and ships. In many places the usable water for
this passage is actually very narrow so it is important that development does not
impact on the hydrodynamics, and that any navigation is not affected.

9.4.13 At night, mariners rely heavily on navigational lights to guide them safely
in and out of harbour. These lights can easily be obscured by glare from other city
lighting so it is important that lighting associated with new developments does not
affect navigation.

Climate change and coastal defence considerations

9.4.14 Current projects for climate change show that the Plymouth area will be
affected by a rise in sea level and increased storminess, which could clearly impact
on the low-lying coastal areas. It will therefore be important that any future
development has regard for these anticipated changes.

9.4.15 The Shoreline Management Plan for South Devon and Dorset sets out the
priorities for protecting the coastline from sea level rises. Since Plymouth is an urban
area of high population, its whole coastline is identified for ‘holding the line’ which

©
Q)
o)
o
(]
%)
o
Q
)
<
o
o

e
=
o)
>
=,
Q
o
=]
@,
g
o)
-
o
=
o
=
(2]




©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
Qo
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
@),
g
@
-
o
=5
o
>
(]

Page 168

means that sea defences will need to be maintained and where necessary raised
to protect the land. Any development will need to have regard for the policies set
out in this plan

Further information about the Shoreline Management Plan for South Devon and
Dorset is available from: http.//www.sdadcag.org/SMP.html

Recreation considerations

9.4.16 Access both to the waterfront and onto the water itself is clearly of critical
importance for recreational user groups. A mix of wharves, pontoons, slipways,
car-parking with boat storage facilities along with marinas, pontoons and landing
stages are required as are club facilities with changing where appropriate.

9.4.17 The waterside area is also important for other forms of recreation, be it
swimming, paddling, rock-pooling, walking the South West Coast Path or simply
taking in the views. It is therefore important that public access to the waterfront is
safeguarded and where appropriate encouraged in order that these activities can
continue.

9.4.18 Waterfront developments that shut off access to and from the sea therefore
prevent the fulfilment of the Council's stated vision of being a vibrant waterfront city
in which the inhabitants are actively engaged with the sea.

9.5 Minimising the ecological impacts of development

9.5.1 This section sets out guidance as to how coastal development can be carried
out so as to minimise any adverse environmental impacts.

General coastal developments

9.5.2 This includes waterfront developments, coastal defence schemes and other
schemes which involve construction of structures adjacent to the shoreline or below
mean high water springs. Also included are boathouses and slipways.

9.5.3 If done badly, waterfront development and coastal defence schemes have
the potential to impact on the ecology of the estuary through poor working practices
during construction (noise and pollution), through loss of habitat or by indirectly
causing changes to the way in which the estuary functions.

9.5.4 Inorderto avoid these impacts, waterfront development should comply with
the following guidance set out in Table 9.1:




Page 169

Potential impacts on ecology of the

estuary

Temporary disturbance to birds during

construction if the development is
situated close to important bird
feeding/breeding or roosting areas

Risk of pollution incidents during
construction

Damage to foreshore habitats during
construction if construction plant need
to access the shore

Loss of intertidal or subtidal habitat
within the footprint of the development
if it involves land claim

Loss of fish nursery areas if the
development involves land claim or
disturbance to the foreshore

Loss of bird feeding or roosting
habitat if the development involves
land claim

Potential changes to morphology of
the estuary if the scheme involves
land claim or construction of
structures below mean high water
springs

Increase in levels of bird disturbance
if the development is situated close
to bird feeding areas and will
encourage increased numbers of
people to use the land/sea interface

Potential impact on bat roosts due to
modification of waterfront properties
and/or loss of tree roots

Potential impact on otters

Suggested measures to reduce impacts

If the development is situated near bird
feeding areas, undertake construction
outside bird over-wintering period

During construction follow relevant
Environment Agency Pollution Prevention
Guidelines. Further information available
from www.environment-agency.gov.uk/

If the development involves land-take,
create compensatory habitat elsewhere in
the estuary, for example by managed
realignment.

Minimise working area during construction
and only allow construction plant onto the
shore if strictly necessary

Design structures to minimise impacts on
coastal processes, for example construct
jetties on open piled structures rather than
solid infill.

Adopt more natural coastal protection
measures where possible such as beach
nourishment.

Use materials for construction with
complex surfaces with crevices or
indentations to encourage colonisation by
marine flora and fauna.

Use sustainable urban drainage schemes
(SUDS) to minimise run-off and associated
impacts.

Ensure planning applications are screened
for potential impact to bat roosts.
Developments should be informed by a
Bat Roost Survey if necessary.

Ensure that bridges and culverts are
designed to accommodate the safe
passage of otters and migratory fish.

127

©
Q)
]
QD
(7))
—
a
o
@
<
w
]
©
3
@
>
—
o
©)
>
2
o
@
=
Q
==
©]
>
(7]




©
O
o
Q
(]
—
L
o
@
<
Lz
(®]
©
3
@
>
~
Q
(@]
>
o,
[oX
@
=
V)
=2
o
>
()

Page 170

Potential impacts on ecology of the
estuary

Potential impact on lichen
communities on river side trees,
exposed substrate and mining
heritage buildings in the Upper Tamar

Suggested measures to reduce impacts

Developments with potential to impact on

river side trees, exposed substrate and
mining heritage buildings on the Upper
Tamar should be informed by a Lichen
Survey.

Minimise unnecessary artificial lighting.

Table 9.1 — Reducing the ecological impacts of coastal development

Marinas / Jetties

9.5.5 Marinas and jetties have the potential of impacting on the marine environment
both directly in their construction, but also indirectly through their potential of
changing the hydrodynamics of the estuary or causing increased shading of the

seabed.

9.5.6 In order to minimise the impacts the following further guidance is given in

Table 9.2:

Potential impacts on ecology of the

estuary

Temporary disturbance to birds during
construction, if the development is
situated close to important bird feeding
areas.

Loss of seabed habitat within footprint
of slipways, jetties or other structures

Risk of pollution incidents during
construction

Risk of water quality impacts during
operation from input of antifouling or
boat-cleaning chemicals etc

Potential disturbance to sediments
during construction and subsequent
redistribution of contaminated sediments
within the estuary

Suggested measures to reduce
impacts

If development is near bird feeding
areas, undertake construction outside
bird over-wintering period

During construction follow relevant
Environment Agency Pollution
Prevention Guidelines

If the development involves land-take,
create compensatory habitat elsewhere
in the estuary, for example by managed
realignment.

Locate development away from
important bird feeding areas.

Encourage best practice by the
provision of waste receptor facilities etc.

128




Page 171

Potential impacts on ecology of the | Suggested measures to reduce
estuary impacts

Disturbance to fish passage during piling | Design new structures so as to minimise
or blasting works effects on coastal processes e.g. open

piling rather than solid infill
Increase in general levels of bird

disturbance within the estuary from Undertake any works (e.g. piling) which
increase in levels of boating could affect migration of fish outside

Salmon and Allis shad migration season
Potential changes to morphology of the | (March to October)

estuary through interruption of coastal
processes

Table 9.2 — Reducing the ecological impacts of marinas and jetties
Dredging

9.5.7 The river basin is a highly dynamic environment, with many hundreds of
tonnes of sediment constantly on the move carried by the currents and tides. When
currents slow, the sediments carried by the water are deposited on the seabed. If
the currents remain slow, then these sediments can build up over time leading to
a reduction in water depth and problems for ships. Dredging of sediment from the
seabed is therefore often a necessary part of a development in order to secure
sufficient depth of water for boats to pass safely.

9.5.8 If dredging is required as part of the development, then a license from the
Marine Management Organisation along with the necessary permissions must be
secured prior to work being undertaken.

9.5.9 Whilst it is recognised that dredging is vital to the proper functioning of the
port, thereby providing economic benefits, dredging has the potential to cause major
impacts through damage to the seabed habitat and its species, changes to the
hydrodynamics and pollution through the resuspension of contaminated material.

9.5.10 In order to avoid this, it is recommended that dredging complies with the
following in Table 9.3:

Potential impacts on ecology of the Suggested measures to reduce impacts

estuary

Damage to seabed habitat and Undertake dredging works outside salmon
species within footprint of the dredge | migratory season (in consultation with the

Environment Agency)
Potential change in type of seabed

habitat if the dredge exposes a Choose appropriate dredging plant to
different type of substratum minimise levels of suspended sediment

©
Q)
]
QD
(7))
—
a
o
@
<
w
]
©
3
@
>
—
o
©)
>
2
o
@
=
Q
==
©]
>
(7]




©
O
o
Q
(]
—
L
o
@
<
Lz
(®]
©
3
@
>
~
Q
(@]
>
o,
[oX
@
=
V)
=2
o
>
()

Page 172

Potential impacts on ecology of the | Suggested measures to reduce impacts
estuary

Potential temporary disturbance to
birds during the dredge due to
presence of dredging plant

Redistribution of contaminated
sediments within the estuary

Increases in levels of suspended
sediment during the dredge, with
subsequent effects on fisheries

Increases in sediment deposition
during the dredge with subsequent
impacts on fisheries, shellfisheries
and seabed habitats

Changes to estuary hydrology
through alteration of coastal
processes

Impacts on hydrodynamics and
sedimentology of the estuary complex

Impacts of dredged arisings at
disposal site

If the dredge is likely to cause loss of
intertidal habitat (either directly or indirectly
through alterations to the tidal or wave
regime), create compensatory habitat,
such as through managed realignment

Consider beneficial use schemes such as
water column recharge to minimise loss of
material from the estuarine system and
minimise effects of disposal. It should be
noted that there may be conflicts between
water column recharge schemes and the
need to reduce mobilisation of
contaminated and suspended sediments.

Table 9.3 — Reducing the ecological impacts of dredging

Footpaths / cycleways adjacent to the estuary

9.5.11 Increased human activity near the water’s edge can disturb over-wintering
birds and can cause damage to fragile habitats through trampling. Table 9.4 sets
out good practice to reduce the ecological impact from walking and cycling.

Potential impacts on ecology of the

estuary

Temporary disturbance to birds during
construction, if the development is

situated close to important bird areas
(such as feeding areas or roost sites)

Suggested measures to reduce impacts

If development is near bird feeding areas,

undertake construction outside bird
over-wintering period

Consider constructing screening in
sensitive areas to minimise disturbance to
bird feeding or roosting area




Page 173

Potential impacts on ecology of the Suggested measures to reduce impacts

estuary

Increase in levels of disturbance to | Avoid increased access to fragile habitats
birds during use of the footpath and | such as saltmarshes and reedbeds.
cycleway if the development is
situated close to important bird areas
(such as feeding areas or roost sites)

Table 9.4 — Reducing the ecological impacts of walking and cycling
9.6 Consents for development within the coastal zone

9.6.1 In addition to the requirement for a planning application, other licences and
permissions relating to protecting the environment below high water, as well as
protecting navigational activities and the rights of other users, will need to be secured
from other agencies before any work can be started.

9.6.2 Any development below the high water mark will require a ‘marine consent’
from the Marine Management Organisation. If the development lies within the
intertidal area between high water and low water mark, then both planning permission
and marine consents are required.

9.6.3 Additional consents may be required from the harbour authority and the
Environment Agency.

9.6.4 Table 9.5 sets out some of the main consents needed for coastal
development. Section 9.7 provides contact details and further information on
agencies that decide these consents and on other agencies that may need to be
contacted in relation to coastal development.

See www.plymouth.qov.uk/tecf for further information.

©
Q)
]
Q
(7))
—
a
o
@
<
@
]
©
3
@
>
—
o
@]
>
2
o
@
=
Q
==
©]
>
(7]




2U0Z [B}Se09 3Y) UIY}IM Judwdo|daAap 10} SJUBSUOD — G'6 d|del

"8IS |esodsIp pasusol| ul
ees Je Juswipas pabpalp
pajeulWwe)uod-uou

M M 1o [esodsiq
4
P~ ‘pPoyaw
— pue aWn|oA 8y} uo puadap |jIm Buibpaip Aq pagess ayy
() paJinbal seous9l| 8s10a1d ay | S N M | wouuswIpes Jo [erowsy
(@]
© wiejo pue
o M r M M r :

"90uUa}ap POoj}

‘syIom uo1oa}oid |B}SE0D
‘sasnoyjeoq ‘swiope|d
Buiysy ‘skemdi|s
‘sbuloow ‘seunew
‘samar "6 sbuuds
Jayem ybiy uesw mojaq
N S N N M N M | s®4njonus jo uonoNSUOY

|eaoaddy
juasuo?n aouaIT] juasuo’n JoV uoljewoul JayM
abeuleiq | Juswabeuepy juasuo) | (sal)fyuoyiny uono9joid 90UddI7  uoIssiuLIdd
pueT 13)epp abieyosiqg JinogJeH }seo) Vd34 Bujuueld

9 Coastal development considerations




Page 175

9.7 Further information

9.7.1 The following lists the key ‘relevant’ authorities as defined by the Habitats
Regulations. These are the statutory bodies which have the powers or functions
that could potentially impact on the key biodiversity features of the coastal zone.
These are the bodies who should, according to the proposal, be consulted.

9.7.2 Associated British Ports (ABP)

Plymouth Port Office, Millbay Docks, Plymouth PL1 3EF, Tel: 01752 662191
www.abports.co.uk/custinfo/ports/plym.htm

Remit: ABP's operation within the Port of Plymouth is centred at Millbay Docks.
From here they are engaged in commercial activities and are consulted as a
major land owner and user of Plymouth Sound.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the boundaries of
Millbay Docks and the Port of Plymouth.

9.7.3 Cattewater Harbour Commission

2 The Barbican, Plymouth, PL1 2RLR, Tel: 01752 665934
www.plymouthport.org.uk

Remit: The commission is the Statutory Authority for the Cattewater, having
an obligation to conserve and facilitate the safe use of the harbour. In addition,
the commission is, under the Pilotage Act 1987, the Competent Harbour
Authority for the Port of Plymouth and is charged with assessing the need for
pilotage and providing sufficient assets to cover the demand. This duty is
carried out within a joint arrangement with the MoD.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the jurisdiction of the
Cattewater Harbour Commission.

9.7.4 Cornwall Council
For Environmental Management:

County Hall, Truro, TR1 3AY, Tel: 0300 1234 202
www.cornwall.gov.uk

For Planning:

Luxstowe House, Liskeard, Cornwall, PL14 3DZ, Tel: 0300 1234 151
www.cornwall.gov.uk

Remit: The Planning Service assesses all planning applications for the County
and regulates unauthorised development.

©
Q)
o)
o
(]
%)
o
Q
)
<
o
o

e
=
o)
>
=,
Q
o
=]
@,
g
o)
-
o
=
o
=
(2]




Page 176

The Regeneration Service delivers a very wide range of both statutory and
non-statutory services which include local and strategic planning; planning
compliance; coastal planning; stewardship of the natural and historic
environment.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the administrative
boundaries of this council.

9.7.4a Cornwall Inshore Fisheries & Conservation Authority (CIFCA)

St Clare Offices,St Clare Street, Penzance, Cornwall, TR18 3QW, Tel: 01736
336 842

www.cornwall-ifca.gov.uk
Remit: As DSIFCA remit

©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
Qo
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
@),
g
@
-
o
=5
o
>
(]

To be consulted on: Any developments below mean high water springs
(MHWS), especially where dredging is involved.

9.7.5 Devon and Severn Inshore Fisheries & Conservation Authority
Committee (DSIFCA)

Old Foundry Court, 60a Fore Street, Brixham, Devon, TQ5 8DZ, Tel: 01803
854648

www.devonandsevernifca.gov.uk

Remit: DSIFCA’s primary role is the enforcement of European, national and
local legislation in relation to the conservation of fish stocks. The Authority's
jurisdiction and byelaw making powers extend from the coastline out to 6 miles.
All of the Tamar Estuaries, including the western banks of the river, are included
in the Devon area under an arrangement with Cornwall Council. They advise
on how developments may have a detrimental impact on the commercial fish
stocks within the area.

To be consulted on: Any developments below mean high water springs
(MHWS), especially where dredging is involved.

9.7.6 Devon County Council

Lucombe House, Topsham Road, Exeter, Devon. EX2 4QW. Tel 01392 383019
www.devon.gov.uk

Remit: Responsible for strategic planning.
To be consulted on: any developments which are of strategic importance.
9.7.7 Duchy of Cornwall (not a Relevant authority)

Lamellion House, Station Road, Liskeard, Cornwall, PL14 4EE, Tel: 01579
343149




Page 177

www.duchyofcornwall.org

Remit: Owns much of the fundus (river bed) in the Plymouth Sound and Tamar
Estuaries.

To be consulted on: Any developments that may affect their property holdings.
9.7.8 English Heritage

29 Queen Street, Bristol, BS1 4ND, Tel: 0117 975 0700
www.english-heritage.org.uk

Remit: Government body responsible for the protection of cultural heritage,
such as scheduled monuments and protected wrecks.

©
Q)
o)
o
(]
%)
o
Q
)
<
o
o

e
=
o)
>
=,
Q
o
=]
@,
g
o)
-
o
=
o
=
(2]

To be consulted on: Any developments that have the potential to affect
cultural heritage, such as listed buildings, scheduled monuments, conservation
areas, or protected wrecks.

9.7.9 Environment Agency

Cornwall Area, Sir John Moore House, Victoria Square, Bodmin, Cornwall,
PL31 1EB, Tel: 08708 506 506
www.environment-agency.gov.uk

Remit: Advises on environmental impacts, also provides advice on a range
of scientific aspects including standards for sampling/monitoring for water and
sediment quality, fisheries and waste management. They will also advise on
the need for a flood risk assessment and other Environment Agency consents.

To be consulted on: All developments
9.7.10 Marine Management Organisation

Head Office: PO Box 1275, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE99 5BN. Tel: 0300
1231032

Plymouth Office: Fish Quay, Sutton Harbour, Plymouth, PL4 OLH, Tel: 01752
228001

www.marinemanagement.org.uk

Remit: Responsible, on behalf of DEFRA, for the administration of a range of
applications for statutory licences and consents to undertake works in tidal
waters and at sea. They will provide advice on the consents required for
development below MHWS and the extent of environmental information
required to support these consents. They will also consider influences on fish
stocks in the local area.




Page 178

To be consulted on: All developments below high water. Marine Licence
applications are dealt with through the Newcastle office, although early contact
with the Plymouth office is recommended.

9.7.11 Natural England

Cornwall Devon and Isles of Scilly Team, Renslade House, Bonhay Road,
Exeter, EX4 3AW, Tel: 0300 060 2424
www.naturalengland.org.uk

Remit: Natural England is the statutory body charged with the role of preserving
the wildlife and natural heritage of England, working with land managers and
owners on a local basis. Natural England will advise whether “appropriate
assessment” is required for development under the Habitats Regulations. They
will also advise on the scope of environmental assessment required for
developments.

©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
Qo
Q
)
<
o
o)

S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
@),
g
@
-
o
=5
o
>
(]

To be consulted on: All developments (especially those within SACs, SPA
or SSSIs).

9.7.12 Plymouth City Council

Planning Service, Civic Centre, Plymouth, PL1 2EW, Tel: 01752 304354
www.plymouth.gov.uk

Remit: The Planning Service delivers a wide variety of both statutory and
non-statutory services which includes Local and Strategic Planning, Planning
Applications, Planning Compliance, Coastal Planning and stewardship of the
natural and historic environment.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the administrative
boundaries of this council.

9.7.13 Queen’s Harbour Master

Longroom House, RM Stonehouse, Plymouth, PL1 3RT, Tel: 01752 836485
www.ghmplymouth.org.uk

Remit: Established by statute, the Queen's Harbour Master is the harbour
authority for the Dockyard Port of Plymouth. They are charged with protecting
the port in the national interest, such that the use by the Royal Navy and other
defence interests is assured. Integral in this task is the operational and
administrative management of the waters of the port to the benefit of all users.
The harbourmaster will advise on the potential for navigational conflict from
developments.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the boundaries of or
influence the Dockyard Port of Plymouth.




Page 179

9.7.14 South Hams District Council

Planning Services, Follaton House, Plymouth Road, Totnes, Devon, TQ9 5NE.
Tel: 01803 861234
www.southhams.gov.uk

Remit: The Planning Service delivers a wide variety of both statutory and
non-statutory services which includes Local and Strategic Planning, Planning
Applications, Planning Compliance and Coastal Planning.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the administrative
boundaries of this council.

9.7.15 Sutton Harbour Company

©
Q)
]
Q
(7))
—
a
o
@
<
@
]
©
3
@
>
—
o
@]
>
2
o
@
=
Q
==
©]
>
(7]

North Quay House, Sutton Harbour, Plymouth, PL4 ORA, Tel: 01752 204186
www.sutton-harbour.co.uk

Remit: The Sutton Harbour Company under the Sutton Harbour Acts and
Orders 1847 to 1988 is responsible for navigation, quays, the Sutton Harbour
Marina, the Fish Market, roadways and other developments within the Harbour.

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall inside the jurisdiction of the
Sutton Harbour Company.

9.7.16 Tamar Estuaries Consultative Forum (TECF)

c/o Development Planning, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, Plymouth,
PL1 2EW, Tel: 01752 304339
www.tamar-estuaries.org.uk

Remit: TECF is a non-statutory partnership that exists to allow collaboration
and consultation. Representatives from many organisations sit on this Forum
offering a wide knowledge base. TECF hold much data on the nature
conservation interests of the estuary and may also act as a focal point for
consultation

To be consulted on: Any developments within the Plymouth Sound &
Estuaries SAC, and the Tamar Estuaries Complex SPA.

9.7.17 West Devon Borough Council

Planning & Building Control, Kilworthy Park, Tavistock, Devon PL19 0BZ. Tel
01822 813600
www.westdevon.gov.uk

Remit: Delivers a wide variety of both statutory and non-statutory services
which includes Local and Strategic Planning, Planning Applications and
Planning Compliance.




Page 180

To be consulted on: Any developments that fall within the administration
boundries of this council.

©
@)
o)
o
(]
L
L
Q
)
<
o
o)
S
3
@
>
~
Q
o
2
@),
g
@
-
o
=5
o
>
(]




Page 181

10 Glossary of terms

Accessibility — The ability of people to move around an area and reach places and
facilities, including elderly and disabled people, those with young children and those
encumbered with luggage or shopping.

Amenity — A positive element or elements that contribute to the overall character
or enjoyment of an area.

Area Action Plan (AAP) — A type of Development Plan Document that will be used
to provide a planning framework for an area subject to significant change or
conservation.

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) — An area with statutory national
landscape designation, the primary purpose of which is to conserve and enhance
natural beauty. Together with National Parks, AONB represent the nation's finest
landscapes. AONBs are designated by the Countryside Agency.

Biodiversity — The whole variety of life encompassing all genetics, species and
ecosystem variations, including plants and animals.

Blank frontage — A building which has no windows or doors facing onto a street,
road or public space.

Building Control — The section of the Council responsible for ensuring construction
work and development accord with the Building Regulations.

Building Regulations — National construction standards.

Character — A term relating to the appearance of an area,in terms of its landscape
or the layout of streets and open spaces, often giving places their own distinct
identity.

Change of use — A change in the way that land or buildings are used. Planning
permission is usually necessary in order to change from one ‘use class’ to another.

Climate change — Long-term changes in temperature, precipitation, wind and all
other aspects of the Easrth’s climate. Often regarded as a result of human activity
and fossil fuel consumption.

Conditions — Requirements attached to a planning permission to limit, control or
direct the manner in which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.

Conservation Area — An area designated for its special architectural or historic
interest. The Council has a statutory obligation to seek the preservation or
enhancement of its character or appearance.

Core Strategy — ADevelopment Plan Document setting out the spatial vision and
strategic objectives of the planning framework for an area.

-
=)
@
o)
(9]
(%]
Q
<
o
=X
—
o)
=}
3
7




=N
o
@
(@]
wn
wn
®
<
(@]
o,
—
()
-
=
(72}

Page 182

Council — The local authority, Plymouth City Council.

Development Plan Document (DPD) — A document prepared by the Local Planning
Authority outling the key development goals of the Local Development Framework.

Highway — A publicly maintained road, together with footways and verges.

Legibility — The extent to which people can understand the layout of a place and
find their way around it, this may include cues from distinct landmarks, forms and
patterns in the landscape.

Lifetime Homes Standards — Criteria developed by a group convened by the
Joseph Rowntree Foundation in 1991 to help house-builders produce new homes
flexible enough to deal with changes in the life situations of occupants.

Listed Building — A building on the government’s statutory list of buildings of special
architectural or historic interest.

Local Development Document (LDD) — This will either be a Development Plan
Document or a Supplementary Planning Document and will be contained within a
Local Development Framework.

Local Development Framework (LDF) — This will include a portfolio of Local
Development Documents that will provide a framework for delivering the spatial
planning strategy for the area. It will also contain a number of other documents,
including the annual monitoring report, and any ‘saved’ plans that affect the area.

Local distinctiveness — The essence of what makes a place special to us. Itis the
sum of landscape, wildlife, archaeology, history, traditions, and buildings — essentially
everything that makes a place truly unique.

Natural surveillance — The placement of buildings around a space or along a street
which are designed and sited such that people within the buildings can see what is
happening outside. It can act as a discouragement to anti-social behaviour.

Permitted Development Rights — Permission to carry out certain limited forms of
development without the need to make an application to the local planning authority,
as granted under the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order.

Planning Permission— Formal approval sought from a council, often granted with
conditions, allowing a proposed development to proceed.

Planning Policy Guidance (PPG)- A national planning guidance document. A
range of these provide detailed guidance on particular issues. These are gradually
being replaced by new PPS documents.

Planning Policy Statement (PPS)- A national planning guidance document. A
range of these provide detailed guidance on particular issues.

140




Page 183

Planning Portal- A national website provided by the government for members of
the public, local planning authorities and planning consultants. It features a wide
range of information and services on planning (www.planningportal.gov.uk).

Public realm — Those parts of a city that are available for everyone to use. This
includes streets, squares and parks.

Secure By Design — A police initiative to encourage the building industry to adopt
crime prevention measures in development design to assist in reducing the
opportunity for crime and the fear of crime, creating a safer and more secure
environment.

Setting — The area surrounding a site or building, i.e. "its setting".

Special Area of Conservation (SAC) — A site designated under the European
Community Habitats Directive, to protect internationally important natural habitats
and species.

Special Protection Area (SPA) — A site classified under the European Community
Directive on Wild Birds to protect internationally important bird species.

Sui-Generis — A term given to the uses of land or buildings not falling into any of
the use classes identified by the Use Classes Order.

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) — A Local Development Document
that may cover a wide range of issues on which the plan-making authority wishes
to provide guidance and detail to supplement the policies and proposals in
Development Plan Documents. It will not form part of the development plan or be
subject to independent examination.

Topography — The shape and configuration of the surface of the land, for example
hilly or flat.

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) — A mechanism for securing the preservation of
single or groups of trees of acknowledged amenity value.

Use Classes Order — The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987
puts uses of land and buildings into various categories. Planning permission is not
needed for changes of use within the same use class.

-
=)
@
o)
(9]
(%]
Q
<
o
=X
—
o)
=}
3
7

141




Page 184

10 Glossary of terms

142




Page 185 Agenda ltem 9

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

CABINET MINUTE 166a OF 9 APRIL 2013
ADOPTION OF COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CHARGING SCHEDULE

The City Council is Recommended to adopt -

(1)  the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule attached as
Appendix | to the written report, and set the date for the Charging
Schedule to take effect as | June 2013;

(2) the Community Infrastructure Levy Instalments Policy attached as
Appendix 2 to the written report.

Cabinet Minute 166 — Cabinet decision (for information)

The Director for Place submitted a written report on a proposal for the City Council to adopt the
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was a new levy that local authorities could charge on
developments in their area and the money raised could be used to support new development by funding
infrastructure that the city, local communities and neighbourhoods needed. It was introduced by the
government as a means of replacing, over time, the use of Section 106 Agreements for securing financial
contributions from developers.

A statutory process governed the introduction of CIL, requiring the publication of a charging schedule for
consultation and a public examination. No changes had been made following the public examination.

The council had also consulted on a draft CIL Instalments Policy which needed to be published with the
charging schedule and the council’s current Market Recovery Scheme, which provided for the application
of discounts to current tariff charges would need to be rescinded when the charging schedule became
operational.

Councillor Evans presented the report.

The Assistant Director for Planning Services indicated that the proposed charging schedule was
one of the lowest across the UK and included a zone which included City Centre, and parts of
Millbay and Sutton Harbour where zero rates applied for residential and student accommodation

applied.

Alternative options considered and reasons for the decision —

As set out in the report.

Subject to adoption of the CIL Charging Schedule and Instalments Policy by the City Council,

Final 11 April 2013 Not protectively marked



Page 186

Agreed to —

(1) delegate authority to the Assistant Director for Planning Services to
make available discretionary relief in exceptional circumstances
should the need to offer such discretionary relief become apparent;

(2) formally rescind the council’s Market Recovery Scheme from | June
2013;

(3) instruct officers to keep under review the effectiveness and impacts
of the charging schedule.

Note:
The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867



Page 187

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Adoption of Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 2 April 2013

Cabinet Member: Councillor Vincent

CMT Member: Antony Payne (Director for Place)

Author: Peter Hearn — Planning Officer

Contact: Tel: 01752 307944

e-mail: peter.hearn@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: PH/CIL/4
Key Decision: Yes
Part: I

Purpose of the report:

This report seeks Cabinet approval for the adoption of the Council’s Community
Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule, which has now been through Public Examination.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new levy that local authorities in England and
Wales can choose to charge on developments in their area to help fund infrastructure
improvements. |t was first introduced in April 2010 and is now a major plank of the localism
agenda, with provisions identified in the Localism Act, and with detailed Regulations having
been put in place to provide for its implementation. It is the Government’s intention that CIL
replaces ‘tariff type approaches to Section 106 agreements.

The money raised through CIL can be used to support new development by funding
infrastructure that the city, local communities and neighbourhoods need — for example, new
road schemes, park improvements or improvements to local school capacity.

The CIL Regulations prescribe the process by which a CIL is introduced. A Preliminary
Draft Charging Schedule (PDCS) must be published for consultation, followed by a Draft
Charging Schedule (DCS), which sets out for consideration at an independent Public
Examination the CIL charge/s that a charging authority is intending to apply to development
in its area , expressed in £s per square metre. (Plymouth City Council undertook an
additional round of consultation on a Revised Draft Charging Schedule).

The Regulations also prescribe that:

e CIL Charging Authorities (i.e. Councils) must identify the infrastructure on which
they intend to spend CIL receipts in what is known as a ‘Regulation 123 List’. This
list must be published when the CIL Charging Schedule is adopted, to ensure that
developers are not also required to pay for the infrastructure identified on the list



Page 188

through the Section 106 mechanism. The Council’s Regulation 123 List is the
subject of a separate report to this Cabinet meeting.

e The Charging Schedule must be adopted by Full Council.

A CIL payment Instalments Policy needs to be published alongside the Council’s Charging
Schedule, to provide developers with clarity about payment procedures and expectations.
The Council has consulted on a Draft Instalments Policy, alongside the various drafts of its
Charging Schedule.

Once Plymouth’s CIL Charging Schedule becomes operational, its current Tariff approach
will be defunct, although there will still be scope to seek developer contributions towards
infrastructure provision through the Section 106 mechanism, as detailed in the Council’s
Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document — Second
Review, which was adopted by the Council on 12" July 2012. The Council’s current Market
Recovery Scheme, which provides for the application of discounts to current Tariff charges,
and which has its origins in the 2008 Market Recovery Action Plan, will need to be rescinded
when the Charging Schedule becomes operational.

Corporate Plan 2012-2015:

The report directly supports the Council’s vision for the city as well as its priority for
delivering growth. The Community Infrastructure Levy will deliver resources towards the
infrastructure required to unlock the City’s growth potential. For example, CIL receipts
can be used to:

e Help create the conditions for growth and therefore the achievement of sustainable
growth in jobs and GVA (Level | indicators).

e Support the achievement of a good range of houses (Level | & 2 indicators).

e Assist with the delivery of employment land (Level 2 indicator).

In addition, CIL receipts will support the Council’s other three priorities in the following
ways:

e ‘Providing value for communities’ - by ensuring that development contributes to and
does not harm local communities, and by securing resources to help deliver
improvements in communities.

e ‘Raising aspirations’ — particularly through securing additional resources that can support
the wider learning infrastructure of the city.

e ‘Reducing inequalities’ — particularly through securing additional resources for
infrastructure investments that improve community well-being.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

The introduction of CIL will ensure that the Council is able to continue to secure
developer contributions to address the community infrastructure implications of
development and the growth of the city. CIL receipts will not entirely replace the
use of Planning Obligations through the Section 106 process, and when considered
alongside those Planning Obligations that are still able to be negotiated, there should



Page 189

be a significant increase on what has historically been delivered through the Section
|06 process alone. However, CIL receipts will take time to build up into a significant
resource.

The Council is able to charge an administration fee of up to 5% in levying CIL, which
will substantially meet the costs of operating CIL. Cost pressures arising are
primarily staffing related and will in the first instance need to be met from the
Planning Department revenue budget. There is currently £20,000 in the Planning
approved capital programme 2013/14 to acquire a CIL database.  Options
surrounding its implementation and the need to develop the most cost-effective
administration and monitoring system are currently under consideration.

CIL is subject to new enforcement procedures, and there is therefore be a
requirement for new legal procedures to be put in place and acted upon.

Other implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety,
Risk Management and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion:

The Community Infrastructure Levy may support community cohesion, community safety,
addressing child poverty or health and safety by, for example, assisting with the
implementation of infrastructure that improves road safety, improves defences against
flooding, improves healthcare provision, improves open space through better lighting, etc.

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out and this confirms that, by having the
effect of helping to mitigate the adverse impacts of development, the impacts of CIL are
entirely positive in equalities terms.

The introduction of CIL offers the best prospect of optimising income generated from
developer contributions whilst at the same time safeguarding the overall viability of
development in the city. Tariff-based approaches to securing developer contributions
through Section 106 Agreements are very constrained by the CIL Regulations, which in any
case provide for the demise of such approaches by April 2014. CIL will therefore
significantly reduce risks associated with Risk No. 80 identified on the Council’s Strategic
Risk Register (Planning obligations — implications of new legal framework and current economic
circumstances).

Equality and Diversity
Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? Yes

Key findings are included in the main body of the report.

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:
It is recommended that the Cabinet:

l. Recommend that Full Council adopt the CIL Charging Schedule attached as
Appendix |, and set the date for the Charging Schedule to take effect as | June
2013.



Page 190

Reason: To ensure that the CIL Charging Schedule is adopted with appropriate
authority, (Part 11, s213 of the Planning Act 2008 requires the CS to be adopted by
Full Council) and to ensure that Plymouth is thereby well placed to continue to
secure developer contributions towards meeting the infrastructure needs of the city.

Recommend that Full Council adopt the CIL Instalments Policy attached as
Appendix 2.

Reason: Whilst there is no legal requirement for the CIL Instalments Policy to be
approved by Full Council in the way that Full Council must approve the CIL
Charging Schedule, the Instalments Policy is integral to the operation of the
Charging Schedule and therefore merits approval alongside the CIL Charging
Schedule.

Delegate authority to the Assistant Director (Planning) to make available
Discretionary Relief in Exceptional Circumstances should the need to offer such
Discretionary Relief become apparent.

Reason: To provide for the Council to respond expeditiously to any requests for
discretionary relief to be made available in the event that exceptional circumstances
arise.

Formally rescind the Council’s Market Recovery Scheme from | June 2013.

Reason: In considering a report on the Planning Obligations and Affordable
Housing SPD Second Review on 17 January 2012, Cabinet agreed to extend the
Market Recovery Scheme up until the date that the Council’'s Community
Infrastructure Levy becomes fully operational. The MRS now needs to be rescinded
to formally bring its provisions to an end.

Instruct Officers to keep under review the effectiveness and impacts of the Charging
Schedule.

Reason: To ensure that the Community Infrastructure Levy remains responsive to
changing economic circumstances.

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

The alternative would be to not adopt the Community Infrastructure Levy. This would
leave the existing approach to infrastructure contributions through Section 106 Agreements
in place until it was effectively made redundant after April 2014 by Regulation 123 of the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations. This Regulation will remove the Council’s
ability to secure any significant level of pooled developer contributions to meeting the
infrastructure costs arising from the growth of the city. It is therefore not recommended.

Published Work / Information:

2 July 2011 Cabinet Report on CIL and the Plymouth Infrastructure Needs
Assessment -
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mglnternet/documents/s29834/Community%20Infrastru
cture%20Levy%20and%20Plymouth%20Infrastructure%20Needs%20Assessment.pdf




Page 191

|7 January 2012 Cabinet Report on the Community Infrastructure Levy — Draft
Charging Schedule -
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mglnternet/documents/s34749/Community%20Infrastru
cture%20Levy-%20draft_charging shedule.pdf

|2 June 2012 Cabinet Report on the Community Infrastructure Levy — Revised Draft
Charging Schedule -
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mglnternet/documents/s38398/Community%20Infrastru
cture%20Levy%20Revised%20Draft%20Charging%20Schedule.pdf

CLG Community Infrastructure Levy:  An Overview — May 20I1- see
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6313/I
897278.pdf

CLG Community Infrastructure Levy Relief Information Document — May 2011 —
see https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-
relief-guidance

Community Infrastructure Regulations, April 2010 - see
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/97801 | 1492390/pdfs/ukdsi_97801 11492390
en.pdf

Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations, April 2011 — see

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/201 | /987/pdfs/uksi_20110987_en.pdf

Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations, April 2012 — see
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8452/2

00477 1.pdf

Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations, November 2012 — see
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2012/97801 1 1529270/pdfs/ukdsi_97801 11529270
en.pdf

Plymouth Community Infrastructure Levy Public Examination Examiner’s Report -

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/121212_plymouth_cil_cs_examination_report.pdf

CLG Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance, December 2012 - see

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-guidance

CLG Announcement of Planning Minister, Nick Boles, on Community Infrastructure

Levy, 10 January 2013 — see https://www.gov.uk/government/news/communities-to-

receive-cash-boost-for-choosing-development

The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 — Draft -

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2013/97801 | | 534465/contents

Background papers:

Title Part | | Part |l Exemption Paragraph Number

| 2 3 4 5 6 7




Page 192

Sign off:
Fin | SG/PlacePCl2 | | eg | L1/170501 | HR | n/fa | Corp |nfa |IT |nfa |Strat |n/a
13016.220213 80313

Prop Proc

Originating SMT Member: Paul Barnard, Assistant Director for Planning, Directorate of
Place

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? Yes




1.0

2.0
2.1

22

2.3

24

2.5

3.0

3.1

Page 193

THE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new charge that local authorities in
England and Wales can choose to levy on development to help pay for the
infrastructure that is required to mitigate the adverse impacts of, and thereby
support the delivery of growth. The vision for Plymouth is to grow the city by around
50,000 people, and to deliver around 40,000 new jobs and 30,000 new homes.
Significant investment in infrastructure will be required to accommodate this growth.
CIL will provide one important source of funding to help provide this infrastructure.

Provision was made for the introduction of CIL by the Planning Act 2008, and it is
now a major plank of the localism agenda, with further provisions identified in the
Localism Act 201 1. Detailed Regulations have been put in place to provide for the
implementation of CIL. Section 206 (2) of the Planning Act 2008 identifies the Local
Planning Authority as the CIL Charging Authority for its area.

This report is concerned purely with the adoption of the Council’s CIL Charging
Schedule and associated Instalments Policy. A separate report to this Cabinet
meeting deals with the expenditure of CIL receipts.

CHARGING SCHEDULE AND INSTALMENT POLICY - PROCESS

To meet statutory requirements, and to address issues emerging out of the legal
interpretation of the CIL Regulations, the Council consulted three times on draft
versions of its CIL Charging Schedule as follows:

o 25 June to 6 August 2012 — Revised Draft Charging Schedule
o 7 February to 20 March 2012 — Draft Charging Schedule
o | November to |3 December 201 | — Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule

At each of these consultation stages, the Council consulted on its proposed
Instalment Policy alongside its Charging Schedule. The Instalment Policy was not
subject to Public Examination.

In arriving at the rates in the CIL Charging Schedule which were subject to Public
Examination, Council officers engaged positively and constructively with the Plymouth
Regeneration Forum and Plymouth Housing Development Partnership.

The Council submitted its Charging Schedule for Public Examination on 5 October
2012, and the Examination took place on 21 / 22 November 2012.

It is a requirement of the Planning Act 2008 that the Council’s Charging Schedule is
adopted by Full Council.

CIL CHARGING SCHEDULE - PUBLIC EXAMINATION AND
EXAMINER’S REPORT

The Examination of the Council’s Charging Schedule was undertaken by Wendy
Burden, a senior inspector with the Planning Inspectorate. Mrs Burden’s Examination
Report was received on 12 December 2012. The Examiner found that the Council’s
Charging Schedule provides an appropriate basis for the collection of the levy in its
area, that the Council has sufficient evidence to support its schedule, and that the
levy is set at a level which will not put the overall development of the Council’s area
at risk.



3.2

3.3

4.0
4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

6.0
6.1

Page 194

The examination looked at two main issues, firstly the Council’s ability to charge
supermarkets a higher levy compared to other types of retail development. At the
hearing Sainsbury's Supermarkets Ltd argued strongly that supermarkets should pay
the same as other types of retail development, i.e. £0m? whereas the Council argued
in favour of a charge of £100m” of gross floor space. The inspector supported the
Council. Housing consultants Tetlow King argued that the assumptions underpinning
the charges were inconsistent with the Council’s position on affordable housing
provision. The inspector again supported the Council.

The Examiner concluded that the Council’s Charging Schedule provides an
appropriate basis for the collection of the levy in its area, that the Council has
sufficient evidence to support its schedule, and that the levy is set at a level which will
not put the overall development of the Council’s area at risk.

INSTALMENT POLICY

The Council needs to adopt a CIL payments Instalment Policy at the same time as its
Charging Schedule, to provide developers with clarity, certainty and flexibility in their
payment of CIL charges, bearing in mind the effect of the application of the charges
on the deliverability of development. The CIL Regulations provide for the application
of legal penalties in the event of non-payment of CIL charges, with the ultimate
sanction being imprisonment.

The Instalment Policy needs to be separate from the Charging Schedule so that it can
be amended independently of it in the event that the Council determines that a
different approach to the payment of instalments would assist development viability.

DISCRETIONARY RELIEF FROM CIL IN EXCEPTIONAL
CIRCUMSTANCES

The CIL Regulations provide for the Council to offer discretionary relief from CIL in
exceptional circumstances — these circumstances are detailed in the May 2011 CLG
‘CIL Relief Information Document’ at paragraphs 66 to 87 (see weblink in ‘Published
Work / Information’ above). It is anticipated that the circumstances in which such
relief can be offered will rarely, if ever, arise, and it is not anticipated that developers
will routinely approach the Council seeking such relief, given the anticipated difficulty
in meeting the eligibility criteria detailed in paragraph 7| of the aforementioned
document. The Council will nonetheless need to be prepared to respond if such
circumstances do materialise, and it is considered appropriate to put arrangements in
place which provide for the Council to respond to requests for such relief to be
made available. Making such relief available simply requires a CIL Charging
Authority to issue a statement giving notice that such ‘discretionary relief is available
in its area.

EXPENDITURE OF CIL RECEIPTS

The Council must make its intentions clear in respect of CIL expenditure. Items on
which CIL receipts will be spent must be identified on a list published on the
Council’s website, which is known as a ‘Regulation 123 List’ (after CIL Regulations
Regulation 123). The Council cannot also seek to fund items on its Regulation 123
List through the Section 106 mechanism. In other words developers cannot be



7.0

7.1

72

7.3

74
7.5

7.6

8.0
8.1

8.2

Page 195

required to pay for particular pieces or types of infrastructure through both the
Section 106 mechanism and CIL. The expenditure of CIL receipts is addressed in a
separate report to this Cabinet meeting.

NEXT STEPS - CIL COMING INTO EFFECT / BECOMING
OPERATIONAL

The Council's CIL Charging Schedule becomes operational on a day to be
determined by Full Council. This need not be the same day on which the Charging
Schedule is adopted by the Council. Indeed, it is considered that there is merit in the
Charging Schedule coming into effect on a different date to that on which it is
adopted. It is considered appropriate for the Council’s Charging Schedule to come
into effect on the |** June 2013, some six weeks after its adoption by Full Council on
the 22 April 2013. This will allow for the Council’s Planning Service to further alert
developers to the implications of CIL coming into effect, and for the Planning Service
itself to manage the determination of planning applications under existing
arrangements for securing planning obligations and under new arrangements once the
CIL Charging Schedule is in effect.

Developers will be looking for reassurance about whether their planning applications
will be determined under existing or new arrangements, and it is considered that a
six week period between adoption and the Charging Schedule coming into effect will
help with the transition to new arrangements.

Once the CIL Charging Schedule is in effect, the Planning Service can begin to
determine CIL liabilities and issue CIL Liability and (payment) Demand Notices. CIL
receipts will not begin to accumulate until developments start on the ground, and will
then be received in accordance with the requirements set out in the Council’s
Instalments Policy (see Appendix 2).

Officers are preparing guidance on the practical application of CIL for developers.

CIL charges are non-negotiable, and in this sense will not be determined through the
planning application process. The application of CIL to developments will however
affect the ability of many developments to make contributions to mitigating the
impacts of their developments through the Section 106 mechanism. Guidance on
future arrangements for negotiating Section 106 Agreements will be given to Planning
Committee. This will need to be understood in the context of the Council’s
Regulation 123 List, which will specify what CIL receipts are to be spent on.

Once Plymouth’s CIL Charging Schedule becomes operational, its current Tariff
approach will be defunct. The Council’s current Market Recovery Scheme, which
provides for the application of discounts to current Tariff charges, and which has its
origins in the 2008 Market Recovery Action Plan, will also be defunct when the
Charging Schedule becomes operational.

PROCESS FOR REVIEW OF THE CHARGING SCHEDULE

The Council’s CIL Charging Schedule needs to be kept under review, to ensure that
it is responsive to changing economic circumstances. It is anticipated that a full
review of the CIL Charging Schedule will be required within the next two to three
years.

In order to review the Charging Schedule once adopted, the Council must repeat
the process by which its initial Charging Schedule has been developed. In other



Page 196

words, it must seek Cabinet approval to consult again on fresh Preliminary Draft
and Draft Charging Schedules, and it must take any Draft Charging Schedule through
the Public Examination process.



Page 197

APPENDIX |I: CIL CHARGING SCHEDULE

PLYMOUTH COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CHARGING
SCHEDULE - | JUNE 2013

The Charging Authority

Plymouth City Council is the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Authority.
Date on which Charging Schedule was Approved by Full Council

This Charging Schedule was approved by the Council on 22 April 2013.

Date on which Charging Schedule Takes Effect

This Charging Schedule takes effect on | June 2013.

The Scope of CIL

The Community Infrastructure Levy is generally chargeable on the net increase in gross
internal floorspace of all new development, except where:

o The Charging Authority has evidence to demonstrate that there are viability reasons
for not levying a charge on the intended use of development, and these are reflected
in its Charging Schedule through the application of a £0m? rate; or

o The development is exempt under Part 2 and Part 6 of the CIL Regulations
(as amended).

Exemptions from the Levy are as follows:

o Minor development: that is buildings or extensions where the gross internal area of
new build is less than 100m2, other than where the development will comprise one
or more new dwellings (in which case the new dwellings will constitute ‘Chargeable
Development’, irrespective of their size).

o Development of buildings into which people do not normally go, or into which they
go only intermittently for the purpose of inspecting or maintaining fixed plant or
machinery.

o Development of buildings owned by charities and used for charitable purposes.

Relief from the Levy is available for social housing. The Council may also grant discretionary
relief from the Levy in exceptional circumstances, subject to developments meeting the
eligibility criteria, and provided such relief does not constitute notifiable State Aid. If
discretionary relief in exceptional circumstances is to be made available, notification of this
will be given on the Council’s website.

The Levy applies to new development for which planning permission is granted after the
Charging Schedule has taken effect, and the amount of CIL payable (the ‘Chargeable
Amount’) is calculated on the day that development is first permitted by the development
(which can be the day on which planning permission is granted, if it is granted without
conditions or reserved matters being attached, or which can be the day on which the last
pre-commencement condition is agreed / approved).

Floorspace to be demolished can be deducted from the net increase in gross internal
floorspace when calculating the CIL liability. However, the CIL Regulations, in particular
Regulation 40(10), specify that floorspace to be demolished must have been in lawful use for
a given period ending on the day on which planning permission first permits the chargeable
development.



Page 198

Plymouth City Council’s CIL Rates

The rates at which Plymouth’s Community Infrastructure Levy rates will be charged are as
follows:

CIL RATES IN PLYMOUTH - in £s per square metre

Development Type Rate Development Type Rate Notes
Residential £30 Cinemas and Commercial £0 *For the purposes
Leisure of this Charging
Schedule,

superstores /
supermarkets are

Residential — located £0 Offices, Industrial Units, £0 shopping
within the zone identified Storage and Distribution es e liens 1 (Gl
em e own right, where
weekly food
shopping needs
Residential Institutions £0 Superstores / supermarkets* £100 can be metand
of 1000m2 gross internal floor which can also
area or more, including all include non-food
extensions to such stores. floor space as part
of the overall mix of
Purpose Built Student £60 All other retail uses, and £0 the unit.
Accommodation financial and professional

services, restaurants and
cafes, drinking institutions,
takeaways.

Purpose Built Student £0 All Other Uses £0
Accommodation — located

within the zone identified

on Map 1

Hotels £0

Map | follows. This is accompanied by an Inset Map which shows in more detail the zone
within which the £0m?2 rate for Residential and Purpose Built Student Accommodation

applies.



Y Ny L ~ | -\ \ ¥ (L S N A | I I 1 !
4 K EWED T = 7
“ ) € = /9 = ‘&E‘_" MAP | - Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Zones
‘. £ !.- '_,CTT{J (/ -
= A RV, 4
o ’\_’ ] o EQ o .
daP s ~e g C Ll f=s- Zone within which £0m?
= 2 . . 2
- o residential and £0m” purpose
7 = built student accommodation
Z =5 VA B rates apply

” Rest of City

Grid = 1000m

oo

245000E

b

1% %}‘(‘Nf,ﬁ‘é’ —F § § % _f‘g_yﬁigl, _§+

251000€ |

Reproduced from the Ordnance Surveys digital maps with the permlsslon of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. (© Crown Copynghl PIymouth Clty Council Licence No. 100018633. This map extract has
been produced for the sole purpose of providing you with ion only. NO FURTHER COPIES CAN BE MADE. Ui
proceedings. Published 2013. Scale 1: 70000

WA
Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil bod

PLYMOUTH

661 abed



~ Raprocuced hom sie Grinance Surveys dgtal maps wi
et produced o e sale prpase of paus wilh
eadings Puslahed 2013, Ses 1

ul
Jon o e Contoter o Hor 3
o ol NO

Zone within which £0m?
residential and £0m’* purpose
built student accommodation
rates apply

Rest of City

i) \
festy's Staliorsrj Ol (g) Grown Copyright. Plymoulhy City Couni Licenze Mo 100119833, This map exiacs hes
BE WADE. indringes C

gy e o prUBECUTOT O Eivil__

00g abed



Page 201

Calculating the Chargeable Amount

The ‘Chargeable Amount’ will be calculated by the Council in accordance with Regulation 40
of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, (as amended).

The chargeable rate is set having regard to viability information, to ensure that the levy does
not put at risk the overall development of Plymouth. The rates will be updated annually for
inflation, and will therefore be index linked to the national All-in Tender Price Index
published from time to time by the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS) of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. If the BCIS All-in Tender Price Index ceases to be made
available, the Retail Prices Index will be used instead.

Statutory Compliance

This Charging Schedule has been issued, approved and published in accordance with the CIL
Regulations 2010, (as amended by the 2011 and 2012 CIL Amendment Regulations), and Part
I'l of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended by Part 6 of the Localism Act 201 1). In setting the
CIL rates in this Charging Schedule, the Council has struck an appropriate balance between:

(a) the desirability of funding from CIL (in whole or in part) the actual and expected
estimated total cost of infrastructure required to support the development of its area, taking
into account other actual and expected sources of funding; and

(b) the potential effects (taken as a whole) of the imposition of CIL on the economic viability
of development across its area.

Further Information

Further information on the Community Infrastructure Levy is available on the Council’s
website — www.plymouth.gov.uk




Page 202

APPENDIX 2: CIL INSTALMENTS POLICY

PLYMOUTH COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY INSTALMENTS POLICY - |
JUNE 2013

Overview

Regulation 70 (7) of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) sets a default
of full payment of the Levy within 60 days of the commencement of development. The Regulations also
enable a Charging Authority to set an Instalment Policy that allows payments to be phased over longer
periods.

Plymouth City Council recognises the significant economic constraints upon development and
investors at this time, and its policy therefore allows CIL payments to be spread across the
development process so that they are, where possible, synchronised with development progress and
development cash flows.

Policy

Plymouth City Council’'s Community Infrastructure Levy is payable by instalments as follows. The
commencement date is the date given on the commencement notice as advised by the developer
under CIL Regulation 67. A failure of the developer to notify the Council of a commencement date
results in an automatic surcharge and removal of the privilege to utilise the Council’s Instalment Policy.

Where the chargeable amount | Fy|l payment will be required within 90 days of the
is less than £15,000 commencement date.

Where the chargeable amount | First instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount will be
is between £15,000 and required within 90 days of the commencement date.

£50,000
The second instalment representing 50% of the chargeable
amount will be required within 270 days of the commencement
date.

The third instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount
will be required within 360 days of the commencement date.

Wher‘e the chargeable amount | First instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount will be
is over £50,000 but below | required within 90 days of the commencement date.

£100,000
Second instalment representing 50% of the chargeable amount will
be required within 360 days of the commencement date.

Third instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount will
be required within 540 days of the commencement date.

Wher‘e the chargeable amount | First instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount will be
is £100,000 or above required within 90 days of the commencement date.

Second instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount will
be required within 270 days of the commencement date.

Third instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount will
be required within 540 days of the commencement date.

The fourth instalment representing 25% of the chargeable amount
will be required within 720 days of the commencement date.




Page 203 Agenda ltem 10

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Restructure of Overview and Scrutiny

Committee: City Council

Date: 22 April 2013

Chair: Councillor Mrs Aspinall (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board)

Author: Giles Perritt, Head of Policy, Performance and Partnerships and
Lead Scrutiny Officer

Contact details: Gemma Pearce, Team Leader (Democratic Support)
01752 398443 gemma.pearce@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

This report proposes a restructure of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and its panels
to improve effectiveness. The proposals modernise the Overview and Scrutiny Function and bring
them in line with the Council’s priorities. This report details the proposed recommendations for
consideration at City Council on 22 April 2013 and includes new terms of reference for each panel.

The terms of reference have been amended following the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board of 10 April 2013 (minute 136 of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board is
attached).

Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015:

Effective Overview and Scrutiny impacts upon all of our corporate priorities by providing a process
for challenge to decision making and development of policy. It is also one of the ways the Council
should monitor performance and demonstrate to communities that it is spending their money
effectively on the services and issues important to the city.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land:

The cost of the proposals can be met from existing resources and will deliver savings of 5 per cent
on budgets currently allocated to scrutiny.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

There is a risk that by not making changes to Overview and Scrutiny the Council will be ineffective in
challenging decision-making and monitoring the performance of the Cabinet.

Equality and Diversity:

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No: the overall scope of services included
within the panel terms of reference remain the same.



Page 204

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:
Recommended that -

I. A new scrutiny structure is approved (as detailed in this report)

2. The new terms of reference for the Co-operative Scrutiny Board and each of the panels are
approved and incorporated into the constitution.

3. Statutory health scrutiny functions (other than referral of matters to the Secretary of State
for Health) are delegated to the Caring Plymouth panel.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

To continue under the current system, which was rejected as overview and scrutiny is not as
effective as it could be and the Council needs to continue to modernise its processes and ensure that
Overview and Scrutiny focusses on the issues most important to the Council’s improvement.

Published work / information:

Existing terms of reference for scrutiny
http://www.plymouth.sov.uk/council constitution.pdf

Background papers:

Title Part | | Partll Exemption Paragraph Number

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

Building the Team for Effective Yes
Overview and Scrutiny :

Feedback from workshops -
January 2013

Sign off:

Fin |djnl |Leg | THO | Mon HR Assets IT Strat
213. 103 | Off Proc
07

Originating SMT Member — Giles Perritt

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the content of the report? No




Page 205

1.0 Introduction and proposed structure

The proposed structure is of a Co-operative Scrutiny Board (the Board) and four Scrutiny Panels.
The Board consists of four Chairs and four Vice Chairs and two non-chair members. Each of the
four panels consist of 12 members including a chair and vice chair. The panels proposed are:

Your Plymouth
Caring Plymouth
Working Plymouth
Ambitious Plymouth

The four panels will be chaired by a member from the majority political group with the vice chair
from the opposition political group. One of the opposition vice chairs will take the role of Chair of
the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.

The Co-operative Scrutiny Board may set up Co-operative Review Groups. The purpose of these
groups will be to undertake scrutiny work as required by the Board and will be time and remit
specific. These groups will be made up of members who have expressed an interest in the particular
issue.

In keeping with best practice there will be no “whipping” of the members of the Co-operative
Scrutiny Board or its panels.

Co-operative Scrutiny
Board

10 members
Your Working Ambitious Caring
Plymouth Plymouth Plymouth Plymouth
12 members (increase) 12 members (increase) 12 members (increase) 12 members (increase)

Co-operative Reviews
(Scrutiny)

Co-operative Review Panels will be made up of at least 3 members from a pool of members
drawn from a pool of non-executive members. Members will be asked to register their interests
and will receive priority placements on reviews which are of interest to them. Increase in number
of reviews possible (+)




Page 206

I.I  Co-operative Scrutiny Board

The break-down of the Board membership is all of the chairs and vice chairs of the four panels and
two additional non-chair members. The Chair of the Board will be one of the vice chairs of the
panels. Any Council Member who is not a Cabinet Member and who sits on a scrutiny panel may
substitute at Board Meetings. The Board will meet at least one a month (except May, August and
December) with provisional meetings on a 2-weekly basis to allow for call-ins.

The Co-operative Scrutiny Board’s responsibilities are:

e To hear call-ins, councillor call for action and petitions and to allocate work accordingly

e To oversee workloads, including approval of work programmes, allocate work and the
approval of co-operative scrutiny review requests

e To manage relationships between panels, cabinet members and partners to produce effective
scrutiny

e To monitor performance against the relevant corporate priorities

e To receive finance and performance reports and to carry out the Annual Budget Scrutiny

e To agree recommendations to Cabinet, Council and partner organisations

e To produce an annual scrutiny report

e To agree appointments of co-opted representatives to panels

e Responsible for publicity and communications

e To monitor the forward plan

e To scrutinise corporate and cross cutting business

1.2 The Panels

Each of the panels has its own terms of reference (attached). The Caring Plymouth panel will also
have special responsibility for statutory functions in relation to health matters and joint health
obligations.

Business meetings will take place four times per year except for Caring Plymouth who will have eight
meetings per year to allow time to deal with statutory obligations. All meetings will be pre-planned
into the annual calendar of council meetings. Panels will be on a set day and time determined by the
individual panels (although panels must not be moved to clash with another scrutiny meeting). Any
member who is not a Cabinet member and who is in the ‘pool’ of scrutiny members can substitute at
panel business meetings.

1.3 Co-opted Representatives

The statutory co-opted representatives will be allocated to the relevant panel.

1.4 Roles and Responsibilities of Chairs, Vice Chairs and Officers

The role and responsibilities of Chairs, Vice Chairs and Officers will be set out in the Scrutiny
handbook.



Page 207

1.5 Co-operative Scrutiny Reviews

Co-operative Reviews must be approved by the Co-operative Scrutiny Board. Reviews can be
submitted (using the appropriate form) by any member direct to the Board. Panels may also submit
requests for reviews.

All requests will be considered by the Board using an approval criteria and cannot commence until
they have received approval. Once a co-operative scrutiny review has commenced work, no
substitution is allowed.

Membership will be drawn from the entire pool of scrutiny members and will be made up of
members who have expressed an interest in the subject matter. Where there are not sufficient
members who have expressed an interest in the subject matter the Chair of the Board will consult
the group whips for additional members.

Reviews must be chaired by a member of the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.

Every member of a scrutiny panel should aim to take part in at least one scrutiny review.

Review meetings should take place in a relevant venue where possible and practicable. Times, venue
and frequency of meetings will be at the discretion of the review group members and should happen
in a timely manner and with consideration given to ensuring that the relevant members and officers

can input into the review.

Consideration should be given to co-opting of members of the public and organisations who may
have experience or expertise in the relevant area and can add value to the process.

A report of the co-operative scrutiny review, including recommendation(s) must be submitted to the
Co-operative Scrutiny Board.

1.6 Communications

A summary of scrutiny activity will be provided to the cabinet on a monthly basis.

A monthly circular will be sent to all scrutiny members providing useful information, details of activity
at the Board and information on upcoming co-operative review groups.



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 209

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013 PLITtng}l::'ITH

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD MINUTE 136
OF 10 APRIL 2013

RESTRUCTURE OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

The Chair and Vice Chair together with the Head of Policy, Performance and Partnerships and the
Team Leader (Democratic Support) presented the restructure of Overview and Scrutiny report,
which highlighted the following key points —

(@) the aim of the proposals to restructure the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board and panels was to improve effectiveness,
modernise the function and also bring it in line with the Council’s
priorities;

(b) the proposed new structure included a Co-operative Scrutiny Board
(the board) and four panels -

e  Your Plymouth

e  Working Plymouth

e  Ambitious Plymouth

e  Caring Plymouth

(c) membership of the Board would consist of four Chairs and four Vice
Chairs and two non Chair members (10 members in total); each of
the four panels would consist of 12 members including a Chair and
Vice Chair;

(d) the four panels would be chaired by a member from the majority
political group with the Vice Chair from the opposition political
group; one of the opposition Vice Chairs would take the role of the
Chair of the Cooperative Scrutiny Board;

(e) the Board would be able to set up Co-operative Scrutiny Reviews,
the purpose of which would be to undertake scrutiny work which
would be time and remit specific; the review would consist of at
least three members which were drawn from a pool of any non-
executive members; members would be asked to register their
interests and would receive priority placements on reviews which
were of interest to them;

(f) in order to improve communication links a summary of scrutiny
activity would be provided to Cabinet on a monthly basis; a monthly
circular would also be produced and circulated to all scrutiny
members providing details of activity from the Board and

Final 22 April 2012 Not protectively marked



Page 210

information on forthcoming Co-operative Scrutiny Reviews.
During discussions, the following issues were raised —

(g) the perceived lack of consultation with the minority group regarding
the proposed changes to the Overview and Scrutiny function;

(h) the omission of ‘overview’ in the name of the Board (Co-operative
Scrutiny Board);

(i) the title of the Working Plymouth panel did not fully encompass its
scope;

(j) the terms of reference for Caring Plymouth would need to include
an overarching responsibility for the leadership of delivery of
services to children and young people, as per advice provided by the
Assistant Director for Education, Learning and Family Support.

The Board agreed to recommend the following to Council (subject to the
amendments) -

(1) a new scrutiny structure is approved (as detailed in the report);

(2) the new terms of reference for Co-operative Scrutiny Board and
each of the panels are approved and incorporated into the
constitution;

(3) Statutory health scrutiny functions (other than referral of matters to
the Secretary of State for Health) are delegated to the Caring
Plymouth panel.

Note:

The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website

www.blymouth.gov.uk/democracy

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867

appropriate



Page 211

CO-OPERATIVE SCRUTINY
BOARD

PLYMOUTH

Terms Of Reference CITY COUNCIL

OUR MISSION STATEMENT

To manage scrutiny in a way that ensures that the work that is undertaken is undertaken with a view to
improving services, reducing inequalities and improving outcomes for the people of Plymouth.

ROLE OF THE CO-OPERATIVE SCRUTINY BOARD

e To hear call-ins, councillor call for action and petitions and to allocate work accordingly.

e To oversee workloads, including approval of work programmes, allocate work and the approval of
co-operative scrutiny review requests

e To manage relationships between panels, cabinet members and partners to produce effective

scrutiny

To monitor performance against the relevant corporate priorities

To receive finance and performance reports and to carry out the Annual Budget Scrutiny

To agree recommendations to Cabinet, Council and partner organisations

To produce an annual scrutiny report

To agree appointments of co-opted representatives to panels

Responsible for publicity and communications

To monitor the forward plan

To scrutinise corporate and cross cutting business

LINKED TO THE CABINET MEMBER AND DEPARTMENT WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR

The Corporate Plan

Corporate Policy Development

Human Resources

Business Continuity and Civil Protection
Revenue Budget

Capital Programme

Strategic Procurement

Corporate Property and Facilities Management
Performance Management

Transformation and Change Management

MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD

The Co-operative Scrutiny Board will consist of the Chair and Vice-Chair of each of the Scrutiny Panels
plus other Councillors appointed by Council at the annual meeting. Any Councillor who is not a member
of the Cabinet can substitute on the Scrutiny Board. All members of the panel will adhere to the general
rules of Overview and Scrutiny. There are 10 members of the panel including the Chair and Vice Chair.
The Chair is from the opposition political group and is a vice chair of one of the panels.

Version 2 Not protectively marked



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 213

YOUR PLYMOUTH

PLYMOUTH

Terms of Reference CITY COUNCIL

OUR MISSION STATEMENT

To scrutinise matters relating to our specified responsibilities with a view to improving services, reducing
inequalities and improving outcomes for the people of Plymouth.

OUR CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES

Raise Aspirations

Deliver Growth

Reduce inequality

Provide Value for Communities

OUR CORPORATE COMMITMENT THEMES

Safer Plymouth
Greener Plymouth
Vibrant Plymouth
Living Plymouth

LINKED TO THE CABINET MEMBER AND DEPARTMENT WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR

Parks including playgrounds and greenspaces
Waste management, recycling and street cleaning
Climate change and sustainability

Public protection service

Miscellaneous licensing

Social enterprise support

Anti-social behaviour

Community safety

Community cohesion and equalities

Localities working

Community and neighbourhood development
Homelessness

Private sector housing, grants and improvements
Housing enabling with respect to registered social landlords

STATUTORY ROLE with regard to scrutiny of the community safety partnership

PARTNERSHIP LINKS
e Community Safety Partnership
e Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime Panel

MEMBERSHIP - The Chair and Vice Chair of the panel shall serve on the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.
All members of the panel will adhere to the general rules of Overview and Scrutiny. There are |12
members of the panel including the Chair and Vice Chair. The Vice Chair is from the opposite political
group to the Chair.

Version 2 Not protectively marked



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 215

CARING PLYMOUTH

Terms of Reference

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

OUR MISSION STATEMENT

To scrutinise matters relating to our specified responsibilities with a view to improving services, reducing
inequalities and improving outcomes for the people of Plymouth.

OUR CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES

Raise Aspirations
Deliver Growth
Reduce inequality

[ ]
[
[ ]
e Provide Value for Communities

OUR CORPORATE COMMITMENT THEMES

e Caring Plymouth
¢ Young Plymouth

LINKED TO THE CABINET MEMBER AND DEPARTMENT WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR

e Public Health
e Adult and Children’s Health and Social Care
o Mental Health Services
o Physical Disability Services
o Drug and Alcohol Services
o Learning Disability Services
Older people’s services
The leadership and delivery of all services for children and young people
Joint Health and Social Care Commissioning
Health and Wellbeing
Personalisation
Children’s social care (primary responsibility for Children’s Service Matters)
Adoption and Fostering
Early intervention and prevention
Corporate Parenting

STATUTORY ROLE with regard to undertaking all the statutory functions in accordance with Section
244, of the National Health Act 2006, (as amended by Health and Social Care Act 2012) regulations and
guidance under that section.

PARTNERSHIP LINKS
e Health and Wellbeing Board
e Children’s Partnership (for social care matters)

MEMBERSHIP - The Chair and Vice Chair of the panel shall serve on the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.
All members of the panel will adhere to the general rules of Overview and Scrutiny. There are 12
members of the panel including the Chair and Vice Chair. The Vice Chair is from the opposite political
group to the Chair.

Version 2 Not protectively marked



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 217

WORKING PLYMOUTH

Terms of Reference

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

OUR MISSION STATEMENT

To scrutinise matters relating to our specified responsibilities with a view to improving services, reducing
inequalities and improving outcomes for the people of Plymouth.

OUR CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES

Raising Aspirations

Deliver Growth

Reduce Inequality

Provide Value for Communities

OUR CORPORATE COMMITMENT THEMES

Working Plymouth
Greener Plymouth
Moving Plymouth
Vibrant Plymouth
Proud Plymouth

LINKED TO THE CABINET MEMBER AND DEPARTMENT WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR

Regional and local economic strategy
Development planning

Strategic Housing Delivery

Transport policies and strategies
Sustainable transport including cycling
Highways

Car parks

Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry
Licensing — Hackney Carriage

PARTNERSHIP LINKS
e Growth Board

MEMBERSHIP - The Chair and Vice Chair of the panel shall serve on the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.
All members of the panel will adhere to the general rules of Overview and Scrutiny. There are |2
members of the panel including the Chair and Vice Chair. The Vice Chair is from the opposite political
group to the Chair.

Version 2 Not protectively marked



Page 218

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 219

AMBITIOUS PLYMOUTH

Terms of Reference

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

OUR MISSION STATEMENT

To scrutinise matters relating to our specified responsibilities with a view to improving services, reducing
inequalities and improving outcomes for the people of Plymouth.

OUR CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES

Raise Aspirations

Deliver Growth

Reduce inequality

Provide value for communities

OUR CORPORATE COMMITMENT THEMES

Young Plymouth
Vibrant Plymouth
Pride in Plymouth
Open Plymouth

LINKED TO THE CABINET MEMBER AND DEPARTMENT WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR

Schools and Colleges (including Governing issues)
Apprenticeships

Early years Development

Education Grants

Youth Services

Leisure management (including leisure management contract)
Events, Culture, Heritage and Museums (including Mount Edgcumbe)
Sports Development

Media, Public Relations and Communications

Human Resources

ICT

Democracy and Governance

Member Development

PARTNERSHIP LINKS
e Culture Board
e Children’s Partnerships(for education matters)

MEMBERSHIP - The Chair and Vice Chair of the panel shall serve on the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.
All members of the panel will adhere to the general rules of Overview and Scrutiny. There are |2
members of the panel including the Chair and Vice Chair. The Vice Chair is from the opposite political
group to the Chair.

Version 2 Not protectively marked



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221 Agenda Iltem 11

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

LORD MAYOR’S SELECTION COMMITTEE MINUTE 3 OF 8 MARCH
2013

LORD MAYORALTY 2013/14

The Chair reported that he had recently attended a meeting of the Plymouth Area Business
Council where he had been very surprised to hear an announcement of the nomination for Lord
Mayor before the Lord Mayor’s Selection Committee had met. He asked that a letter be sent to
the perpetrator expressing the Council’s disappointment at this break in a longstanding tradition
whereby the Lord Mayor Designate was announced following the meeting of the Lord Mayor
Selection Committee.

It was proposed by Councillor Fry, seconded by Councillor Churchill, and unanimously agreed that
a cordial invitation is extended to Councillor Mrs Pengelly to accept the Lord Mayoralty for the
following Municipal Year.

The Chair referred to the current arrangements for speeches at the Lord Mayor’s choosing
ceremony and dinner. He reminded members that prior to 2000 it had been a longstanding
tradition for the political party of the incoming Lord Mayor to make a speech at the choosing
ceremony and then for the opposition to make a speech at the dinner. He suggested to members
that this tradition be reinstated and asked that the proposal be taken back to their respective
groups for discussion.

Members looked at the historic Lord Mayor’s Selection Committee minute book dating back to
1944 and reflected on the activities of past Lord Mayors.

The Committee then waited upon Councillor Mrs Pengelly who expressed her appreciation at the
unanimous proposal and her honour and pleasure in accepting the nomination to Office.

Agreed that it is unanimously recommended to Full Council that it approves the appointment of
Councillor Mrs Pengelly as Lord Mayor for the ensuing year.

Note:
The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website

www.blymouth.gov.uk/democracy

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867

Final 11 April 2013 Not protectively marked



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223 Agenda Item 12

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

MOTION ON NOTICE

A Reliable Railway Link for Plymouth

This Council considers it scandalous that the only mainline railway connection to the fifteenth
largest city in the country, as well as to the entire County of Cornwall, continues to rest upon a
bank of pebbles which wash away when it rains too much. A 21st century city cannot prosper
when it relies upon 19th century infrastructure. We therefore call upon the Government to
replace mere discussion with urgent practical action, and spend just a tiny fraction of the £30
billion being proposed for the Midlands' HS2 scheme to install in the very near future at Cowley
Bridge outside Exeter, and any similarly vulnerable sites on the route to Plymouth, a concrete
viaduct or other robust technical solution.

Proposed by Councillor Dr. Salter

Seconded by Councillor Drean

Not protectively marked



Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 225 Agenda Iltem 14

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct

Committee: City Council

Date: 22 April 2013

CMT Member: Tim Howes (Monitoring Officer)

Author: Judith Shore, Democratic and Member Support Manager
Contact details: Tel: 01752 304494 judith.shore@plymouth.gov.uk
Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

In July 2012, full council adopted an amended code of conduct and instructed the Monitoring Officer
to draft a revised code of conduct in consultation with the Constitution Review Group and group
chief whips.

Consultation has now taken place and council is asked to consider the revised code which is attached
to this report.

Corporate Plan 2012-2015:

A clear and concise code of conduct will assist councillors and members of the public to understand
the requirements to uphold the values and principles of those elected or appointed to public life.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

No implications.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

None.

Equality and Diversity

No impact.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

Council is recommended to:

I. adopt the revised code of conduct
2. amend the council’s constitution accordingly



Page 226

Alternative options considered and rejected:

The council is required, by the Localism Act 201 1, to adopt a councillors code of conduct. A number
of codes produced by other organisations were considered during the process.

Published work / information:

Local Government Association’s template code of conduct
http://www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/media-centre/-/journal_content/56/10171/3376577/NEWVS-

Communities and Local Government department model code of conduct

TEMPLATE

http://www.local.sov.uk/c/document_library/get file?uuid=6860béab-7cb2-44bb-987b-

Background papers:

f638981ff963&groupld=10171

None

Sign off:

Fin | AB Leg | 17271/DVS Mon | TH | HR Assets IT Strat
11041 Off Proc
36l

Originating SMT Member: Tim Howes, Monitoring Officer

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? n/a




2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

2.5.

Page 227

Introduction

Under the Local Government Act 2000, local authorities were obliged to adopt a model
code of conduct.

The Localism Act repealed the model code of conduct but local authorities are still
required to have a code of conduct. There is discretion regarding the content but it must
include the requirement to register disclosable pecuniary interests and reflect the principles
of public life namely selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and
leadership.

A number of model codes of conduct were produced by the Local Government
Association, the Communities and Local Government department and the Association of
Council Secretaries and Solicitors.

Consultation

Members of the Constitution Review Group were initially consulted regarding a number of
options for a code of conduct.

They agreed that detailed discussions should first be held between the chair of CRG
(Councillor Stevens) and the political group whips (Councillors Rennie and Ball).

After very constructive discussions, a first draft code of conduct was drafted and each
political group was asked how it wished to proceed with respect to consulting its members.

Officers attended a Labour group meeting and further amendments were made to the code
following the meeting.

CRG members met again and the attached code was the outcome of those discussions.



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 229

COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct

Plymouth City Council has adopted this code which sets out the conduct expected of
elected and co-opted members of the council.

Holders of public office have a duty to:

a) declare any private interests relating to their public duties and
b) take steps to resolve such conflicts in a way that protects the public interest.

The code is intended to be consistent with Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life namely
that councillors will act with selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness,
honesty and leadership.

General principles of public life
Preamble

The principles of public life apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder. This
includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and locally,
and all people appointed to work in the civil service, local government, the police, courts
and probation services, non-departmental public bodies, and in the health, education,
social and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and
stewards of public resources. The principles also have application to all those in other
sectors delivering public services.

Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should
not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for
themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests
and relationships.

Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using
the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.



Page 230

Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing.

Honesty

Holders of public office should be truthful.

Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge
poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

Who does the code apply to?

The code applies to councillors and co-opted members. When the code refers to
councillors, this includes co-opted members

Co-opted member means any person who is a member of any committee or sub-
committee of the council but is not one of its councillors. This includes any officer who
is a statutory member of a committee and has voting rights.

When does the code apply?
It applies to councillors when they:
a) conduct the business of the council (including the business of their office as a
councillor or co-opted member) or
b) act, claim to act or give the impression they are acting as a representative of the
council

Does the code apply when councillors represent the council on another body?

When councillors are representing the council on another body, they must follow the
code unless it conflicts with a legal duty of the other body.

Courtesy and equality

Councillors must treat other people with courtesy and must not bully anyone. They
must not do anything that could lead the council to break equality laws.

The general equality duty applies to ‘public authorities’. In summary, those subject to
the general equality duty must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the
need to:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.
e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected



Page 231

characteristic* and those who do not.
e Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic* and

those who do not.
These are often referred to as the three aims of the general equality duty.
* Protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, sex, sexual orientation and race — this includes ethnic or national origins,
colour or nationality, religion or belief (or lack of belief).

Intimidation

Councillors must not intimidate or try to intimidate anyone who is involved in any
complaint about any alleged breach of the code of conduct.

Impartiality of council officers

Councillors must not do anything which would be likely to prevent officers or
contractors from being impartial.

It should be noted that the council’s constitution includes a protocol about
Member/Officer relations.

Information
Councillors must not stop anyone getting information they have a legal right to.

Councillors must not pass on information given to them in confidence or information
they should know is confidential unless:

e they are required to by law or

o they have the consent of someone authorised to give it or

e it is to get professional advice and the person given the information agrees not to
pass it on to anyone else or

e passing on the information is reasonable, in the public interest (whistleblowing),
made in good faith and made in compliance with the reasonable requirements of
the council.

Cabinet members

At a Cabinet meeting

Cabinet members must declare and give brief details about any conflict of interest*
relating to the matter to be decided and leave the meeting room when the matter is
being considered. Cabinet members may apply to the Monitoring Officer for a
dispensation in respect of any conflict of interest.

Making individual executive decisions

Cabinet members must declare and give brief details about any conflict of interest*
relating to the matter to be decided and refer the matter to the Leader for a decision.



Page 232

Cabinet members may apply to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation in respect of
any conflict of interest.

If the Leader has a conflict of interest®, s/he will refer the matter to the Cabinet.

* A conflict of interest is a situation in which a councillor’s responsibility to act and take
decisions impartially, fairly and on merit without bias may conflict with his/her personal
interest in the situation or where s/he may profit personally from the decisions that s/he
is due to take.

Disrepute

Councillors must not act in a manner which could be seen to bring the council or the
role of councillor into disrepute.

Misuse of position

Councillors must not try to use their position improperly to gain an advantage or
disadvantage for themselves or others.

Use of council resources

When councillors use the council’s resources or let other people use them, they must
follow any reasonable rules set by the council and make sure that resources are not
used improperly for political purposes (including party political purposes).

Publicity

Councillors must take into account the Code of Recommended Practice on Local
Authority Publicity.

Advice of Monitoring Officer and Responsible Finance Officer

Councillors must consider any advice given by the Monitoring Officer or Responsible
Finance Officer when taking decisions.

Giving reasons for decisions

Councillors must give reasons when required to by the law or by any council
procedures.

PECUNIARY AND PRIVATE INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

Does a councillor have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the business of the
committee?

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in regulations and include the interests of a
councillor’s spouse or civil partner or cohabitee. A councillor has a disclosable

pecuniary interest in:

¢ any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that the councillor carries



17.1

17.2

17.3

Page 233

on for profit or gain; or that their spouse civil partner or cohabitee carries on
for profit or gain;

e any sponsorship that the councillor receives including contributions to their
expenses as a councillor; or contributions to their election expenses from a
Trade Union;

e any land licence or tenancy they have in Plymouth; or that their spouse civil
partner or cohabitee has

e any current contracts leases or tenancies between the council and the councillor;
or between the council and their spouse civil partner or cohabitee;

e any current contracts leases or tenancies between the council and any
organisation with land in Plymouth in which he or she is a partner, a paid
Director, or has a relevant interest in its shares and securities;

e any current contracts leases or tenancies between the councillor’s spouse civil
partner or cohabitee and any organisation with land in Plymouth in which he or
she is a partner, a paid Director, or has a relevant interest in its shares and
securities;

e any organisation which has land or a place of business in Plymouth and in which
he or she a relevant interest in its shares or its securities.

e any organisation which has land or a place of business in Plymouth and in which
the councillors spouse, civil partner or cohabitee has have a relevant interest in
its shares or its securities.

Full details are given in Appendix A.
What should a councillor do if they have a disclosable pecuniary interest?

If a councillor:

e attends a meeting of the council, the Cabinet, a committee or sub committee; or
e intends to take a delegated decision

and is aware that he or she has a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter being or
due to be dealt with; he or she must declare they have an interest, and the nature of it,
at the start of the meeting, (or when they realise they have the interest if that is later).

If declaring an interest would involve revealing sensitive information a councillor need

only say that they have an interest — they need not say what the interest is (see section
20).

The councillor may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting or vote
on the matter and must leave the meeting room when the matter is being considered.
Councillors may apply to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation in respect of any
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Does a councillor have a private interest in the business of the committee?

The public is likely to consider that a councillor has a private interest in the business of a
meeting if it affects the well being or financial position of:

¢ his/her family and close associates, or
e any organisation where he or she is a member, or where he or she is involved in



19.1

19.2

19.2

19.3

19.4

20

Page 234

its management; or
e any organisation to which he or she has been appointed by the council.

What should a councillor do if he or she has a private interest?

When the council is determining any matter in which he or she has a private interest a
councillor should declare his or her interest if the decision could confer a financial
advantage or disadvantage on:

e his or her family, or

e his or her close associates, or

e an organisation where he or she is a member, or is involved in its management
(wWhether or not appointed to that body by the council). This would include
membership of a secret society and other similar organisations.

When the council is determining any matter in which he or she has a private interest a
councillor should declare his or her interest if the decision relates to an approval,
consent, licence, permission or registration for:

e his or her family, or

e his or her close associates, or

¢ an organisation where he or she is a member, or is involved in its management
(whether or not appointed to that body by the council) This would include
membership of a secret society and other similar organisations.

A councillor should declare an interest, and the nature of it, at the start of the meeting,
(or when they realise they have the interest if that is later); unless describing the
interest would involve revealing sensitive information (see section 20). If declaring an
interest would involve revealing sensitive information a councillor need only say that
they have an interest — they need not say what the interest is

Once a councillor has declared a private interest, they can stay in the meeting and speak
and vote, unless their private interest is also a disclosable pecuniary interest (see section
16) and he or she does not have a dispensation (see section 21).

However, if the decision being taken is likely to confer an advantage or disadvantage on:

e a councillor’s family
e his or her close associates or
e an organisation where he or she has a private interest

more than it will affect other people living or working in the ward, the councillor should
discuss this matter with the Monitoring Officer, or his/her designee, in advance of the
meeting as legal issues of bias may arise.

Sensitive information

Information about a councillor’s interests is sensitive if making it public could lead to the
councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or
intimidation. Councillors do not have to include information in the register of interests if
the Monitoring Officer agrees that it is sensitive. If a councillor finds out that the



21

21.1

21.2

22

22.1

22.2

22.3

224

Page 235

information has stopped being sensitive, they must tell the Monitoring Officer within 28
days and ask for it to be included in the register.

Dispensations

The council has power to grant dispensations for a member to be able to participate in
or vote at meetings where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. This may be
because it considers that the business of the council, Cabinet or a committee is likely to
be impeded by not granting a dispensation; or that granting the dispensation is in the
interests of residents; or that the council considers it appropriate to grant a
dispensation for other reasons.

A councillor who wishes to seek a dispensation should notify the Monitoring Officer as
soon as possible of the situation. Several dispensations have already been granted that
are likely to affect many or all councillors; these relate to decisions about:

e councillor’s allowances, expenses or insurance

e ceremonial honours given to councillors

e Council Tax setting

e school meals or school transport and travelling expenses if the councillor is the
parent or guardian of a child in full time education unless the decision relates
particularly to the school their child attends

e school meals or school transport and travelling expenses if the councillor is a
parent governor unless the decision relates particularly to the school of which
they are a governor

Registering interests

The law requires councillors to register certain interests by writing to the Monitoring
Officer within 28 days of the code starting to apply to them or 28 days of finding out

that their interests have changed. There is an exception when sensitive information is
involved (see section 21).

The interests that must be registered are:
Any disclosable pecuniary interest which is held by:

e them, or

e their spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as husband and
wife or a person with whom they are living as if they were civil partners; and

e any private interest that the council has decided should be registered

A councillor’s disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulations, which may
change from time to time; the present definitions are set out in Appendix A. They mainly
relate to business interests (for example, their employment, trade or profession,
contracts or any company with which they are associated) and wider financial interests
such as, for example, trust funds, investments and assets including land and property).

A councillor should register the following private interests that he or she has:

e An organisation of which he or she is a member, or which he or she has



23

Notes

Page 236

management responsibility for (whether or not appointed to that body by the
council). This would include membership of a secret society and other similar
organisations.

Penalties for not registering disclosable pecuniary interests

It is a criminal offence to fail to register disclosable pecuniary interests or to
participate in business in which a councillor has a disclosable pecuniary
interest.

Plymouth City Council provides training about this code of conduct for councillors.

Councillors may ask the Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Monitoring Officer or the
Democratic and Member Support Manager for advice in relation to this code and the
declaration of interests. Ultimately, as only the councillor concerned will be aware of all
the details surrounding any particular situation, it is the responsibility of each councillor
to decide how to comply with this code of conduct.

Councillors are advised to seek advice prior to any meeting/other situation in which
they consider an interest may arise.

A councillor, when considering whether s/he has an interest, may find it useful to ask
him/herself whether a reasonable member of the public — if he or she knew all the
relevant facts — would think that the councillor’s personal interest would be likely to
affect his/her view of the situation.



Page 237

Appendix A

Disclosable pecuniary Interests that must be registered are:

Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation - Any employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship - Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
Plymouth City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by the councillor in carrying out their duties as a member, or towards their election
expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts - Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which
the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the council —

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land - Any benéeficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.

Licences - Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council
for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge) —

(a) the landlord is the council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.

Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where —

(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of
the council; and

(b) either -
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total

issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the
shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Note: In the above descriptions, the following words have the following meanings —

e “body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the
relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a
director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest



Page 238

e “director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society;

e “land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not
carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy
the land or to receive income;

e “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a
building society.



Page 239 Agenda ltem 15

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Establishment of Health and Wellbeing Board

Committee: City Council

Date: 22 April 2012

Cabinet Member: n/a

CMT Member: Tim Howes (Monitoring Officer)

Author: Ross Jago, Democratic Support Officer

Contact details Tel: 01752 304469
ross.jago@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: |

Purpose of the report:

The introduction of a Statutory Health and Wellbeing Board is a key aspect of the Health and Social
Care Act 2012 (the Act). The Board will introduce democratic legitimacy to health services, support
children, young people and adult services’ joint commissioning through a Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy and support the integration of public health services into local authorities.

An informal group has led on the development of the Health and Wellbeing Board which will hold its
first business meeting as a statutory committee in June 2013.

This report outlines the statutory context for the Health and Wellbeing Board and recommends that
the council establishes the Board as a formal committee.

Corporate Plan 2012-2015:

The establishment of the Health and Wellbeing Board will support the city priorities, particularly
‘Reducing Inequalities’ and ‘Providing Value for Communities’, by bringing key stakeholders together
to ensure that commissioners are held to account and make decisions based on evidence provided
though the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

The council has taken a cooperative approach to fulfilling its statutory requirement to establish a
Health and Wellbeing Board. Members of the development group have engaged with all stakeholders
in co-designing our response to legislation to deliver the best outcomes for the city.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

Costs for the establishment of the Board will be met within existing resources.




Page 240

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:

The Board’s Terms of Reference at appendix A make specific commitments to addressing issues of
equality and wellbeing.

Equality and Diversity

The Board, through developing and promoting its strategies and by leadership will assist with the
achievement of the city’s/council’s objectives with regards to equality and diversity.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

The establishment of a Health and Wellbeing Board as a committee of the council is a statutory
requirement.

The City Council is recommended to —

agree the establishment of the Health and Wellbeing Board from May 201 3;
agree the core membership of the Board;

agree that political proportionality is not applied to the Board;

agree the terms of reference (attached).

W -

Alternative options considered and rejected:

The establishment of the Board as a council committtee is a statutory requirement.

Published work / information:

Health and Social Care Act (2012) - http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents

Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 218 - The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 - http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2 18/
contents/made

A Practical guide to governance and constitutional issues (LGA / ADSO) - http://tinyurl.com/bsmjué3

Background papers:

N/A

Sign off:

Fin | AB lLeg |TH |[Mon |TH |HR | N/A |Assets | N/A |IT | N/ | Strat | N/
27031 100 | Off 100 A | Proc | A
359

Originating SMT Member — Tim Howes, Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? n/a




Page 241

Introduction

The introduction of a Statutory Health and Wellbeing Board is a key aspect of the Health and
Social Care Act 2012 (the Act). The Board will introduce democratic legitimacy to health
services, support children, young people and adult services’ joint commissioning through a
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and support the integration of public health services into
local authorities.

The Health and Social Care Bill was introduced to Parliament on the 19 January 201 | and the
bill received royal assent on the 27 March 2012. Statutory Instruments and related regulations
allowing the establishment of the Board were laid before parliament on the 8 February 2013.
The regulations modify Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government and Housing
Act 1989 as they apply to Health and Wellbeing Boards.

Under section 194 of the Act, a Health and Wellbeing Board is a committee of the council
which established it and is to be treated as if appointed under section 102 of the Local
Government Act |972. It is therefore a ‘section 102 committee’ with some differences. The
modifications and disapplications which apply to Health and Wellbeing Boards within the
regulations also apply to subcommittees and joint committees established by the Board.

In 2011, a Health and Wellbeing Development Group was created to take the lead on the
development of the Health and Wellbeing Board. The group recognised that to seize the
opportunities that a Health and Wellbeing Board could present, time and care had to be taken
to develop the strong relationships which would be required to make a significant impact on
enhancing the health and wellbeing of the city’s citizens. The group invited organisational
development professionals to lead the group in examining —

e How the group would ensure focus on outcomes

e Communications between the group and board members, the wider public and strategic
partners

e How to develop a shared vision and common purpose

e How the members of the board would support and challenge each other, whilst taking
account of organisation turbulence, national and local political priorities and competing
demands

e How to operate an ‘open border policy’ to ensure that organisational boundaries are not
a hindrance to the development of the Health and Wellbeing Board and improved
integrated commissioning

The group took part in peninsula wide events to exchange best practice and learning with
other authorities and held an event to involve all stakeholders in the development of the
Board.

The Board developed its vision and identified responsible members to take on work streams
before the board became statutory. The Health and Wellbeing Board’s vision is —

“Happy, Healthy, Aspiring Communities™

The purpose of the Board is “To promote the health and wellbeing of all citizens in the City
of Plymouth”.



2.0

2.1

23

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 242

Functions

Health and Wellbeing Boards have been given a number of specific functions and powers
which are summarised below -

e A duty to encourage integrated working between commissioners of NHS, public health
and social care services, including arrangements under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006
(Section 195). (eg. pooled budgets, lead commissioning, integrated provision)

e A duty to discharge the functions of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) and local
authorities (conferred in Sections 192 and 193) to prepare Joint Strategic Needs
Assessments (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies (JHVVBS).

e A duty to prepare and publish local pharmaceutical needs assessments: an overview of
local pharmaceutical needs, services and gaps in provision similar to JSNAs

e Powers to request information from the local authority and any person or organisation
represented on the Board.

There is also a power for the local authority to delegate any of its powers to the Health and
Wellbeing Board, except health scrutiny.

Membership and Voting

Health and Wellbeing Boards are different to other Section 102 committees, in particular in
relation to the appointment of members. Specifically, the Act sets a core membership that
Health and Wellbeing Boards must include:

e at least one councillor from the relevant council

e the director of adult social services

e the director of children’s services

e the director of public health

e arepresentative of the local Healthwatch organisation

e arepresentative of each relevant CCG

e NHS Commissioning Board representative

e any other members considered appropriate by the council

The Act requires that the councillor membership is nominated by the Leader, with powers
for the Leader to be a member of the board in addition to or instead of nominating another
councillor.

Under the regulations, the political proportionality requirements for Section 102 committees
in respect of Health and Wellbeing Boards have been disapplied allowing councils to decide
the approach to councillor membership of Health and Wellbeing Boards. The Act requires
that the Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS Commissioning Board and local Healthwatch
organisations appoint persons to represent them on the Board.

The Act allows the council to include any other member as it thinks appropriate but requires
the council to consult the Health and Wellbeing Board if doing so any time after a Board is
established.

The membership of the Plymouth Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board has included all of
those as defined by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, but members of the Board
recognised that the step change in the health and wellbeing of the area’s population required
other people and organisations to help, therefore the Shadow Board decided that —



Page 243

‘Our membership will be defined by the presence of partners whom we feel are most likely to be able to work

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

together to deliver our vision’
The Shadow Plymouth Health and Wellbeing Board is made up of partners that include —

e Plymouth Community Housing

e Plymouth Community Healthcare

e Devon and Cornwall Police

e Plymouth University

e Voluntary and community sector representatives.

The intention behind the legislation is that all members of Health and Wellbeing Boards
should be seen as equals and as shared decision makers. Regulations have provided significant
flexibility on voting and this is reflected in the Plymouth Board’s terms of reference.

In Plymouth, partners on the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board have signed up to the
principle that decisions and recommendations will be reached by consensus. In exceptional
circumstances and where decisions cannot be reached by a consensus of opinion and/or there
is a need to provide absolute clarity on the will of the Board to executive bodies, voting will
take place and decisions will be agreed by a simple majority of all members (councillors and
co-opted members) present.

Codes of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest

The regulations under Section 194 of the Act do not modify or disapply any legislation
relating to codes of conduct and conflicts of interest. This means that legislation in relation
to these issues will apply to all members of Health and Wellbeing Boards.

All councillors and co-opted members of council committees are required to comply with a
code of conduct. Under the Localism Act 201 | (section 27 (4)), all non-councillor members of
Health and Wellbeing Boards who are entitled to vote on any question would be ‘co-opted
members’ for these purposes. This means that all voting members of health the Health and
Wellbeing Board will be governed by Plymouth City Council’s code of conduct.

Transparency and Openness

The regulations under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 do not modify legislation in
relation to transparency requirements. This means that Health and Wellbeing Boards are
subject to the same requirements of openness and transparency (such as access to
information and freedom of information act requests) as other Section 102 committees.

Accountability and Relationships within Council Structures and Partnerships

The Health and Wellbeing Board will be a committee of council and will sit within the
committee structure of the City Council as follows.



Page 244

Full Council )
|

H

C

ealth and Wellbeing Boar(D

N ()

Cabinet ) ( Scrutiny

)

C

Joint Commissioning ~\ _ _ _ _ _!
Partnership

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Health and Wellbeing Board will promote and encourage joint or integrated
commissioning. The JCP spans across a range of health and wellbeing services. This group is
made up of representative commissioners from Plymouth City Council (Adult Social Care,
Children’s Services, Housing and Community Safety), Public Health, NHS Plymouth, Probation
and the Police. The Joint Commissioning Partnership (JCP) will deliver the strategic
objectives and priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Board by making recommendations to
their respective organisations for commissioning in support of Health and Wellbeing Board
strategic priorities.

The Health and Wellbeing Board will be subject to scrutiny from the city council’s health
scrutiny function.

The Health and Wellbeing board is in essence a council committee which can also be seen as
a partnership and as such will sit within any agreed strategic partnership arrangements locally.



Page 245

Appendix A

HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD

2.1

22

23

FUNCTIONS

The council’s function relating to its Health and Wellbeing Board under Part 5 of the Health
and Social Care Act 2012 as amended (2.2 below) .

RESPONSIBILITIES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

The purpose of the Board is to promote the health and wellbeing of all citizens in the City of
Plymouth. The Board has three principles of working cooperatively which are to:

Work together with all city partners and with those we serve to take joint ownership of
the sustainability agenda

Ensure systems and processes will be developed and used to make the best use of limited
resources, every time

Ensure partners move resources — both fiscal and human to the prevention and health and
wellbeing agenda

The Board will identify and develop a shared understanding of the needs and priorities of local
communities in Plymouth through the development of the Plymouth Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA). Specifically, the Board will ensure that:

A Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Plymouth is prepared and published to ensure
that the needs identified in the ]SNA are delivered in a planned, coordinated and
measurable way.

The Plymouth JSNA is based on the best evidence and data available so that it is fit for
purpose and reflects the needs of local people, users and stakeholders

The JSNA drives the development of the Joint Plymouth Health and Wellbeing Strategy
and influences other key plans and strategies across the city

Plymouth City Council, NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS
Commissioning Board Area Teams demonstrate how the JSNA has driven commissioning
decisions

The Board will:

Develop an agreed set of strategic priorities to focus both collective effort and resources
across the city

Seek assurance that commissioners plans are in place to deliver the Board’s strategic
priorities and outcomes

Review the commissioning plans for healthcare, social care and public health to ensure
that they have due regard to the Joint Plymouth Health and Wellbeing Strategy and take
appropriate action if they do not

Ensure that appropriate structures and arrangements are in place to ensure the effective
engagement and influence of local people and stakeholders

Represent Plymouth in relation to health and wellbeing issues across the sub regional and
at national level



3.1

4.1

42

43

44

Page 246

e  Work closely with Plymouth Healthwatch ensuring that appropriate engagement and
involvement with existing patient and service user involvement groups takes place

e Retain a strategic overview of the work of commissioners in the city

e Support joint commissioning of NHS, social care and public health services and identify
those service areas in Plymouth where additional improvements in joint commissioning
could achieve the Board’s priority outcomes

e Recommend the development of aligned or pooled budgets and encourage partners to
share or integrate services where this would lead to efficiencies and improved service
delivery

MATTERS DELEGATED TO OFFICERS

All other functions in respect of health and wellbeing have been delegated to the Director for
People.

GENERAL

Membership

The Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board is comprised of:-
A core membership being -

e The Cabinet Member for Public Health and Adult Social Care
e The Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

e The lead opposition member for health

e The Director of Public Health

e The Director for People

e One representative from the Clinical Commissioning Groups
e One representative of the local Healthwatch

Reflecting the co-operative approach to engage with customers and other stakeholders over
the city’s key priorities, the Board will co-opt additional partners which it considers are most
likely to be able to work together to deliver the vision. The Board will make
recommendations to the city council for appointments to the Board.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is a committee of the council under the Local Government
Act 1972. The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013 have dis-applied aspects of the Act which have been incorporated into these
terms of reference.

The Board will act in accordance with the council constitution unless this conflicts with law.
Meetings

The Health and Wellbeing Board will meet four times per year which will be reviewed after
I2 months. The date, time and venue of meetings will be fixed in advance by the Board and
an annual schedule of meetings will be agreed by council. Additional meetings may be
convened at the request of the Chair. Meetings will be webcast and utilise social media tools
to allow real time interaction with the meeting.



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Page 247

Voting

In principle, decisions and recommendations will be reached by consensus. In exceptional
circumstances and where decisions cannot be reached by a consensus of opinion and/or there
is a need to provide absolute clarity on the will of the Board to executive bodies, voting will
take place and decisions will be agreed by a simple majority of all members (councillors and
co-opted members) present.

Where there are equal votes the Chair of the meeting will have the casting vote.

Declaration of Interests

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board will promote and support high standards of
conduct and as such will be subject to the council’s code of conduct. Members of the Board
must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day on which they become a member of
the Board, notify the authority's monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests
Notification of changes to declared interests must be made to the authority’s monitoring
officer within 28 days of the change taking effect.

Quorum

A quorum of one third of all members will apply for meetings of the Health and Wellbeing
Board including at least one elected councillor from Plymouth City Council.

Access to Information/ Freedom of Information

Health and Wellbeing Board meetings will be regarded as a council committee for Access to
Information Act purposes and meetings will be open to the press/public. Freedom of
Information Act provisions shall apply to all business.

Papers

The agenda and supporting papers will be in a standard format and circulated at least five clear
working days in advance of meetings. The minutes of decisions taken at meetings will be kept
and circulated to partner organisations as soon as possible and will be published on the city
council web site.

General Rules
The Health and Wellbeing Board will adhere to the Rules of Debate and General Rules

Applying to Committees. Where there are gaps in procedure the Chair will decide what to
do.



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 249 Agenda ltem 16

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Review of the Council’s Constitution

Committee: City Council

Date: 22 April 2013

Cabinet Member: n/a

CMT Member: Tim Howes (Monitoring Officer)

Author: Tim Howes, Monitoring Officer

Contact details: Email: tim.howes@plymouth.gov.uk Tel 01752 305403
Ref:

Key Decision: No

Part: I

Purpose of the report:
To request that the Council to consider undertaking a review of the constitution delivering members’
aspirations for improved governance.

Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015:
The governance structures of the Council will be key to delivering the corporate priorities.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:

Including finance, human, IT and land:

Investment in external support and will be offset by improved working practices and will be met from
existing resources in the first instance.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk
Management:
These will be developed as part of any review work

Equality and Diversity:

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? No an assessment will be carried out
in relation to the constitution as amended, prior to submission for adoption.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:
The Council is recommended to -

I. Undertake a ‘root and branch’ review of the constitution to be managed through the
Constitution Review Group;
2. Structure the review around:
a. Agreeing and setting the principles of how the constitution should be formed;
b. Creating a written constitution to reflect those principles and put them into practice.
3. Utilise external assistance in undertaking the review as described in the report.



Page 250

Alternative options considered and rejected:
Update the present ways of working by adapting the existing constitution.

Published work / information:

None

Background papers:

Title Part | | Partll Exemption Paragraph Number
I 2 3 4 5 6
None
Sign off:
Fin AB Leg 172 | Mon | TH HR Assets IT Strat
1104 61/ | Off | 0104 Proc
1360 DV
S

Originating SMT Member: Tim Howes

Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the content of the report! n/a




Page 251

1.0 Introduction

Members have said that they want a council which is member led and which therefore needs a
constitution to enshrine the philosophy of a member led council.

The present political structure of the Council consisting of the 'leader and cabinet executive' has
been in place with slight modifications since the Local Government Act 2000 changes. Those
modifications have included the removal of area committees in 2010 and the adoption of the 'strong
leader model' in 201 |. At the time of the adoption of the 'strong leader model', Council considered
the 'directly elected Mayor' model but felt that the 'leader and cabinet executive' was more
appropriate. Whilst there was a referendum for an elected Mayor in 2002 this did not support a
change.

In terms of documentation, the Constitution Review Group led a thorough review of the constitution
documents which was completed in 201 |. That review brought the constitution up to date, included
new legislative changes, tidied up and clarified delegations and attempted to make the constitution
more accessible to all. However, that process did not fundamentally review the type of constitution
we wanted and how this would enable us to be member led.

Latterly, this year, the Constitution Review Group has reviewed the Planning Code of Practice and
agreed a webcasting protocol as well as amending the gift and hospitality system.

On the 9" April 2013 the Constitution Review Group considered whether it was now appropriate to
review the council’s constitution and what sort of review that might be.

2.0 Drivers for change
The Constitution Review Group considered the following drivers for change:

¢ A mandate to demonstrate an improvement in openness and transparency.

e The Localism Act 201 |, which made new models of political governance available to the
Council including a modified 'committee system' and the ability to delegate certain functions
to ward members.

e The updated corporate plan including the 100 commitments which at number 91 includes
‘make attending council meetings a more enjoyable welcoming and informative experience for
citizens’

e New legislative changes and new functions, such as Health and Wellbeing Boards, Police
Commissioners, Public Health changes etc. These have their own challenges with many not
fitting our traditional local government structures and ways of operating. Another concern is
how we engage with partners and other bodies in this world of joint strategies?

e Considering even if the 'system' is appropriate and 'fit for purpose' is the written constitution
(our 'instruction manual’) up to scratch? Concern has been expressed by councillors about
the size of the document, the rules of debate and delegation levels. Concern has also been
raised about out-dated language and definitions especially given changes in legislation and
business practice.

e Changes to scrutiny arrangements

e New ways of working and the opportunities to utilise investment in new technology. This will
include learning from the ‘paperless meeting’ pilot.

e Looking at more accessible and automated ways to report to members and present
information in committees.

e We also have the specific challenge of ‘City Deal’ aimed at unlocking the growth potential of
urban areas in England. The objectives are to: boost local economic growth, re-balance the



Page 252

economy, decentralise the powers and levers cities need to drive local growth and most
relevant to this paper strengthen governance and leadership. The constitution needs to reflect
the strengthened governance and leadership.

¢ Increasing efficiency and delivering savings

In addition, the Constitution Review Group felt that any review should be wider than simply
considering a public sector based approach but should draw on experience from the private and

volu ntary sectors too.

In addition any review should take into account existing public consultation results on the operation
of meetings.

3.0 How could we address these challenges?

In considering how these challenges could be addressed the Constitution Review Group considered
the following options.

Option | Reflect upon and change the way we operate

Members considered how, if we were starting afresh, we would design the political and administrative
decision making structures of a 'brilliant cooperative' council in the modern world. This would mean
considering concepts about what the City Council should be and what it should do and how it would
feel. It would also mean accepting the legal limitations of our situation, so that would include testing
the fit of the options that might be available, such as:

o Form of political models — Are we still content with the current Cabinet/Committee System?

o Delegations - Function based Committees/Executive/Scrutiny/Area based Committees/Portfolio
holders/Individual Councillors/Officers

o Involvement of partners - co-opted members on committees and in scrutiny, area working etc.

« Involvement of the public — on-line interactivity/use of social media/use of informal referenda/etc.

« Raising the profile of meetings — publicity/interactive webcasting/meetings outside the Council
House etc.

« Reviewing how we run meetings — use of technology, review of what/how we provide information,
can we present more and write less?

The Constitution Review Group agreed that it would be a challenge to be radical and exciting and
innovative to achieve the commitment to ‘make attending council meetings a more enjoyable welcoming
and informative experience for citizens’. It was agreed that it is important not to underestimate the
difficulty of change and the need to go beyond what we currently do and into ‘uncharted territory’.

This review would be in two main parts:
I. Agreeing and setting the principles of how the constitution should be formed
2. Creating a written constitution to reflect those principles and put them into practice.

To deliver this scale of review would benefit from additional support from an external facilitator to
provide a 'fresh pair of eyes' with a wider perspective and the time to engage with all members and
stakeholders and make proposals. Members will need to consider who those stakeholders are, the
members and officers are obvious, but do we need to include partners and how will we engage the
wider community, to understand how the people of Plymouth would prefer to be governed?

Any external facilitator would need to both understand the legislative framework of local authorities
and have the skill to work with members to turn their aspirations into reality. Whilst there would be
some internal resource available to support the process, this work will have to fit in around the 'day



Page 253

job'. Best practice from other local authorities will also need to be considered alongside good
practice in the private and voluntary sectors.

It needs emphasising that this review is ‘member led’ and it will be vital to have members on the
Constitution Review Group who are able to commit to this relatively short but intensive piece of
work and who can both work on the project and report back to their own political groups to both
brief them and obtain their views.

The Chief Executive, Director for Corporate Services and Monitoring Officer specifically need to be
involved in both supporting the development of the constitution and its subsequent delivery to
ensure that the statutory roles are properly reflected. In addition, specialist support will be required
from other officers including those in: Democratic Support, Legal Services, Scrutiny Officer, Planning,
Licensing and ICT. Crucially, senior officers from service departments will bring all important
‘delivery’ orientated perspective to the review.

Option 2. Rewrite the instruction manual

As an alternative, members could take an evolutionary approach and simply rewrite our current
constitution to ensure a better fit with the philosophy of member led council.

We can look at our processes, is the language inclusive, are decisions taken at the right level, is the
document too large? Consideration can be given to creating 'quick guides' to particular sections; we
could make it into a more modular format (so the relevant audience only has the parts of the
constitution that they regularly need).

In creating changes we can look again for best practice examples from elsewhere. Perhaps we can
learn from organisations outside of local government or even outside the public sector completely?

It would be important to see how we can use new and emerging technologies to make the
Constitution more accessible, an 'i' or 'e' constitution with 'apps'? Universities for example have ‘apps’
for their students which include timetables, opening times, maps, guidance etc. It is easy to imagine
that a councillor app could include timetables for meetings, decision making limits, rules of debate,
contact numbers etc.

In short, what we would be aiming for is a relevant, accessible, clear, concise document (or e-
resource) fit for a brilliant cooperative council. Again we would need to have a facilitator to engage

stakeholders to draw out what is needed and to identify what is available.

Option 3. The hybrid approach

To some extent, option | and option 2 are at different ends of the spectrum. Members might want to
consider of course an alternative approach anywhere along the spectrum.

4.0 Way Forward

Having considered the options, the Constitutional Review Group agreed that Council should be
recommended to undertake a root and branch review of the constitution as described in option |.

The Constitution Review Group also recommended that the Council appoint an external facilitator
and this should be the subject of ‘soft market testing’ in the first instance. They recommended that
the bodies set out in the appendix should be approached with the attached draft scope of work (see
appendix).



Page 254

Appendix A
Draft scope of external assistance

It is worthwhile beginning by stating the obvious; it is vital that this is ‘member led’ and members are
in control of this process and are comfortable on every step of the way. It is envisaged that the
project would be led by the Constitution Review Group with assistance from the facilitator and
involvement of officers.

This would be intensive work over six months, probably meeting monthly on a formal basis, with
research and discussion work in between. Whilst the CRG would be the ‘guiding team’ of the review,
the external facilitator is likely to need to engage with all members as part of the process, probably
by meeting the political groups.

Subject to advice on procurement, in order to support us in this work | suggest that the Council
approach INLOGOV, LGA Improvement and Development (formerly the IDeA), University of
Plymouth and University of Exeter with a broad brief to understand whether they can assist with this
project (and to understand their knowledge, expertise, experience, costs, working proposals etc.)
The advantage of this ‘soft market testing’ is the potential to get free consultancy work to populate
the brief.

The budget for such assistance cannot be accurately determined until the initial discussions have
taken place with the prospective facilitator but costs are expected to be funded from existing
resources and recoverable over the next two years in releasing efficiency savings by streamlining
internal processes.

Outline of work
This review would be in two main parts:
(a) Agreeing and setting the principles of how the constitution should be formed
(b) Creating a written constitution to reflect those principles and put them into practice.
In more detail the work would include:
I. Initially engage with the Constitution Review Group, other senior councillors and officers to
understand their needs and expectations and draw up a work plan
2. Work with the Constitution Review Group/Officer groups in workshops for no more than ten
days over a six month period, to both facilitate discussion and draft the conclusions of those
discussions
Advise on people and organisations to visit/invite to understand their good practice
4. Provide challenge and advise on alternative structures and practices from both within and outside
local government
5. Assist officers in drafting the work into a revised constitution document

w

Areas for consideration with the Constitution Review Group

o Form of political models — Are we still content with the current Cabinet/Committee System?

o Delegations - Function based Committees/Executive/Area based Committees/Portfolio
holders/Individual Councillors/Officers

o Involvement of partners - co-opted members on committees and in scrutiny, area working etc.

« Involvement of the public — on-line interactivity/use of social media/use of informal referenda/etc.

« Raising the profile of meetings — publicity/interactive webcasting/meetings outside the Council
House etc.

« Reviewing how we run meetings — use of technology, review of what/how we provide information,
can we present more and write less, can we have ‘timed’ agenda!?



Page 255

Outcomes of the facilitation
The broad outcomes envisaged from the facilitated work are:

e Members agree the guiding principles underwriting the constitution

e Members agree that the new constitution reflects and supports those principles
e Members feel fully engaged in both the process and the outcome

e A revised constitutional reflecting the governance aspirations of the Council

Timeline
This work is likely to take around six months and is expected to require up to ten days of support.
An estimated timeline would be:

e April 2013 Constitution Review Group agree recommendations to Council

e 22 April 2013 Council consider any recommendations from Constitution Review Group
e May 2013 Soft market testing to develop a brief

e May 2013 Constitution Review Group to consider result of soft market testing

e November 2013 — proposed new Constitution to Full Council



Page 256

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT Programme of Ordinary Meetings of the Council and Committees 2013/14

bnda ltem 17

MAY 2013 Page 257 AQ
M6 M8 Employment ason Committee 10am ~
Your Plymouth 4pm
T7 T9 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
W8 W 10  [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Th9 Th Il Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime Panel | lam
F 10 Fl12
M3 M 15 Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm
T14 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am TI16
W I5 W 17  [SACRE 10am
Th 16 Th 18  [Planning 5pm
F17 ANNUAL MEETING 10.30am F19 Mount Edgcumbe (AGM) 10am
M 20 M 22 CITY COUNCIL
T2I Cabinet T23 Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W22 [Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm W 24  [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm
Th 23  [Planning 5pm Th 25 |[Taxi Licensing [0am
F24 F26
M27 BANK HOLIDAY M 29
T 28 Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam T30
W 29 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm W 3l
AUGUST 2013
Th 30 [Taxi Licensing [0am Thl Caring Plymouth 2pm
F3l F2
JUNE 2013
M3 Annual Scrutiny Conference 10am M5
T4 Té6 Cabinet
Licensing Sub (Misc) |0am
W5 w7 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Thé Th8
F7 F9
M 10 CITY COUNCIL M 12
TII Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am TI3
W 12 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P) W 14
Th 13 [Health and Wellbeing Board 2pm Th I5  [Planning 5pm
Audit 2pm
F 14 Flé
M 17 LAF 10.30am M9
TI8 T20 Licensing Committee |10am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 19  [Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm W 2l |Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Th20  [Planning 5pm Th 22
F2l F23
M 24 M 26 BANK HOLIDAY
T25 Cabinet T27
Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W26  [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm W28 | Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm
Th27 |Taxi Licensing |0am Th 29 |Taxi Licensing 10am
F 28 Mount Edgcumbe 10am F 30
JULY 2013 SEPTEMBER 2013
M Ambitious Plymouth 10am M2 LAF 10.30am
T2 T3 Cabinet
Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
W3 Corporate Parenting Group 2-4pm W4 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Working Plymouth 3pm
Th 4 Caring Plymouth 2pm Ths Audit Committee 2pm
Health and Wellbeing Board 2pm
F5 Plymouth Safeguaring Adults Board |pm Fé




M9 M 18 age 258
TI10 TI19
Wl W20 [Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm
Th 12 [Planning 5pm Th 21
FI3 Mount Edgcumbe 10am F22
M 16 CITY COUNCIL M 25 CITY COUNCIL
TI7 Licensing Committee |0am T 26 Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 18  [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm W 27  |Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm
Th 19  [Taxi Licensing [0am Th 28 |[Taxi Licensing |0am
F20 F29
DECEMBER 2013
Ambitious Plymouth 10am M2
Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm T3
Working Plymouth 3pm W4
Caring Plymouth 2pm Ths Planning 4pm
F27 Fé
M 30 Your Plymouth 4pm M9
OCTOBER 2013
el Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am TI0 Cabinet - draft budget
Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W2 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P) W 11 |Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Th3 Th 12 |Audit 2pm
F 4 Plymouth Safeguaring Adults Board I1pm F13
M7 M 16 LAF 10.30am
T8 TI7 Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm
W9 Corporate Parenting Group 2-4pm W 18  [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm
Th 10 [Planning 5pm Th 19  [Taxi Licensing |0am
Caring Plymouth 2pm
Fll F 20
M 14 Employment Liason Committee |0am M 23
TI5 Cabinet T24 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
Licensing Sub (Misc) |0am
W 16  [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm W25 |BANK HOLIDAY
Th 17 Th26 |BANK HOLIDAY
F18 F27
M2l M 30
T22 T3l
JANUARY 2014
W23 |Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm Wi BANK HOLIDAY
Th 24 [South West Devon Waste Partnership |0am Th2
F25 F3
M 28 M6 Budget Scrutiny Workshop |0am
T29 Licensing Committee |0am T7 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
W 30 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P) W 8 Budget Scrutiny Day | - 9.30am
Th 3l [Taxi Licensing 0am Th9 Planning 4pm
NOVEMBER 2013
Fl F 10 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
M4 Your Plymouth 4pm M3 Budget Scrutiny Day 2 - 9.30am
TS5 T14 Cabinet
W6 Working Plymouth 3pm W 15  [Budget Scrutiny Day 3 - 9.30am
Th7 Planning 4pm Th 16  [Health and Wellbeing Board 2pm
F8 F17
M SACRE [0am M 20 Employment Liason Committee 10am
Ambitious Plymouth 10am Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm
TI2 Cabinet T2l Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) |0am Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 13 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P) W 22  |Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Th 14 [Caring Plymouth 2pm Th 23  [Taxi Licensing |0am
Audit 2pm
FI5 Mount Edgcumbe 10am F 24 Plymouth Safeguaring Adults Board Ipm




M27 |CITY COUNCIL M3 JarYPaem 259

APRIL 2014~
T28 TI Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
W 29 w2
Th 30 [Planning 4pm Th3 Caring Plymouth 2pm
F3I F 4 Plymouth Safeguaring Adults Board |pm
FEBRUARY 2014
M3 M7
T4 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am T8
W5 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P) W9 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Th 6 Th 10 |Health and Wellbeing Board 2pm
F7 Fll
M 10 M 14 Employment Liason Committee 10am
TII Cabinet - Budget TI5 Licensing Committee |10am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 12 W 16 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm
Th I3 [Caring Plymouth 2pm Th I7 |Taxi Licensing 10am
Fl4 F 18 BANK HOLIDAY
M 17 M2l BANK HOLIDAY
TI8 Licensing Committee |0am T22
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 19  |Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm W 23  [Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm
Th 20 [Taxi Licensing |0am Th 24  [Planning 5pm
F2l Lord Mayors Selection Committee |0am F 25
M 24 CITY COUNCIL (Budget) M 28
T25 Corporate Parenting Group 2-4pm T29 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
W26 [Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm W 30 [Corporate Parenting Group 2-4pm
MAY 2014
Th 27  |Planning 4pm Thl CITY COUNCIL ELECTIONS
F 28 Mount Edgcumbe 10am F2
MARCH 2014
M3 Ambitious Plymouth M5 BANK HOLIDAY
T4 Cabinet Té6
Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
W5 Working Plymouth 3pm W7 Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P)
Thé Caring Plymouth 2pm Th 8
F7 F9
M 10 SACRE [0am M 12
Your Plymouth 4pm
TII TI3 Licensing Sub (Misc) 10am
W 12 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm (P) W 14
Th 13 [Audit 2pm ThI5
F 14 Flé ANNUAL MEETING 10.30am
M 17 LAF 10.30am M 19
TI8 Licensing Committee |0am T20
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 19  [Constitutional Review Group 4.30pm W2l
Th 20 [Taxi Licensing 0am Th 22  [Planning 5pm
F2l F23
M 24 M 26
T25 Cabinet T27 Licensing Committee |0am
Licensing Sub (Misc) | lam
W 26 [Co-operative Scrutiny Board 4pm W 28
Th 27  [Planning 5pm Th29 [Taxi Licensing |0am

F28 F30




Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 261 Agenda ltem 18

CITY COUNCIL

22 April 2013

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE LEADER ON URGENT CABINET AND KEY
DECISIONS

In accordance with the provisions of the constitution, the following urgent decisions are reported
to council for noting (paragraphs 3.5 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules and 18.3 of the Access to
Information Rules apply) -

I. CO-LOCATION WITH HEALTH AT WINDSOR HOUSE

Cabinet: 15 January 2013

(on the recommendations of Councillors Lowry and McDonald)

Decision:

To approve the additional capital resources required to implement co-location at Windsor House with the
western locality Client Commissioning Group and amend the Capital Programme accordingly.

Urgent key decision \/ Urgent Cabinet decision V

Reason for Urgency:

The report is required to be treated as urgent due to the need to conclude the purchase of buildings | and
2 prior to the transfer of all health assets into the NHS property services company.

Agreed by Councillor Mrs Aspinall (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) on 14 January
2013.

2. TRANSFER OF FREEHOLD OF DEVONPORT MARKET HALL BUILDING

Cabinet: 12 March 2013

(on the recommendation of Councillor Evans)

Decision:

Accept the offer from the Homes and Communities Agency to transfer the former Devonport Market Hall
building and associated land together with a dowry sum of £2.57 Million to enable the transfer by 3 [st
March 2013

Urgent key decision \ Urgent Cabinet decision \

Reason for Urgency: The next notice will be published on || February 2013 and it is impracticable to defer
the decision until the next Cabinet meeting on 2 April 2013. The Homes and Communities Dowry
Programme funding is only available this financial year and the requirement to transfer the land by 31
March 2013 means that a decision has to be taken with sufficient time to affect the land transfer before this
date.

Agreed by Councillor Mrs Aspinall (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) on 4 March
2013.

City Council 22 April Not protectively marked



Page 262

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, OUTSIDE BODIES ETC
	7 Urban Enterprise - New Enterprise Units at Millfields Trust
	Urban Enterprise - New Enterprise Units at Millfields Trust, 12/03/2013 Cabinet

	8 Development Plan - Adoption of Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document First Review
	130402_Development Guidelines SPD FR_Cabinet Report_Final, 09/04/2013 Cabinet
	Draft Development Plan - Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document First Review

	9 Adoption of Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule
	130402,cte,CIL CS Adoption, 09/04/2013 Cabinet

	10 Restructure of Overview and Scrutiny
	O&SMB Minute (Restructure of Scrutiny minute 136)
	Scrutiny Board - TOR
	Your Plymouth TOR
	Caring Plymouth TOR
	Working Plymouth TOR
	Ambitious Plymouth TOR

	11 Lord Mayoralty 2013/14
	12 A Reliable Railway Link for Plymouth
	14 REVISED COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT
	Draft councillors code of conduct

	15 ESTABLISHMENT OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
	16 REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION
	17 PROGRAMME OF ORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES 2013/2014
	18 REPORT OF THE LEADER ON URGENT CABINET AND KEY DECISIONS

